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Siobhan Simpson

From: UHCC Planning
Sent: Wednesday, 29 May 2024 10:08 am
Cc: UHCC Planning
Subject:  Further Submissions – Plan Change 50 – Rural Review
Attachments: PC50 - Public Notice - Further Submissions.pdf

Dear Submitter,  

Thank you for your submission on Plan Change 50 – Rural Review. 

Please find attached the Public Notice of further submissions for Proposed Plan Change 50 – Rural Review to 
the Upper Hutt District Plan 2004. 

We have formally notifying the Summary of Decisions Requested (Summary of Submissions) in the Upper Hutt 
Leader on 29 May 2024 and further submissions are being sought from this date.  

All information, including how to make a further submission can be found at - 
https://letskorero.upperhuttcity.com/pc50-rural-chapter-review 

We have received a number of submissions that have requested a change of zoning (from 
the proposed zoning in PC50 to a different zone).  We have mapped these requests, which can be found here - 
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/6a7040bfa7124ad38ab8e458c6b53594/ . Maps are also available 
in PDF format, if you would like a copy please let us know. 

Making a further submission 

Further submissions can be made by anyone in the community with an interest in PC50, for example anyone 
who lives, works, or volunteers in the area. If you decide to make a further submission, you will also need to 
send a copy to the person who made the original submission no later than five working days after you submit it 
to us. 

Further submissions must be completed on the Further Submission Form (Form 6), must state whether or not 
you wish to be heard on your submission and can only be made on a matter in support of, or opposition to, an 
original submission. Word and PDF copies of Form 6 can be found on our webpage and consultation page. 

You may make further submissions electronically or in writing to the Council in the following ways: 

 Online: https://letskorero.upperhuttcity.com/pc50-rural-chapter-review  

 In person: Upper Hutt City Council, 838 – 842 Fergusson Drive, Upper Hutt 

 Post: Proposed Plan Change 50, Upper Hutt City Council, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt, 5140 

 Email: planning@uhcc.govt.nz 

The Ministry for Environment also has a submission guide which may be helpful to making your 
submission: https://environment.govt.nz/assets/Publications/Files/3.2-making-a-submission.pdf 

The further submission period closes at 5.00 pm on 13 June 2024.  
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If you need any assistance with the further submission process or wish to discuss PC50 further, please get in 
touch with the Planning team on (04) 527 2169 or email planning@uhcc.govt.nz  

Regards,  
 
Planning Team 
 



•

The Upper Hutt City Council gives NOTICE as required by clause 
7 of the First Schedule of the Resource Management Act 1991, of 
the availability of a Summary of Decisions Requested (Summary 
of Submissions) by persons who made submissions on Proposed 
Plan Change 50 – Rural Review to the Upper Hutt City Council 
District Plan 2004.  

Plan Change 50 - Rural Review includes the development of 
zone-specific provisions for the General Rural, Rural Production, 
Rural Lifestyle, and Settlement Zones. It also introduces the 
Staglands Precinct, Berketts Farm Precinct and the Clay Target 
Club acoustic overlay.

The Plan Change can be viewed on the Council website at 
letskorero.upperhutt.com/pc50-rural-chapter-review, and 
can also be inspected at any of the following locations:  

•	 Upper Hutt City Council 
838 – 842 Fergusson Drive 
Upper Hutt

•	 Upper Hutt Central Library 
844 Fergusson Drive 
Upper Hutt

•	 Pinehaven Branch Library 
Corner of Pinehaven Road & Jocelyn Crescent 
Pinehaven, Upper Hutt

Making further submissions

You may make further submissions electronically or in writing to 
the Council in the following ways:

•	 Online: 	 letskorero.upperhuttcity.com/pc50 -rural-chapter-
review

•	 Email: 	 planning@uhcc.govt.nz

•	 In person: 	 Upper Hutt City Council 
	 838 – 842 Fergusson Drive 
	 Upper Hutt

•	 Post:	 Proposed Plan Change 50 
	 Upper Hutt City Council 
	 Private Bag 907 
	 Upper Hutt 5140

Further submissions must be completed on the Further 
Submission Form (Form 6) and must state whether or not you 
wish to be heard on your submission. A further submission must 
be in response to a decision requested in one of the original 
submissions. Copies of the Further Submission Form are available 
on the website and from Council. Further submissions must be 
received by 5pm, Thursday 13 June 2024.

Any person representing a relevant aspect of the public  
interest and any person with an interest in the Plan Change 
greater than the interest the general public has, may make a 
further submission. 

A further submission must be: 

•	 in response to a decision requested in one of the original 
submissions; and 

•	 is limited to either be in support of, or opposition to an  
original submission; and 

•	 must provide reasons for support or opposition to an  
original submission.

Please note: In addition to serving a copy of the further 
submission on the Upper Hutt City Council, a copy of the further 
submission must also be served on the person(s) who made the 
original submission to which the further submission relates. This 
must be done no later than 5 working days after providing the 
Upper Hutt City Council with the further submission. 

Process for public participation

The proposal for public participation in the consideration of the 
proposal under the Act is as follows:

•	 after the close of further submissions, Council will conduct a 
hearing if needed. Everyone who made a submission or further 
submission, and who requested to be heard, will be advised 
of the dates and times of the hearing and will be given an 
opportunity to attend and speak to the Council in support of 
their submission. 

•	 after considering the plan change and undertaking a further 
evaluation of the plan change in accordance with section 32AA 
the Upper Hutt City Council 

•	 may decline, approve, or approve with modifications the 
plan or change; and

•	 must give reasons for its decision; and

•	 the local authority shall give public notice of its decision within 
2 years of notifying the proposal and serve it on every person 
who made a submission and

•	 any person who has made a submission has the right to  
appeal against the decision on the proposal to the 
Environment Court if, 

•	 in relation to a provision or matter that is the subject of the 
appeal, the person referred to the provision or matter in the 
person’s submission on the proposal; and

•	 in the case of a proposal that is a proposed policy statement 
or plan, the appeal does not seek the withdrawal of the 
proposal as a whole.

If you have any questions, or would like further information 
about PC50, please contact  planning@uhcc.govt.nz  

Suzanne Rushmere  
Planning Policy Manager   
Upper Hutt City Council  	  
Wednesday, 29 May 2024

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF SUMMARY OF DECISIONS REQUESTED ON  
PROPOSED PLAN CHANGE 50 TO THE UPPER HUTT CITY COUNCIL DISTRICT PLAN (2004)  

– RURAL CHAPTER REVIEW
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Suzanne Rushmere
Sent: Tuesday, 28 May 2024 1:44 pm
To: Michael Hall
Subject: Accepted: quick catch up 
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Diana Goodall on behalf of Michael Hall 

Sent: Thursday, 9 May 2024 8:50 am
To: Suzanne Rushmere
Subject: Accepted: Traffic Catch Up

 

7(2)(a)
7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Michael Hall 
Sent: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 3:51 pm
To: Suzanne Rushmere
Subject: Accepted: Traffic Catch Up

 

7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Michael Hall 
Sent: Friday, 10 May 2024 1:01 pm
To: Suzanne Rushmere
Subject: Accepted: Traffic Catch Up

 

7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Michael Hall 
Sent: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 12:33 pm
To: Suzanne Rushmere
Subject: Accepted: Traffic Model

 

7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Diana Goodall  on behalf of Michael Hall 

Sent: Wednesday, 29 May 2024 8:24 am
To: Suzanne Rushmere
Subject: Accepted: Traffic Modelling

 

7(2)(a)
7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Michael Hall 
Sent: Wednesday, 29 May 2024 7:09 am
To: Suzanne Rushmere
Subject: Accepted: Traffic Modelling

 

7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Michael Hall 
Sent: Wednesday, 29 May 2024 4:32 pm
To: Suzanne Rushmere
Subject: Accepted: Traffic Modelling

 

7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Phernne Tancock 
Sent: Thursday, 6 June 2024 4:12 pm
To: UHCC Planning
Subject: Automatic reply: Plan Change 49 / Variation 1 - Minute #12 - Closing of Hearing

Thank you for your email. I  will be returning to the office on 2 July.  
 

If it is urgent please contact my instructing solicitor in the relevant matter or Caroline Cheetham at Harbour 
Chambers  
Kind regards 
Phernne Tancock.   

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)



1

Siobhan Simpson

From: UHCC Planning
Sent: Friday, 20 September 2024 6:44 pm
Cc: UHCC Planning
Subject: Council meeting on PC49/V1 - 2pm 25 September 2024

Tēnā koe,  
 
We are writing to notify you of an upcoming meeting regarding Plan Change 49 and Variation 1 to the 
Upper Hutt District Plan 2004.  
 
Council will make decisions on Plan Change 49/Variation 1 at Ordinary Council on 25 September 
2024, after receiving recommendations from the Independent Hearings Panel.  
 
You can view the full agenda (including the Hearings Panel Recommendation Report – from page 388) 
on the Upper Hutt City Council website here: 
https://www.upperhutt.govt.nz/files/assets/public/v/1/yourcouncil/meetings/2024/cycle-5/council-
agenda-20240925.pdf 
 
The meeting will be held in Council Chambers on Wednesday, 25 September, at the earlier (than 
usual) time of 2.00 pm, the meeting will also be livestreamed on the Council’s YouTube channel. 
 
For more information and background on the proposed plan change please visit our dedicated Plan 
Change 49/Variation 1 webpage: https://www.upperhutt.govt.nz/Services/District-Plan/PC49 
 
Ngā mihi nui,  
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Toni Neale
Sent: Thursday, 2 May 2024 1:34 pm
To: Phernne.Tancock ; Craig Martell 
Cc: Geoff Swainson
Subject: Fast Track Approval Application
Attachments: Fast Track Approval Application for Silverstream Forest Development .pdf

Hi Phernne and Craig 
 
Please find aƩached leƩer I am about to send to Hon. Chris Bishop, Hon Simeon Brown and Hon Shane Jones.  I will 
also copy you into that email. 
 
Regards 
 
Toni 

7(2)(a) 7(2)(a)



 

 
 
Hon. Chris Bishop MP 

Hon, Simeon Brown MP 

Hon. Shane Jones MP 

 

By email 

 

 

           

              2 May 2024  

 
 
Dear Ministers /Referral Panel 

RE: Guildford Timber Company Ltd - Fast Track Approval Application for Silverstream Forest Development. 

Upper Hutt City Council supports Guildford Timber Company Ltd’s (GTC) application for Fast Track 

application for the Silverstream Forest Development to develop the Southern Growth Area and provide 

1500-2040 new homes in Upper Hutt. 

The Council has worked with GTC to plan for the use of this land for housing for over 17 years. The Fast 

Track process would provide an efficient means of consenting the proposed development without further 

Council expenditure on planning and hearings. This would provide certainty for GTC, the community and 

Council over the future of this land. 

The Council is the owner of the Silverstream Spur and intends to provide the necessary approval for access 

to the Silverstream Forest via Kiln Street via a roading and infrastructure corridor through the Spur. 

 Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

 
Geoff Swainson 

Te Tumu Whakarae | Chief Executive 
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Phernne Tancock 
Sent: Wednesday, 29 May 2024 12:23 pm
To: Geoff Swainson
Cc: Craig Martell
Subject: Fast Track
Attachments: Letter-Hon Chris Bishop-Fast Track Consenting-2024-02-16-including 

attachment[80].pdf

Hi Geoff 
I thought you might find this interesting – Tasman District Council have written to the Ministers in support of a 
Fasttrack application (without any criticism) – see top of page 2.  
Kind regards, 
Phernne.  

7(2)(a)



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
16 February 2024  
 
 
Hon Chris Bishop 
Minister of RMA Reform  
Parliament Buildings  
Wellington  
 
Via email: chris.bishop@parliament.govt.nz  
 
 
Tēna koe Minister 
 
Potential Fast Track Consent Projects and other potential regulatory improvements  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to put forward projects for fast-track consent consideration under 
your proposed Bill. 
 
Tasman District is a high growth region with some of the least affordable housing in the New 
Zealand when compared to household income. We have worked hard over many years to ensure 
we provide new development opportunities to meet the housing needs in our region. This 
challenge remains, with growth of approximately 4,700 homes needed over the next 10 years. We 
are keen to work with the Government to reduce barriers to meet this need and have highlighted a 
few of those opportunities below.  
   
Fast Track Consent – Joint Landfill Projects  
Tasman District Council and Nelson City Council have a joint landfill operation that include two 
future projects we think are suitable for a fast-track consent process. A summary of these is below 
(attachment 1) and we can provide further information next week if required. We would like these 
to be considered in the second tranche of consents following the enactment of the legislation. We 
do not yet have all the information ready for these consents but will do so for project-1 by mid-2024 
and project-2 (if needed) by the end of 2025.   
 
Fast Track Designation – Borck Creek  
It is not clear whether the scope of the Bill will include designations, but if it does, we would 
welcome the opportunity to include the Borck Creek designation process for consideration in the 
second tranche following the enactment of the legislation. Borck Creek is an ongoing series of 
drainage improvements that will ultimately provide drainage for over 3,300 homes and large 
commercial areas within Richmond. We do not yet have all the information ready for this 
designation but will do so by mid-2024.   
  

mailto:xxxxx.xxxxxx@xxxxxxxxxx.xxxx.xx


 

 

  
Fast Track Consent – Support for Wakefield Village Development  
We are aware that the Wakefield Village Development group has requested fast track approval for 
its subdivision of approximately 320 homes. We support this development going to fast-track 
approval. Apart from providing additional housing supply, it also proposes to provide some dual 
dwellings lots, which we believe will be well received by our market.  
 
Fast Track Land Zoning  
In addition to speeding up resource consents, we believe there is an opportunity for the 
Government to simplify the zone change process and would welcome a discussion with you about 
what this could look like. This would unlock substantive and well-planned development capacity 
more quickly, enabling more developments sooner as well as reducing the number or complexity of 
consents required in the future – including those that may otherwise need to go through the fast-
track consent process you propose.  
 
Regions are now required to develop Future Development Strategies (FDS). These FDS identify 
the land to be used for future development. Tasman and Nelson completed our joint FDS in 2022 – 
a major process that attracted over 500 submissions. Despite this, the land included for future 
development must still go through the same Schedule 1 RMA process (approximately two years’ 
work) to implement zone changes. In net terms, this has added time and cost to the planning 
process rather than simplifying or streamlining it.  
 
We value our FDS as a strategic planning tool but could get more value from it if there was a fast-
track zone change process for land covered by the FDS. We have attached examples for your 
information of Tasman zoning changes that could be enabled quickly under such a system 
(attachment 2).   
  
In other words, having a site identified in an FDS does not materially speed up the release of that 
land. The full Schedule 1 RMA process automatically applies.  The FDS and RMA processes are 
“decoupled”. 
 
Two options are immediately apparent: 
 
1. Include a process in the new Government fast-track legislation that applies to zone 

changes.  However, Council’s would need to be given a period of time to formulate the zone 
rules before the new zone applies.  We suggest that this process should only be open to 
Council’s as zone changes are very significant and should not be automatically available to 
private landowners or developers. 

OR 
2. Amend the Streamlined Planning Process that is already in the RMA. The new SPP could be 

automatically available to councils for sites that are identified in the FDS (rather than needing 
to seek Ministerial approval). This would enable an FDS to be implemented on the ground 
more quickly. 

 
The Council Consenting Process  
I strongly encourage the Government to consider how the existing consenting system can be 
improved to reduce uncertainty while reducing the cost, complexity, and time associated with the 
bulk of consents, which will still go through councils in the future. Leaving the current consenting 
system in place while introducing a separate alternative fast-track consenting process may also 
drive significant demand for the new process. This may reduce the benefit of the new system as 
demand exceeds capacity to process new fast track consents, driving delays. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Designating and acquiring land to support development.    
There is a major disconnect between designations under the Resource Management Act 1991 and 
the Public Works Act 1981. Both are fundamental to providing the infrastructure we need to service 
growth. Public entities must complete two separate, costly, and time-consuming processes to 
designate and acquire land. We understand the need to carefully consider such impositions on 
private land holdings and that a high bar is needed but consider that the two process can be linked 
to avoid unnecessary duplication and costs. We can highlight several examples where the 
disconnect has delayed new growth infrastructure being constructed and would welcome a 
discussion about what changes could reduce delays while still protecting private property rights.  
 
National environmental standard for assessing and managing contaminants in soil to 
protect human health  
We have a related matter to raise with you around the national environmental standard for 
assessing and managing contaminants in soil to protect human health. The standards prohibit the 
sensible management of some low-risk class-4 contaminated soils i.e. soil which is close to 
background levels. This is driving up the costs of developments and making them more complex, 
while at the same time wasting a valuable resource and generating the part of the issue that 
underpins the two landfill projects we are proposing for fast-track consent.  
A change to the standards could eliminate a lot of wasted time and energy and potentially make 
greater productive agricultural re-use of some of these soils, with no risk to the environment or 
human safety.  
 
A related change to the Waste Minimisation (Calculation and Payment of Waste Disposal Levy) 
Regulations 2009 made under the Waste Minimisation Act 2008 for class 4 materials from new 
developments could also encourage beneficial reuse of this soil.  
 
We would welcome the chance to discuss this with you.  
 
Thank you again for opportunity to put forward projects for fast-track consent consideration. I look 
forward to hearing from you on these, and the other matters I have raised.   
  
Ngā mihi nui  
 

 
Tim King  
Mayor of Tasman      
Te Koromatua o te tai o Aorere    
 
Copy to: Maureen Pugh, Member of Parliament for West Coast-Tasman 



 

 

Attachment 1 – Information on Nelson Tasman Joint Landfill Projects  
 
Project 1:  New Regional Contaminated Soil reuse project.   
 
Issue(s) being faced that the Nelson Tasman Regional Landfill Business Unit want to resolve with 
this project.   
 
Issue 1 – Nelson-Tasman no longer has any disposal or reuse facilities in the region for 
contaminated soil. This is a recently identified issue as contaminated soil disposal has been 
managed by the private sector until late last year. This issue could result in a cost of around $25 
million per annum for earthworks and infrastructure projects, many of which would be Nelson City 
Council and Tasman District Council projects. This would create significant financial and/ or 
environmental and compliance issues if it is not resolved. If the waste is accepted at the York 
Valley Facility in Nelson, it could result in the closure of the landfill within the next five or six years. 
The consequence of this is that the Nelson Tasman region may be in a position of not having a 
regional class one landfill facility. This is an untenable situation.   
 
Issue 2 – Nelson City has a limited land area suitable for housing development, and it is possible 
for the Nelson-Tasman Regional Landfill Business Unit to reuse contaminated soils to develop a 
New Housing platform by filling steep gullies. A draft concept plan has been developed for the 
beneficial reuse of contaminated soils for this within the York Valley landfill designation, but as a 
separate activity to the York Valley landfill.   
 
Issue 3 – The timing of the consenting process (which the Nelson-Tasman Regional Landfill 
Business Unit is trying to fast track to resolve this issues) could take years. The reuse project will 
ultimately require the business unit to get consent for discharge to land that might otherwise be 
considered to be a class 3 and 4 contaminated soil landfill (despite this being a beneficial reuse 
project)  This would result in some of the adverse effects of not having a contaminated soil disposal 
or reuse facility within the region  occurring (at least for the duration of the consenting process) and 
therefore would result in the shortening of the landfill life prior to the New Regional Contaminated 
Soil reuse  receiving consent. This would also result in the use of class 1 landfill airspace for 
material that would not need to go to a class 1 facility.   
 
Where is this project at present?  
 
The Nelson-Tasman Regional Landfill Business Unit has engaged planners for the development of 
the Assessment of Environmental Effects (AEE), project management for the AEE process and 
ecological assessments. The business unit staff are also working on engaging consultants for 
groundwater assessments and geotechnical assessments for the application for a Beneficial 
Contaminated Soil Reuse project.    
 
The project will require a discharge to land consent for contaminated soils This project is 
reasonably new and relates to the Nelson Tasman region not having a reuse of disposal 
mechanism for contaminated soils.   
 
The project is to be sited within the existing York Valley landfill designation which greatly simplifies 
the process for getting consent.   
 
Business unit staff have had preliminary discussions with the consenting authority and given the 
significance and the urgency of the issue, ongoing communication is proposed while the 
application and AEE are developed.   
 
From a cost perspective, the business unit does not have a specific budget for the project (it was 
identified after the activity management plan was developed), but it is expected that the joint 
Council committee will allow the Nelson Tasman Regional Landfill Business Unit to divert the 
funding for a similar but smaller project at the Eves Valley landfill for this project. Additional funding 
may also need to be sourced.  



 

 

  
The timeframe is very important for this project if the two councils to limit or mitigate any adverse 
environmental, financial, and economic effects to the Nelson Tasman region.   
 
Our goal is to submit the AEE in as good a form as possible by end of June 2024 (currently an 
ambitious target), and therefore we are very interested in a fast-track process for this project.   
 
 
Project two: New Regional Class one landfill consent and development.    
 
Issue(s) being faced that the Nelson-Tasman Regional Landfill Business Unit want to resolve with 
this project.   
 
Issue – The Nelson Tasman region has only one consented Class 1 landfill (a landfill which 
accepts residential, hazardous, and organic wastes) and has 10 years of its consented life 
remaining.   
 
The business until works under a set of guidelines outlined in the joint Nelson-Tasman Waste 
Management and Mitigation Plan that requires the landfill to have five years of consented capacity 
and two years constructed capacity at all times.  This consent application will seek consent for a 
landfill with around 25 years capacity.  The Business Unit would seek a consent with a duration of 
35 years (the maximum allowed under the RMA.)  
 
The new information associated with Project 1 above, means that it is possible that the current 
York Valley Gully 1 landfill life could shorten to five years if York Valley needs to accommodate 
contaminated soils from the Nelson-Tasman region. The newly identified issue with contaminated 
soil reuse / disposal in the Nelson Tasman region (Project 1)  would mean that without urgent 
attention the Nelson-Tasman community could face a period where there was no class one facility 
in the region, and waste would need to be sent to Marlborough (or another facility) at significant 
economic and environmental cost.   
 
The current plan for the New Class 1 Regional Landfill is to apply for consent for Gullies 2 and 3 
within the York Valley Landfill designation, and to request a modification to the Nelson Tasman 
Regional Landfill Business Unit Deed of Agreement from Tasman District Council and Nelson City 
Council. The business unit would also need to seek an amendment to the Commerce Commission 
Authorisation to accommodate this change.   
 
This project is urgent depending on the outcome of Project 1, but even if Project 1 is 
implemented, this project will still be necessary in its own right and fast tracking the process would 
provide material benefit to the Nelson-Tasman region.  
 
Where is this project at present?  
The Nelson-Tasman Regional Landfill Business Unit has started the process of developing 
information for the application for consent for a new regional landfill facility and is looking to apply 
for consent within the next two years. Geotechnical briefs have been generated and a project 
control team has met to develop the project schedule, and to identify the process to engaging the 
key experts.   
 
Landfill consenting processes have taken as long as five years in different parts of New Zealand, 
and the business unit’s Stage 2 consent for the Eves Valley Landfill has been in progress since 
2017 (~7 years). Our assumption is that we can apply to get sufficient feedback within 24 months 
to allow the business unit sufficient time (if we think we might be unsuccessful), to prepare and 
submit a second application for an alternative site (Eves Valley Stage 3).   
 
From a cost perspective, the Nelson Tasman Regional Landfill Business Unit has budget for the 
project of around $2 million over the next three years. There is also $43 million in the second five-



 

 

years of the activity management plan for the construction of a facility in Gullies 2 and 3 assuming 
a successful consent application.   
 
Timeframe is very important for this project if we want to limit or mitigate any adverse 
environmental, financial, and economic effects to the Nelson Tasman region, however the 
timeframe depends on the success of Project 1.   
 
Our goal is to submit the application with all relevant information and detail by the end of 2025 and 
therefore we are very interested in a fast-track process for this project.   
  



 

 

Attachment 2 – Areas suitable for fast-track zone changes  
 

Area   Zone change description   

Port Tarakohe zone  
Port Motueka zone   

Replace the current patchwork of zones with a single Port Zone for 
Tarakohe and Port Motueka  
New port zone can be bespoke for the ports and enable a much more 
streamlined rules  

Berryfields Junction   Replace Mixed Business Zone with a higher density Mixed Use Zone 
(MUZ).  MUZ could enable up to 6-storey apartments  

Medium Density 
Residential Zone 
(Richmond)  

Change Richmond Residential Zone to Medium Density Residential 
Zone (MDRZ) for Richmond to implement the Richmond Spatial Plan 
(Richmond on the Rise project)  

Richmond South 
Industrial Land  

Change zone along SH6 at Hope to Light Industrial or Mixed Business 
Zone  

  

Tākaka Industrial  Change Zone at Page Road to Light Industrial Zone  
Zone is included in FDS and there is a significant shortage of business 
land in Golden Bay  

  

Golden Bay Industrial  Change Zones at Rangihaeata  
1. Area of Light Industrial Zone  
2. Area of Rural Residential (unserviced) zone  
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Chris Hansen <chris@rmaexpert.co.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 26 June 2024 9:53 am
To: UHCC Planning
Subject: Further submission to submissions received on Plan Change 50 - Rural Chapter 

Review
Attachments: FINAL Further Submission form-6.pdf; FINAL GTC Further Submission table 

250624.pdf

Please find attached a further submission on behalf of Guildford Timber Company Limited, 
Silverstream Forest Limited and the Goodwin Estate Trust to submissions received on Plan Change 
50 to the Upper Hutt City District Plan. 
 
A copy of this further submission will be sent to the original submitters within 5 working days as 
required by Clause 8A of Schedule 1 of the RMA. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Chris Hansen 
RMA Planning Consultant/Company Director 
Chris Hansen Consultants Ltd 
220 Ross Road, RD7 
Whakamarama,Tauranga 3179 
ph:  
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            Further submission form (FORM 6) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PROPOSED PLAN CHANGE TO THE UPPER HUTT CITY COUNCIL DISTRICT PLAN 

Proposed Plan Change 50 – Rural Chapter Review 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Details of submitter  

When a person or group makes a further submission on a Proposed Plan Change this is public information. By making a further s ubmission your personal details, 
including your name and addresses, will be made publicly available under the Resource Management Act 1991. There are limited circumstances when your submission 
or your contact details can be kept confidential. If you consider you have reasons why your submission or your contact detail s should be kept confidential, please 

contact the Planning Team via email at planning@uhcc.govt.nz. 

NAME OF SUBMITTER Guildford Timber Company Limited, Silverstream Forest Limited and the 

Goodwin Estate Trust 
 
POSTAL ADDRESS OF SUBMITTER 

 

  

 
AGENT ACTING FOR SUBMITTER (IF APPLICABLE) 

Chris Hansen, RMA Planning Consultant 

 
ADDRESS FOR SERVICE (IF DIFFERENT FROM ABOVE) 

C/- 220 Ross Road, RD7; Tauranga 3179 

  

 

CONTACT TELEPHONE. 02102645108 

 

CONTACT EMAIL  chris@rmaexpert.co.nz 

I am (please tick all that apply ): 
 

A person representing a relevant 
aspect of the public interest 

 
 

PLEASE SPECIFY THE GROUNDS FOR SAYING YOU COME WITHIN THIS CATEGORY 

A person who has an interest in the 
proposal that is greater than the 
general public has 

 

The submitter owns land affected by PC50. 

 
PLEASE SPECIFY THE GROUNDS FOR SAYING YOU COME WITHIN THIS CATEGORY 

The local authority for the relevant area 

O   

The closing date for further submissions is Wednesday, 26 June 2024, at 5pm 

 

Further submission only in support of or opposition to a submission on publicly 

notified Proposed Plan Change 50 – Rural Review to the Upper Hutt City Council District Plan 

Deliver to: Upper Hutt Civic Centre, 838 – 842 Fergusson Drive, Upper Hutt 5019 

Post to: Planning (Policy Team, Upper Hutt City Council, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt 5140 

 

A copy of this further submission must also be served on the original submitter 

within 5 working days after making this further submission to Council. 

mailto:xxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx


 

Details of further submission  

To support  /  oppose (tick one ) the submission of: 

NAME OF ORIGINAL SUBMITTER 
 

 
POSTAL ADDRESS OF ORIGINAL SUBMITTER 

 

 
SUBMISSION NUMBER 

 

The particular parts of their submission that I support or oppose are:  

Please refer to attached table. 

 

 

 

PLEASE CLEARLY INDICATE WHICH PARTS OF THE ORIGINAL SUBMISSION YOU SUPPORT OR OPPOSE, TOGETHER WITH 
ANY RELEVANT PROVISIONS OF THE PROPOSED PLAN CHANGE. PLEASE USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 

The reasons for my support or opposition are:  

Please refer to attached table. 

 

  

  

  

 PLEASE GIVE PRECISE DETAILS AND USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 

I seek that the whole of the submission be allowed  /  disallowed (tick one ) OR 

I seek that the following parts of the submission be allowed/disallowed: 

Please refer to attached table. 

 

 

 

PLEASE GIVE PRECISE DETAILS OF THE PARTS OF THE SUBMISSION THAT YOU SEEK TO BE ALLOWED OR DISALLOWED. USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 

Please indicate whether you wish 
to be heard in support of your 
submission (tick appropriate box ): 

 I do wish to be heard in support of my submission. 

 I do not wish to be heard in support of my submission. 

Please indicate whether you wish to make 
a joint case at the hearing if others make a 
similar submission (tick appropriate box  ): 

 I do wish to make a joint case. 

 I do not wish to make a joint case. 

Signature and date 

 

Signature of person making submission or person authorised to sign on behalf of person making submission: 

 



 
SIGNATURE 
 
 

 
DATE  26 June 2024 
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Submitter Number; 
Name; Address 

Submission 
Number 

Support / 
Oppose 

Reason Decision Sought 

Submitter 20: Nigel 
Marriot 
1400 Akatarawa 
Road; RD2; Upper 
Hutt 

S20.1 Oppose The submitter’s request that there be no 
further rural subdivision permitted, and 
prohibition of all current and future rural 
subdivision is opposed.  Such a request is 
draconian, is contrary to the NPS-UD and 
does not achieve the sustainable 
management purpose of the RMA.  

Disallow submission S20.1. 

Submitter 37: Anne 
Rainey 
25 Sierra Way, RD1, 
Upper Hutt 

S37.1 Oppose in part The submitter’s request that current lot 
sizes for Rural properties should remain, 
and infrastructure should be in place before 
any development occurs in the Blue 
Mountains is opposed.  Such a request is 
contrary to the NPS-UD and does not 
achieve the sustainable management 
purpose of the RMA. 

Disallow that part of submission S37.1 that 
seeks current lot sizes for Rural properties to 
remain, and infrastructure be in place before any 
development occurs in the Blue Mountains area. 

Submitter 43: Julie 
Allison 
16 Avian Road 

S43.1 Oppose  The submitter’s request that Council consult 
with the community and create new 
documentation outlining the proposed 
objectives, policies and rules tailored for 
each zone is opposed.  Such a request is 
unnecessary as Plan Change 50 is going 
through an appropriate RMA process that 
will address the concerns raised by the 
submitter, and delaying the process is 
contrary to the NPS-UD and does not 

Disallow submission S43.1. 
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achieve the sustainable management 
purpose of the RMA. 

Submitter 75: 
Andrea Martin 
113 Kakariki Way, 
RD1, Upper Hutt 
5371 

S75.2 Oppose The submitter’s request that any further 
plans for subdivision to be halted is 
opposed.  Such a request is unnecessary, is 
contrary to the NPS-UD and does not 
achieve the sustainable management 
purpose of the RMA. 

Disallow submission S75.2. 

Submitter 79: Lisa 
and Andrew 
Plimmer 
115 Russells Road, 
RD1, Upper Hutt 
5371 

S79.1 Oppose in part The submitter request that the review of 
the rural zoning be put on hold until a 
proper assessment of the Berketts’ Farm 
site is undertaken, and there has been 
genuine consultation with the community is 
opposed.  It is not necessary or appropriate 
to put the entire PC50 on hold while one 
particular site is investigated.  Such a 
request is contrary to the NPS-UD and does 
not achieve the sustainable management 
purpose of the RMA. 

Disallow the request in submission S79.1 to 
put the review of the rural zones on hold. 

Submitter 80: 
Stephanie Watson 
26 Avian Road 

S80.1 Oppose The submitter requests a restriction on 
traffic on Blue Mountains Road to cars, Utes 
and school buses and ban all construction 
and logging traffic.  Such a request is 
inappropriate and unenforceable, and does 
not recognise there are existing and planned 
construction and forestry activities in the 
area that are entitled to use the Blue 
Mountains Road. 

Disallow submission S80.1. 

Submitter 93: Ian 
Stewart 

S93.5 Support The submitter requests a rule allowing for 
any new subdivision in the General Rural, 

Allow submission S93.5. 
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268 Mangaroa 
Valley Rd, RD1, 
Upper Hutt 

Rural Production or Rural Lifestyle that 
meets standards to be undertaken as a 
controlled activity.  Such a request is 
appropriate and would help to implement 
the NPS-UD and achieve the sustainable 
management purpose of the RMA. 

Submitter 93: Ian 
Stewart 
268 Mangaroa 
Valley Rd, RD1, 
Upper Hutt 

S93.8 Support in part The submitter requests the deletion of the 
rules and standards related to Forestry and 
rely on Resource Management (National 
Environmental Standards for Plantation 
Forestry) Regulations 2017.  While the 
request is appropriate, the 2017 regulations 
have been amended by the NES for 
Commercial Forestry Amendment 
Regulations 2023 and reference to the latest 
NES should be referenced in PC50. 

Allow submission S93.8, subject to referring to 
the Resource Management (National 
Environmental Standards for Commercial 
Forestry) Amendment Regulations 2023. 

Submitter 124: 
Allan Kelly 
1368 Akatarawa 
Road, RD2 

S124.5 Support in part The submitter requests vehicle movements 
from construction activities and commercial 
activities (forestry, infrastructure provision) 
to be excluded from TP-S9.  Such a request 
is supported as these activities have 
economic benefits and have short term 
effects that can be managed. 

Allow that part of submission S124.5 that 
requests vehicle movements from construction 
activities and commercial activities (forestry, 
infrastructure provision) to be excluded from TP-
S9. 

Submitter 124: 
Allan Kelly 
1368 Akatarawa 
Road, RD2 

S124.10 Support The submitter requests an amendment to 
GRUZ-S2 that relates to setbacks to a forest 
as the current drafting could sterilise new 
building/building platforms in forest land.  
Such a request is supported as it represents 
sound planning practice and would and 

Allow submission S124.10. 
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achieve the sustainable management 
purpose of the RMA. 

Submitter 124: 
Allan Kelly 
1368 Akatarawa 
Road, RD2 

S124.11 Support The submitter opposes GRUZ-S14 which 
requires a self-sufficient potable water 
supply with a minimum volume of 38,000L 
and a domestic fire sprinkler system 
connected to a firefighting water supply.  
The submitter’s opposition is supported as 
the proposed requirements are too 
prescriptive and impractical – the 
requirement is not linked to the need (i.e. 
size of building); only allows for one hazard 
management approach (sprinklers), and 
appears to require a 38,000L tank for 
potable water and a 7,000L fire volume for 
the fire sprinkler system.. 

Allow submission S124.11 and amend GRUZ-
S14 as follows (add red text; delete strikeout): 

1. Each residential unit that is not connected 
to Council’s reticulated water supply, and is 
not located within the maximum permissible 
distance to the required number of fire 
hydrants as described in SNZ PAS 4509:2008, 
must have the following installed:  

a. a self-sufficient potable water supply 
with a minimum volume of 
38,000L; and that provides a minimum 
of two months potable supply based on 
the average daily water consumption, 
determined by the number of 
occupants, the number of bedrooms 
and type of sanitary fixtures. The 
supply must be tested and/or treated 
to meet safe drinking water standards. 

b.i) a domestic fire sprinkler system in 
accordance with NZS 4541:2013 that is 
connected to a firefighting water 
supply (7,000L tank) in accordance with 
the New Zealand Fire Service 
Firefighting Water Supplies Code of 
Practice SNZ PAS 4509:2008.” OR 
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b.ii) a standalone 45,000L tank or 
volume as per SNZ PAS 4509:2008. 

Submitter 161: John 
Martin 
113 Karaiki Way, 
5371 

S161.1 Oppose The submitter requests that PC50 and rural 
development be revoked.  Such a request is 
unnecessary, is contrary to the NPS-UD and 
does not achieve the sustainable 
management purpose of the RMA. 

Disallow submission S161.1. 

Submitter 168: 
Wellington 
Electricity Lines Ltd 
PO Box 31049, 
Lower Hutt 5040 

S168.5 Support The submitter requests a new Controlled 
Activity performance standard for 
subdivision (SUB-RUR-S1) to ensure the sub 
transmission network is recognised and 
protected.  Such a request is supported as it 
represents sound planning practice and 
would and achieve the sustainable 
management purpose of the RMA.  

Allow submission 168.5. 

Submitter 172: 
Greater Wellington 
Regional Council 
PO Box 11646, 
Wellington 6011 

S172.1 Oppose The submitter requests a reduction in the 
extent of new rural lifestyle zoning based on 
a review of potential flood and slope 
stability hazards.  This request provides no 
indication of where this reduction should be 
or reasons why the provisions of PC50 will 
not address the flood and slope stability 
hazards they are concerned about.  Such a 
request is opposed as it would not achieve 
the sustainable management purpose of the 
RMA. 

Disallow submission S172.1. 

Submitter 172: 
Greater Wellington 
Regional Council 

S172.4 Oppose The submitter requests the inconsistencies 
between the urban extent of PC50 and the 
planned urban areas in proposed PC1 to the 
NRP be resolved – there is a risk PC50 

Disallow submission 172.4. 
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PO Box 11646, 
Wellington 6011 

enables small amounts of urban 
development that will be prohibited under 
Proposed PC1 to the NRP.  The request is 
opposed as there are submissions to 
Proposed PC1 to the NRP that challenges 
the urban extent prepared by GWRC and 
the prohibition of discharges associated 
with new unplanned greenfield 
development.  Furthermore, the maps 
notified in PC1 to the NRP do not accurately 
reflect the amended changes to the FDS 
made in 2024.  Such a request is contrary to 
the NPS-UD and does not achieve the 
sustainable management purpose of the 
RMA. 

Submitter 172: 
Greater Wellington 
Regional Council 
PO Box 11646, 
Wellington 6011 

S172.8 Oppose The submitter requests amendments to 
SUB-RUR-P1 to remove operative direction 
regarding earthworks and natural elements, 
and place significant emphasis on rural 
character and amenity values.  The request 
is opposed as it is considered the notified 
policy is appropriate, and the amendments 
requested are contrary to the NPS-UD and 
does not achieve the sustainable 
management purpose of the RMA.  

Disallow submission S172.8. 

Submitter 172: 
Greater Wellington 
Regional Council 
PO Box 11646, 
Wellington 6011 

S172.18 Oppose The submitter requests an amendment to 
GRUZ-P7 – Plantation Forestry by amending 
reference in Clause 1 from ‘significant 
indigenous vegetation’ to ‘indigenous 
biodiversity’.  The request is opposed as it is 

Disallow submission S172.18. 
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considered the notified policy is 
appropriate, and the amendments do not 
achieve the sustainable management 
purpose of the RMA. 

Submitter 172: 
Greater Wellington 
Regional Council 
PO Box 11646, 
Wellington 6011 

S172.20 Oppose The submitter requests amendments to 
GRUZ-S6 and GRUZ-R2 providing for 
Plantation Forestry as a permitted activity – 
seek reclassifying of GURZ-R2 as a 
controlled or RDA (with matters of control 
or discretion over the areas in GRUZ-S7) or 
amend GRUZ-S6 to incorporate areas in 
amended GRUZ-P7 (submission S172.18 
above).  The request is opposed as the 
managing of adverse effects from Plantation 
Forestry should be through the Resource 
Management (National Environmental 
Standards for Commercial Forestry) 
Amendment Regulations 2023, and the 
policies and rules managing plantation 
forestry should be deleted from PC50. 

Disallow submission S172.20 and delete the 
rules and standards related to Forestry and 
rely on Resource Management (National 
Environmental Standards for Commercial 
Forestry) Amendment Regulations 2023 as 
sought by submitter 93 (discussed above). 

Submitter 172: 
Greater Wellington 
Regional Council 
PO Box 11646, 
Wellington 6011 

S172.37 Oppose The submitter requests an amendment to 
RLZ-P4 – Plantation Forestry by amending 
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

Disallow submission S172.37. 
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Submitter 183: 
Waka Kotahi/NZ 
Transport Agency 
44 Bowen Street, 
Thorndon, 
Wellington 6011 

S183.6 Support in 
part/Oppose in 
part 

The submitter seeks new reverse sensitivity 
rules and standards in the Noise Chapter, as 
per Attachment 1 to their submission.  
While the new noise requirements are 
appropriate for activities adjacent to 
regionally significant infrastructure (i.e. 
State highways; Railway network), they are 
not necessary or appropriate for internal 
local roads in new subdivisions.  The new 
provisions are supported if they are 
amended to only apply to regionally 
significant infrastructure. 

Allow submission S183.6 subject to amending 
proposed Noise-R4 and Noise-S7 to apply only 
to regionally significant infrastructure (i.e. 
State highways and the railway network). 

Submitter 183: 
Waka Kotahi/NZ 
Transport Agency 
44 Bowen Street, 
Thorndon, 
Wellington 6011 

S183.7 Oppose in part The submitter requests amendment to SUB-
RUR-P4 – Appropriate Subdivision by 
including a new Clause 5. ‘avoid adverse 
traffic effects on the surrounding transport 
network’.  The requirement to ‘avoid’ 
adverse effects is opposed as this does not 
provide for appropriate remedying or 
mitigation of adverse effects, as provided by 
the RMA. 

Disallow that part of S183.7 (i.e. Clause 5) that 
requires adverse traffic effects on the 
surrounding transport network to be avoided, 
or allow the request subject to the following 
amendment (add red text; delete strikeout) 
Clause 5. ‘avoid, remedy or mitigate adverse 
traffic effects on the surrounding transport 
network’. 

Submitter 183: 
Waka Kotahi/NZ 
Transport Agency 
44 Bowen Street, 
Thorndon, 
Wellington 6011 

S183.14 Oppose in part  The submitter requests amendment to 
GRUZ-P1 – Appropriate Subdivision by 
amending Clause 4. To ‘avoid’ adverse effect 
on the safety and efficiency of the transport 
network.  The requirement to ‘avoid’ 
adverse effects is opposed.  The wording of 
the policy was to ‘not compromise’ the 
efficiency of the transport network, and 
while this is considered appropriate, it 

Disallow that part of S183.14 (i.e. Clause 4) 
that requires adverse traffic effects on the 
surrounding transport network to be avoided, 
or allow the request subject to the following 
amendment (add red text) 
Clause . ‘will not compromise the safety and 
efficiency of the transport network’. 
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would be acceptable to amend the 
requirement to include ‘safety’ . 

Submitter 186: Fire 
and Emergency 
New Zealand 
C/- Beca, PO Box 
3942, Wellington 
6140 

S186.2 
 

Neutral/Oppose 
in part 

The submitter requests amendments to TP-
S10 that deletes Clause 2 and replaces it 
with new access provisions to accommodate 
fire and emergency services.   While neutral 
on the amendments requested, some 
clarification of how these standards apply is 
required in order to make them practicable 
and effective. 

Allow submission S186.2 subject to the 
following amendments to Clauses 2 and 2(a) 
and 2(d) (add red text; delete strikeout) are 
sought to clarify when the requirements apply: 

2. Rights of ways, private accessways and legal 

access lots, shall provide for the following 

(when the “hardstand” has to be accessed via 

the right of way, private accessway or legal 

access lots, due to the fire hazard being more 

than 75m from the Fire Appliance). 

(a) An access (sealed) width of no less 
than 4 metres. 

(d) Where applicable, be designed with 
additional width necessary to 
accommodate the tracking curve of a 
12.6 metre long rigid emergency 
service vehicle with a minimum of a 
500mm buffer clearance (as per RTS 
18) each side of the vehicle; 

Submitter 186: Fire 
and Emergency 
New Zealand 
C/- Beca, PO Box 
3942, Wellington 
6140 

S186.9 
 

Neutral/oppose 
in part 

The submitter requests amendments to 
SUB-RUR-S3 that amends Clause 2 and 
replaces it with new access provisions to 
accommodate fire and emergency services.   
While neutral on the amendments 
requested, some clarification of how these 

Allow submission S186.9, subject to the 
following amendments to Clauses 2(a) and 2(d) 
(add red text; delete strikeout) are sought to 
clarify when the requirements apply: 
2. All accessways and manoeuvring areas 

shall be formed and surfaced in 

accordance with the Code of Practice for 
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standards apply is required in order to make 
them practicable and effective. 

Civil Engineering Works, and  have 

(a) An access (sealed) width of no less 
than 4 metres (when the “hardstand” 
has to be accessed via accessway, due 
to the fire hazard being more than 
75m from the Fire Appliance). 

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

S186.18 
 

Neutral/oppose 
in part 

The submitter requests amendments to 
GRUZ-S1 that amends Clause 2 and replaces 
it with new access provisions to 
accommodate fire and emergency services.   
While neutral on the amendments 
requested, some clarification of how these 
standards apply is required in order to make 
them practicable and effective. 

Allow submission S186.18, subject to the 
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

Civil Engineering Works, and have 

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

S186.37 
 

Neutral/oppose 
in part 

The submitter requests amendments to RLZ-
S1 that amends Clause 2 and replaces it with 
new access provisions to accommodate fire 
and emergency services.   While neutral on 
the amendments requested, some 
clarification of how these standards apply is 
required in order to make them practicable 
and effective. 

Allow submission S186.37;  subject to the 
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

Submitter 195: 
Fairclough/de Raadt 
2401 Akatarawa 
Road, Upper Hutt 
5372 

S195.4 Support in part The submitter requests vehicle movements 
from construction activities and commercial 
activities (forestry, infrastructure provision) 
to be excluded from TP-S9.  Such a request 
is supported as these activities have 

Allow submission S195.4 
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economic benefits and have short term 
effects that can be managed. 

Submitter 195: 
Fairclough/de Raadt 
2401 Akatarawa 
Road, Upper Hutt 
5372 

S195.9 Support The submitter requests an amendment to 
GRUZ-S2 that relates to setbacks to a forest 
as the current drafting could sterilise and 
new building/building platform in forest 
land.  Such a request is supported as it 
represents sound planning practice and 
would and achieve the sustainable 
management purpose of the RMA. 

Allow submission S195.9 

Submitter 195: 
Fairclough/de Raadt 
2401 Akatarawa 
Road, Upper Hutt 
5372 

S195.10 Support The submitter opposes GRUZ-S14 which 
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

Allow submission S195.10 and amend GRUZ-
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
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b. i) a domestic fire sprinkler system in 
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

Submitter 196: 
Sharlene  
McDonald  
88 Katherine 
Mansfield Drive; 
Whitmans Valley 
Upper Hutt 

S196.1 Oppose The submitter does not agree with 
residential development within rural areas.  
Such a request is contrary to the NPS-UD 
and does not achieve the sustainable 
management purpose of the RMA. 

Disallow submission S196.1. 

Submitter 222: 
Mary Beth Taylor 
165A Katherine 
Mansfield Drive, 
Whitemans Valley 
RD1, Upper Hutt 
5371 

S222.5 Support in part The submitter requests the Traffic 
Generation estimates in TP-S9 to be 
upgraded in the General Rural and Rural 
Lifestyle Zones from 100 vehicle movements 
per day to 200 vehicle movements per day.  
The request is supported as this is a more 
realistic and appropriate trigger for the 
management of effects on the roading 
network. 

Allow submission S222.5 that requests the 
Traffic Generation estimates in TP-S9 to be 
upgraded in the General Rural and Rural Lifestyle 
Zones from 100 vehicle movements per day to 200 
vehicle movements per day. 
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Suzanne Rushmere
Sent: Wednesday, 10 July 2024 3:06 pm
To: Steve Taylor
Subject: FW: GTC / UHCC / Abley catch up re landuse assumptions
Attachments: Scenario Summary Sheet.pdf

 
 

From: Mat Collins   
Sent: Thursday, February 15, 2024 11:50 AM 
To: Mat Collins ; Alan.kerr  phernne.tancock  
phil.peet ; Regan Toogood ; Dave Smith ; 
Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz>; chris@rmaexpert.co.nz; michael.hall  
Subject: GTC / UHCC / Abley catch up re landuse assumptions 
 
Hi all, my brief minutes from the meeting today along with the modelling summary that was shared on screen. 
Please reply all with any corrections/clarifications. 
 
 
Mat Collins BEng (Hons) 
Associate Transportation Planner 

 
       

 

+   

 

Auckland + Wellington + Christchurch 

 

abley.com 

 

Be inspired - sign up now! 

 
 

 
  
 
 
  

GTC / UHCC / Abley catch up re landuse assumptions 
Thursday, 15 February 2024 
11:02 am 

GTC / UHCC / Abley catch up re landuse assumptions 

Thu, 15 Feb, 11:00 am - 12:00 pm 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Link to Outlook Item 

Invitation Message 

Participants (9) 

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a) 7(2)(a) 7(2)(a)
7(2)(a)7(2)(a)7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)
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 Mat Collins (Meeting Organizer) 
 Alan Kerr (Accepted Meeting) 
 Phernne Tancock (Accepted Meeting) 
 Phil Peet (Accepted Meeting) 
 Regan Toogood (Accepted Meeting) 
 Dave Smith 
 Suzanne Rushmere (Accepted Meeting) 
 Chris Hansen (Accepted Meeting) 
 Michael Hall (Accepted Meeting) 

  

Notes 
 DS confirms that the UHCC transport model has been updated. Future land use assumptions for scenarios 

have been determined by UHCC 
DS gave an overview of the 3 Scenarios modelled, 3 step model with no mode shift 

 SR suggests that 
o Scenario 1 is a starting point for assessing Southern Growth Area 
o Scenario 2/3 are based on Council estimates for development areas, may not align with Guildford 

Timber intent 
 SR confirms that all Scenarios account for MDRS, with uplift added to Greenfield Development Areas plus 

some growth spread over existing urban, with a sense check to adjust for areas with no / more growth 
might be feasible. 

 PT asks if SR can provide more detail on growth assumptions for Scenario 1.  
 Action - SR will check internally if growth assumptions and model details can be shared. 
 DS advises that the UHCC Transport Model is strategic, more detailed assessment using SIDRA is advised. 
 AK queried trip generation assumptions. DS confirmed that this is based on existing Census data. Based on 

vehicle ownership and veh/HH. Existing good access to public transport is reflected in existing traffic 
movements, the model has had calibration/validation of the transport model against observed traffic 
movements. 

 DS confirmed that Abley can calibrate the model based on requests from PP/AK. 
 SR confirms that the transport model is UHCC's best attempt at incorporating PC49 (new road connection to 

SGA) and MDRS/IPI. The model is suitable as a start point for Guildford to prep evidence from. 
  
  
  

  
Created with OneNote. 



 

Scenario 1; High Infill, Low Greenfields (Indicated preferred option): 
■ No Southern Growth Area 
■ No Gillespies. 

Scenario 2; Low Infill, High Greenfields: 
■ Half (approximately) the infill rate of Scenario 1 
■ All greenfield developments included. 

Scenario 3; Low Infill, High Greenfields: 
■ Identical to Scenario 2, but St Pats & Southern Growth Area start development 4 years earlier. 

Table 1: Dwelling assumptions by key development area and Scenario 

  

Greenfield 
Projects: 

Capacities: Scenario 1 
Start Year 

Scenario 1 
End Year 

Scenario 2 
Start Year 

Scenario 2 
End Year 

Scenario 3 
Start Year 

Scenario 3 
End Year 

Trentham 
PDA 

860 2028 2032 2028 2032 2028 2032 

St Patricks 600 2030 2037 2030 2037 2026 2033 

Kingsley 
Heights 

250 2032 2036 2032 2036 2032 2036 

Canon Point 400 2029 2036 2029 2036 2029 2036 

Gabites 220 2025 2034 2025 2034 2025 2034 

Southern 
Growth Area 

1500 x x 2030 2053 2026 2049 

Gillespies 1000 x x 2034 2053 2034 2053 
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Figure 1: Dwelling assumptions over time, by Scenario 



 

 
Figure 2: Growth locations 

 
 

Figure 3: TRACKS model network, showing zone connectors for Southern Growth Area 
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Let's Korero
Sent: Thursday, 2 May 2024 8:49 pm
To: Emily Thomson
Subject: FW: GTC Submission on Draft LTCP
Attachments: GTC Submission on UHCC LTP24 FINAL .pdf

 
 

From: Phernne Tancock   
Sent: Thursday, May 2, 2024 8:23 PM 
To: Let's Korero <letskorero@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Cc: Michael Hall  Craig Martell  
Subject: GTC Submission on Draft LTCP 
 
Please find attached a submission of Guildford Timber Company Ltd on the Draft LTCP. 
I would be grateful if you could confirm receipt.  
Kind regards, 
Phernne,  
 

 
  
M      

     
W    www.harbourchambers.co.nz 
  
Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential and subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use, dissemination, 
distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this email in error, please notify us immediately at Harbour Chambers on (04) 4992684 quoting the
email address to which it has been sent and then erase all copies of the message and attachments. Please note that the sender does not accept any responsibility for viruses and it is your responsibility to 
scan or otherwise check this email and any attachments. Please consider the environment before printing this email. 
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Upper Hutt City Council 
Private Bag 907 
UPPER HUTT 5140 
Via email: letskorero@uhcc.govt.nz 
 
 
02 May 2024 
 
 
Dear Long Term Plan team, 
  
  
RE: SUBMISSION ON THE UPPER HUTT CITY COUNCIL LONG TERM PLAN 2024-2034 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit on behalf of the Guildford Timber Company Limited 
on the Draft Upper Hutt City Council Long Term Plan 2024 -2034. 
 
GTC congratulations the Council on the work undertaken to prepare the Draft LTCP and its 
commitment to providing quality infrastructure to service the community despite a challenging 
financial and policy environment.  
 
Overall GTC supports the  direction of the LTCP and its submission has focused on suggested 
improvements, including as to how the LTCP can better provide for partnership between the 
development community and Council to deliver better outcomes for the District.  
 
GTC Board have considerable expertise in Developer Agreements under the LGA and would 
be happy to assist Council in providing a workable policy in that regard, it has included some 
suggestions in its submission.  
 
As you know GTC has recently made an application for Fast Track to develop the Southern 
Growth Area and its site at Kiln Street, if successful this may mean infrastructure is needed 
earlier than previously planned for. GTC wishes to work with Council to explore the best way 
to accommodate that.  
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Craig Martell  
Chair Guildford Timber Company Ltd.  

 
 
 
 
 

mailto:xxxxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
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SUBMISSION ON THE UPPER HUTT CITY COUNCIL LONG TERM PLAN 2024-2034 

 
 

1. Submitter Details: 
 
To: Upper Hutt City Council 
 
Name of Submitter: Craig Martell /Michael Hall  
 
Organisation (if on behalf of): The Guildford Timber Company Limited   
 
Email:   
 
Telephone:   
 
Hearings: We wish to be heard in support of our submission and our preferred hearing 
session is on the 14th May.  
 

2. OVERVIEW 
 

1. The Guildford Timber Company (GTC) is a family owned company that was 
established in 1926. It has a 90+ year history and association with Upper Hutt and, in 
particular, with Pinehaven and Silverstream. GTC owns approximately 330ha in the 
Silverstream/Pinehaven area. Its land comprises the steeper slopes surrounding 
existing residential areas, and the rolling ridges around the southern and eastern sides 
of the Pinehaven valley, extending over into Blue Mountains.  
 

2. Since 1928 the land has primarily been used as a commercial pine plantation. The 
submitters have called its forestry operation Silverstream Forest Ltd. Large areas of 
this mature production forest (pines) is due to be harvested in the short-medium term. 

 
3. The submitters intend to develop parts of its land for residential and mixed-use 

activities as a post-harvest use of the land. The submitters have been working towards 
the transitioning from forestry land to residential and mixed-use development with the 
Upper Hutt City Council (UHCC) for almost two decades. 

 
4. GTC has with Councils support recently applied for consideration as a Fast Track 

approval project for consents to develop Silverstream Forest Development comprising 
of  the Southern Growth Area, Spur (road and infrastructure corridor) and  Gateway 
development at 44 Kin Street. If that application is successful it expects to be in a 
position to commence development towards the end of 2025, early 2026.  

 
5. This would bring the timing of this development of the SGA and the provision of 

residential housing and supporting infrastructure forward, earlier than previously 
planned and allowed for by Council. GTC wishes to discuss with Council whether 
further amendment can be made to better provide for the Southern Growth Area in 
terms of the necessary new roading infrastructure and three waters infrastructure is 
planned for via this reiteration of the  LTCP.  

  

7(2)(a)
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3. SPECIFIC SUBMISSION POINTS 

 
6. Specific submission points are addressed in relation to the heading documents and 

topics below, with reference to the page number of that document.  
 

Consultation Document  
 

7. GTC thanks the Council for the opportunity to submit on the Long-Term Community 
Plan and offers its general support of the plan and effort that has gone into developing 
that plan. It appreciates the increased constrained financial position that the Council 
operates in and considers it does a good job of managing those priorities in a sensible 
way. 

 
Page 8 – Continuing to look after our infrastructure.  

 
8. GTC supports Councils commitment to continuing to look after and invest in 

infrastructure particularly where it supports growth needed for the suburb to thrive and 
ensuring that it is appropriately durable in the face of climate change related risks. It 
notes that Council should refer to the role of partnerships and working relationships 
that it has with the development community in Upper Hutt to create the best outcomes.  

 
Page 9 – Water Services  

 
9. GTC supports the continued spend on water services, including the planned 

expenditure of over 40% of Councils total spend being allocated to water services and 
infrastructure over the next 10 years. This is needed to support growth in Upper Hutt 
and ensure long term that our community thrives.  

 
Page 12 – Back to Basics and Core Activities 

 
10. The focus on Leadership, Community and Recreation, Water services (three waters), 

Land Transport, Sustainability and Planning and Regulatory are supported by GTC.  
 

Page 13 Impact on Rates and Page 42-43 
 
11. As a ratepayer GTC understands the basis for the rate increases proposed by Council 

and tentatively supports this for urban residential areas given the intention to focus this 
spend on core areas particularly infrastructure and water services. However, it notes 
that the rate increases may have different implications for residential and rural 
productive properties.  

 
12. GTC owns a large track of land for forestry and increase of rates on this land, (which 

is not serviced) would render an already economically unviable land even more 
uneconomic. (Further details below). It questions whether increases have been 
properly allocated.  

 
Main Infrastructure Challenges and Key Infrastructure projects that we’re 
planning to deliver (page 34 and 36) 

 
13. GTC supports the identified projects, including the Silverstream Bridge Replacement 

and 3 waters reservoir and storage upgrade and wastewater treatment renewal 
programme as these will be needed to support development of the Southern Growth 
Area. Further detailed submission points on this are set out below. GTC wishes to 
commence further discussions with Council due to the possibility of the development 
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timeframes for the Southern Growth Area occurring earlier than anticipated in the 
LTCP in the event it is included in the FTA Bill.  

 
Development Contributions Policy 2024.  

 
14. GTC are generally supportive of the Development Contributions Policy, given the 

emphasis on providing quality infrastructure for growth, noting that the proposed 
charges do represent a significant increase for Upper Hutt at a time when building 
costs are already high but are similar to new development contributions charged by 
other local authorities in the Region.  This does provide the flexibility and ability to 
obtain great outcomes for developments and the Council and encourages developer 
to invest in quality infrastructure. Further detailed comments are provided on this 
below.  

 
Infrastructure Strategy 2024-2025  

 
15. GTC are generally supportive of the direction and goals of Councils infrastructure 

Strategy and are glad to see that Council is not seeking to cut its infrastructure spend 
in response to fiscal measures as providing good infrastructure is key to providing 
healthy and resilient communities and encouraging growth in the district. GTC has 
specific comments and suggestions on the following matters: 

 
16. GTC  supports the commitment to building the bridge as it will contribute to enabling 

growth of the Southern Growth Area: 
 

 
 

17. GTC support the  inclusion of the 3 waters reservoir upgrades in the LTCP and 
Councils commitment to funding these, GTC submit that based on the planned 
enablement timeframe for the Southern Growth Area, GTC would support the 
commentary in the strategy  advancing these proposed works into years 4-10 subject 
to the detailed studies being completed. In particular the proposed Pinehaven 
Reservoir which is one of the required upgrades  should be brought forward to line up 
with the proposed Southern Growth Area establishment.  
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Significant assumptions forecasting  
 
18. GTC agrees with Council in (para 5) that central government changes to policy or 

legislation create uncertainty and risk to the LTCP. But GTC suggest that Council 
should also recognise and retain a sufficient degree of flexibility to be able to seize the 
opportunities in this space that may arise in terms of central government assistance 
with growth or infrastructure funding arrangements and be prepared to utilize these 
tools if provided.  

 
19. In terms of (8) Population Growth the Draft LTCP refers to the September 2023 HBA 

undertaken in support of the Future Development Strategy. GTC had the September 
2023 HBA assessed by its economic expert Mr Derek Foy, (Formative). A link to Mr 
Foy’s report is at Transfer – Dropbox Mr Foy considered that the HBA significantly 
under predicted growth for Upper Hutt in the medium to long term and raised a number 
of significant issues with the calculations and assumptions in the HBA which were not 
corrected.  

 
20. In short UHCC should prepare for more growth than is predicted in the HBA. It is a 

desirable place to live and continues to attract new residents.  
 

Financial Assessments  
 
21. Page 49. GTC considers that targeted rates for water supply, stormwater, wastewater 

services and the new land transport rates. But query how these would apply to multi-
unit developments.  Most Councils have further policy on the applicability of those for 
multi-unit housing.  

 
22. Page 51 GTC supports the explanation in page 51 in the Funding Impact Statement -

differential definitions in respect of rural land for the 2024-2025 rating categories as it 
helps address the situation of rural land owned in consecutive and adjacent parcels by 
a single landowner (subject to the exclusions below). 

 
Commercial Forestry – proposed changes in the LTP regarding the rates review 

 

https://www.dropbox.com/transfer/AAAAABOpxJUQR1QRhI2XbB93FqKjc0a1NJV_FQItcy4OmB5U2JpH_tk
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23. GTC is opposed to the introduction of the” new Forestry rating unit” proposed on page 
53. GTC. noting it appears to have been singled out and is significantly more than the 
rural levy. Forestry is a passive activity while the trees grow, only resulting in activity 
during harvesting every 20-30 years - results in less effects on roads etc than other 
activities for example farming with stock and tractors impacting on roads it is unclear 
what evidence is available to support the introduction of this rating unit.  

 
24. The proposed rates increase below makes it increasingly difficult to justify that forestry 

is a sustainable business under the current log price setting. Under the current setting 
it would mean there would be considerable pressure on managing the forest if log 
prices remain low as there is no return on logging at present given the timber prices. 
This could have significant impact on forestry operators in the Hutt who are coming 
under pressure. GTC has been unable to locate the evidence that Council refers to in 
the report below. It does not consider that this approach is based on evidence. There 
also does not seem to be the  understanding of forestry activities and benefits to the 
community forests provide (by way of informal recreation etc). 

 

 
  

 
  
 

For the same reasons GTC is opposed to the inclusion of the new Forestry unit at 
pages 7 and 8. Of the Statement of Proposal -Revenue and Financing Policy 2024.  

 
Development Contribution Policy and Financial Contribution Policy 2024  



7 
GTC Submission on the UHCC Long Term Plan 2024-2034 

 
25. As noted above GTC understands the basis for the increased development 

contributions at page 3 and 4 of the Policy summary documents and supports this. 
GTC makes the following suggestions: 
 

• There should be a reference to the Development Contributions Principles in 
s197B and s199 LGA (legal basis on which development contributions may be 
required). These core principles dictate the use, purpose, and rules for 
development contributions. This does not come across strongly enough in the 
Policy, which tends to refer to the schedules as the basis rather than the legal 
criteria.   

 
• Paragraph 2 - That Council consider whether financial contributions under 

the RMA are the most appropriate way of levying local related reserve and 
leisure facilities such as playgrounds. There is an alternative option open to 
Council of including these as development contributions under the ss205 and 
206 Local Government Act 2002 which allows Council to negotiate reserve and 
playgrounds and the like as part of Developer Agreements under the Local 
Government Act 2002, which provides flexibility for better outcomes for the 
community (particularly at a time when Council has to cut community facilities 
funding and investment). Alternatively, the policy should refer to options 
available to enter into agreements for land/reserve or development of facilities 
in lieu of reserve contributions as provided for in the RMA.  
 

• Para 9 – that Council consider whether it should include a definition of 
Equivalent House Hold Units (EHU) and consider whether there is an need 
to reduce Development Contributions for various types of residential units for 
example whether this should be allocated differently for tiny homes, retirement 
units, papakainga housing multi-unit houses, or granny flats many local 
authorities make these 0.5EHU or 0.8EHU based on expected reduced 
occupancy/ efficiencies and decrease exposure on more affordable housing 
options.  

 
• In terms of Liability for Development Contributions and Financial 

Contributions (para 15-19) there should be the addition of an option to apply 
and enter into a development agreement or reserve agreement, where a 
Development Agreement has been entered into this alters, reduces, or negates 
the need to pay development contributions or financial contributions. This 
section should be updated to include that.  

 
• When development contributions are levied. Para 20 –24 should in update 

the text of the Policy to provide flexibility at its discretion as to when financial 
contributions are made as timing of payment of these is often a feature of 
Development Agreements. 

 
• Assessment (para 25) notes that the Councils power to levy development 

contributions is closely linked to the provisions of the Local Government Act 
2002, this section should be reviewed against those sections to ensure that this 
is accurate.  

 
• Invoice timing and payment timing (para 34 and 36) may need to be 

amended to reflect the submission point about reserving some flexibility where 
timing of payment is part of the Developer Agreement, noting Council has a 
number of options i.e. withholding a s224 certificate if these are not paid.  
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• Determining infrastructure Credits (para 40 -47) are supported including the 

minor or small residents’ assessment agreement – with the suggested 
additions of categories for papakainga housing and tiny homes and guidance 
on how this will apply in multi-unit/ apartment situations.  

 
• Special Assessments (para 51 -55) GTC support the ability for a Special 

Assessment process but seek greater clarity on the circumstances when this 
may apply. The Development community need certainty in terms of likely levies 
and as currently worded could broadly apply. This should also be checked for 
consistency against the provisions of the Local Government Act 2002. 

 
• Limitations on Imposing Development Contributions (para 26 -77) GTC 

supports recognition of the limitations on when levies are not to be provided in 
s200 of the LGA and guards against double dipping in the Development 
Contributions Policy.  However, s200(2)-(10) are not provided for in the Policy 
and should be.  

 
• Para 77 bullet point 2 – clarification should be provided in terms of tiny homes 

and if these are an EHU. 
 

• Para 78 Request for Postponement – GTC supports this provision as it 
encourages development and provides for flexibility with project financing. This 
para should be cross referenced to the earlier text relating to invoice timing and 
payment in para 34 and 36. Suggest further amendment to include an addition 
for longer periods where Council has entered into a Private Development 
Agreement.  

 
• Para 82 Development Agreements GTC strongly supports the inclusion of 

Developer Agreements in the Policy, for both development contributions and 
financial contributions (reserves, recreational facilities and the like) this 
provides better outcomes for Council and community and encourages 
development of sustainable and quality new infrastructure and community 
assets. It is suggested that further information be provided in the Development 
Policy about Developer Agreements – either by setting out s207A-207F of the 
LGA or provide a specified process for this. The best development agreements 
arise from early discussions with the Council about infrastructure and parks at 
the planning phase of the development – rather than when the assessment for 
development contributions levies is received post consent.  GTC support the 
comment that a development agreement overrides the development 
contributions normally assessed as payable under the Policy. This should go 
wider in terms of the ability to also override financial contributions and 
inconsistent clauses in the Policy (noted throughout this submission). Where a 
Developer Agreement has been entered into the terms of that agreement 
override the Policy where there are inconsistencies.  

 
• Council may wish to consider fleshing this section out to provide a process to 

include: 
 

o The timing of a request, from either Council or a Developer to enter into 
an agreement, both sides need to set aside sufficient time for this to be 
worked out. 

o The level of information that an Applicant for a Developer Agreement 
needs to provide Council. 
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o A summary of some of the instances when Council may be prepared to 
consider or use a development agreement for example the list in s207C. 

o Clarification this can be for all or part of a development.  
o What a Developer Agreement can and cannot require. (for example 

s207E) 
o Emphasise the need for an all of Council approach across several 

teams to negotiate a successful result.  
o Detail how a request can be made. 
o Set out what information that request should include. 
o Who it is to be addressed to within Council? i.e. responsible teams/ 

people i.e CEO, Finance, Infrastructure teams.  
o Who has the overall discretion /decision making and how is that 

reached in terms of delegations etc.  
o What an agreement may involve, look like, and do. Who bears the cost 

of preparing that legal agreement and whether the Council wish to use 
standardised agreements.  

o GTC’s Board have experience in the use of Development Agreements 
and would be willing to assist Council with suggestions as to how this 
might be fleshed out to provide valuable guidance to both Staff and 
Developers as to how this would work in practice (if that were helpful). 

 
• Relationship between Financial contributions and Development 

Contributions (para 90 and bullet points may need some refining to better 
describe the relationship between growth and development contributions in the 
LGA.  
 

• Reserve and Leisure Facility Contribution (page 93) should include a cross 
reference to reference to para 82 Developer Agreements that include 
agreements relating to the provision of land for reserves and development of 
facilities on reserves (tracks, walkways, paths playgrounds and the like) this 
provides greater flexibility and allows Council the ability to provide key new 
community assets in lieu of cash where the opportunity arises.  
 

Reserves definition – Council should consider whether land for stormwater 
management function can also be a reserve, many of these definitions were set prior 
to hydraulic neutrality being a requirement for developments and it is possible to create 
attractive reserves that have dual functions in terms of mitigating flood hazard and for 
stormwater management purposes. While this may not always be the case the Council 
should reserve some discretion here.   
 
Other definitions should have the same definition as s197 LGA (interpretation 
relating to Development Contributions). 
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Chris Hansen <chris@rmaexpert.co.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 25 June 2024 3:10 pm
To: UHCC Planning
Cc: Phernne Tancock; Michael Hall
Subject: Fwd: Further submisision on Plan Change 50
Attachments: Craig Thorn Further submission PC50.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Hi   
 
I assume Council will be making a response to the submitter’s query below regarding the privacy of 
their further submission which is now a public document? 
 
Please advise accordingly. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Chris 
 
Chris Hansen 
RMA Planning Consultant/Company Director 
Chris Hansen Consultants Ltd 
220 Ross Road, RD7 
Whakamarama,Tauranga 3179 

 
  

 
 

Begin forwarded message: 
 
From: Craig Thorn  
Subject: Further submisision on Plan Change 50 
Date: 24 June 2024 at 3:21:56 PM NZST 
To: UHCC Planning <UHCC.Planning@uhcc.govt.nz>, chris@rmaexpert.co.nz 
 
To Whom it may concern, 
 
 
Please find attached a copy of our further submission on PC50. 
 
 
Please also supply a statement as to how Rmaexpert and GTC handle and store this 
information as it does include a reasonable amount of PPI, where it is stored, how it is 
stored, who has access to it and how long it will be kept for. 
 
https://www.business.govt.nz/risks-and-operations/it-risk-and-avoiding-
scams/protecting-customer-and-employee-information 
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--  
Craig Thorn 
 
 
25 Sierra Way 
RD1 
Upper Hutt 5371 
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Form 6 

Further Submission 

in opposition to a submission on notified proposed plan change to Upper Hutt City 

Council District Plan 
Clause 8  of Schedule 1, Resource Management Ac! /991 

Proposed Plan Change 50— Rural Chapter Review 

The closing date for further submissions is Wednesday, 26June2024, at 5pm 

To: Upper Hutt City Council 

Name of person making 
further submission: Craig Alexander Thorn 	  
[full name] 

This is a further submission in opposition to a submission on the following plan change 
proposed to the Operative District Plan for Upper Hutt (the proposal): 

Proposed Plan Change 50— Rural Chapter Review (PC50) 

I am a person who has an interest in the proposal that is greater than the interest the general 
public has because 

lam a resident of the Silverstream area, Sierra Way. 1 will be affected by the development on the 
hill because of traffic and other pressures on community resources. 

I oppose the submission of: 
• Guildford Timber Company Limited, Silverstream Forest Limited and the Goodwin Estate 

Trust (Submitter Number 162) 

The particular parts of the submission I oppose are: 

I object to the plan in whole as it should be a selffunded private plan change with all relevant 
information provided up front. I believe the Council and its officers should be acting at arms 
length until all information as required by a private plan change has been presented and 
reviewed by all concerned. I strongly oppos the ratepayers via council subsidising the GTC in 
its plan change. 

The reasons for my opposition are: 

I have seen insufficient information to be able to determine that ills good for the community. 



I believe that this should be a private plan change not a ratepayer funded plan change to the 
benefit of some private individuals. It appears to be a massive wealth transfer that normally 
would not be available to any other entity. I also strongly object to any shortcuts to normal 
planning that has not presented all information at the usual steps of a normal process. 

I seek that the whole of the submission be disallowed: 
The Submitter GTC 162 should be required by Council to fund and submit aprivate plan 
change. 

I wish to be heard in support of my further submission. 

If others make a similar submission, I will consider pres-' F g ajoi Ae  with them at a 
hearing. 

Signature of person making further submission/ 
(or person authorised to sign on behalf ofpers m ''further submission) 
(A signature is not required jfyou make your submission by electronic means.) 

Date 24 June 2024... 

Electronic address for service of person making further submission 

Email: . . .  

Telephone: . 

Postal address: 25 Sierra Way, RD], Upper Hutt. 

When a person or group makes a further submission on a Proposed Plan Change this is public information. By making 
a further submission your personal details, including your name and addresses, will be made publicly available under 
the Resource Management Act 1991. There are limited circumstances when your submission or your contact details 
can be kept confidential. If you consider you have reasons why your submission or your contact details should be 
kept confidential, please contact the Planning Team via email at xxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx. 

Deliver to: Upper Mutt Civic Centre, 838 - 842 Fergusson Drive, Upper Hutt 5019 
Post to: Planning (Policy Team, Upper Huff City Council, Private Bag 907, Upper Mutt 5140 
Scan and email to: planninguhcc.govt.nz   

Deliver to GTC's agent (Chris Hansen, RMA Planning Consultant): xxxxx@xxxxxxxxx.xx.xx  

A copy of your further submission must be served on the original submitter by emailing to GTC's 

agent (Chris Hansen) within 5 working days after it is served on Upper Huff City Council. 

Note to person making further submission 

7(2)(a)
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Please note that your submission (or part of your submission) may be struck out if the authority is satisfied 
that at least 1 of the following applies to the submission (or part of the submission): 

• it is frivolous or vexatious: 
• it discloses no reasonable or relevant case: 
• it would be an abuse of the hearing process to allow the submission (or the part) to be taken 

further: 
• it contains offensive language: 
• it is supported only by material that purports to be independent expert evidence, but has been 

prepared by a person who is not independent or who does not have sufficient specialised 
knowledge or skill to give expert advice on the matter 



13 May 2024

Hi Wayne and Geoff

Hereis thelist of points discussed at our meeting a few weeks ago. It was good to discuss

Guildford’s concerns; thank you for your willingness to investigate these. Guildford seeks to
continue the good working relationship it has with Council so appreciates you addressing
these. You askedfora list of questions/concerns that GTC had.

Plan Change 49-v1.

1. Commitment to continue to work together post-MoU:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

GTC understood that UHCC and GTC agreed to work together on a public plan

change to provide for access and rezoning of the SGA (Plan Change 49 -v1
and public rezoning of the SGA via plan Change 50). There was a draft term
of reference developed for the rezoning between Council and GTC, which
included sharing provisions in advance for comment and a no surprises

approach. This was confirmed by both Wayne and Geoff at the meeting. We

have also been informed by Wayne and previous GTC directors of the
commitment by UHCC to fund a public plan change for the rezoning. This

included plan change 49 and previously GTC land within PC50.

Despite the MoU coming to an end, there was a commitment and expectation

from both parties that the relationship and partnership/collaboration would
continue and that UHCC supported development of the SGA. This was
expressed in the letter from Council to GTC in October 2021 stating, “the
underlying intention to work constructively together to explore developmentin

the Southern Growth Area for the benefit of the city is unchanged”and in the
Council resolution, and we understand that was the genesis for Plan Change

49-v1.

UHCC continued to take steps towards this. One of the agreed items was for
UHCCto publicly notify plan change 49 -variation 1 to provide for a roading and
infrastructure corridor to support through the Spur Southern Growth Area, and
a rule frameworkto allow that to happen. GTC have been surprised by the lack
of collaboration on that plan change,given the intent to provide for a corridor
to the SGA.

While provision for these items was includedin the publicly notified version of
proposed plan change 49-v1, as discussed Council appears to have rapidly

departed from that position at every opportunity (even where these makelittle

sense). The wording recommended by Council by the time the hearing
resumedis available here (or labelled attachment1).

  nttosusww
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A few examples — Council’s recommended deletion of the “Support for the

development of the Southern Growth Area” in New Policy 6(2) Southern Growth
Area” from the proposed Policy framework and recent recommendation to

delete the rule framework that is needed to provide for a roading corridor

through the Spur (see Rule 15 and following as an example). GTC put up



(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(x)

considerable resources and evidence to support Council in its notified version

of the provisions.

This is still being heard, and the Council Officer's reply is due today —

(Monday 13 May). What is currently left is the “Natural Open Space Zoning’.

There is no reference to the need for development of roading corridor and
infrastructure to support development of Southern Growth Area in the Policy

framework and no intact rule framework to provide for a road orinfrastructure
across the whole spur (which GTC understood wasthe stated purposeof the

plan change). As currently proposed,it is hard to see how the recommended
rules do not provide for, let alone “enable” construction on the Spur. The

explanations provided by the Officer made no senseto us whatsoever. Relying

on otherrules in the plan does not enable a roading and infrastructure corridor

through the Spur.

GTC’s understanding is that the recommendations of the Reporting Officer in

Plan Change 49-v1 are reflective of “all of Council’s view” as it is Council
advancing the plan change, so GTC wassurprisedto learn that the Mayor and

CE were unawareof the extent these provisions had been walked back and
diluted to the point that the Officers suggested GTC just rely upon “the default

rule” (the rule that applies where the activity is not specifically provided

for). There was no need for the plan change if that was the outcome andit
would be considered inconsistent with the Natural Open Space zoning if

considered underthe default rules.

In the revised hearing UHCC’s ecology expert has recommendeda Significant

Natural Area apply to the entire extent of the Kiln Street end of the Spur, which

would preclude development of an accessroad from Kiln Street (see last page
of the pdf at the link above). This is despite Council previously being

comfortable with Dr Vaughan Keesing’s (Boffas) assessmentof the significant
indigenous vegetation on the Spur(for land swap and to inform the IAF design).

GTC called Dr Keesing as an expert as part of Plan Change 49 andheidentified

two main significant areas on thesite.

Council's expert has gone a lot further — it is unclear whether that is the

Council's view. It is hard to see, based on Council’s current recommendations,

how an infrastructure and roading corridor will be enabled (or even possible)

via plan change 49-v1 provisions now being advanced by Council.

As Craig asked at our meeting (and | discussed with Geoff last week) has
Council given any consideration to putting this plan change on hold or

withdrawing it because of the direction from Governmentthat SNAswill be put
on hold for three years in an urgent amendmentto the Bill (expected this

coming month)?

| would expect it would be sensible for the Council to put Plan Change 49-v1

“on hold”for the time being dueto:

(a) Minister Bishop’s letter to Council dated 29 April 2024 (copy attached

at 2) in which he advises of the Government’s intention to urgently
introduce amendments to the RMA to suspend the NPS-IB

requirements for the Council to identify new significant natural areas for
a period of three years, to give enough time for a review of how they
operate.



(xi)

(b) GTC has also made an application for fast track which, if successful,
means that a consent pathway will be taken rather than a planning

pathway. UHCChasprovided its supportfor this.

(c) Once greater certainty is available the plan change 49-v1 could be
resumedif needed. It does not make any sense for UHCCto seek to

“bake in” SNA provisions at the same time the Governmentis stopping

them.

(d) Thereis little to be gained by the parties, including GTC and Council,
incurring costs to argue this on appealatthis point.

In the circumstances, it questions whether UHCC advancing a plan change for
delineated one singles SNA in PC49atthis point in time is necessary, or a good idea
(particularly given the fact that the decision will be issues after Government’s Resource

Management AmendmentBill is introduced in the coming week or so, which will
suspend the operation of relevant parts of the NPS-IB).

Plan Change 50

2. We have been liaising with the planning team about GTC’s request to rezone the
Southern Growth Area via submission as part of plan change 50. We understood,

based on previous discussions with Wayne, that Council was prepared to share the

costs of that (given that they were going to need to assess GTC’s request as part of
its s42A report on that anyway and previous agreement that Council would fund a
public plan changefor the SGA). To date GTChasliaised with Suzanne Rushmere on
ecology and traffic effects as part of its plan change 50 proposal and at present we
have been advisedthattraffic and ecology costs would need to be met exclusively by
GTC.It would be good to resolvethis.

Access — Blue Mountains Road

3. Access across Council owned land on Blue Mountains Road. | have enclosed at 3 an

email chain about this. GTC own several sites on Blue Mountains Road that they wish
to developfor residential land and GTC has soughtto obtain an easement from Council
who had a paperroad next door. GTC wereinitially told that the Council held this as a
paperroad and then wererecently told that it was now a recreational reserve andthat
public notification under the Reserve Act would be required to obtain an
easement. The access that GTC is seeking has long been used asa forestry route.It
would be good to ascertain how this land is held and the process to obtain access —
particularly given that neither of you were awareof the paper road land being converted

into reserve land.

Legal Status of Spur Land

4, GTC noticed that on the UHCC website for Plan Change 49-variation 1 thereis a link

to a legal opinion obtained by Buddle Findlay and other correspondencereferring to
meetings between UHCCgeneral counsel and Forestand Bird relating to (in summary)
whether the Spur land should have been gazetted as a reserve in the 1980s.

The correspondenceincluded in that material appears to suggest this there may have

been proceedings pending or an ongoing threat/live legal issue between Forest and

Bird and UHCC and/or an agreement to avoid that? Thelink to that information on
Council's websiteis:



nttps://www,upperhuttcity.com/files/assets/public/w1/distictplan/pc49/buddie-findiay-

information-from-jason-durry-1.odf or attached at 4 starting at about page 3 with an
email between presumably Forest and Bird and Guy Smith dated 22 April 2022, (noting

Helen was copied into this advice by Guy on 13 April and appears to have attended

those meetings as well). It refers to the legal opinion by Buddle Findlay being released
to Silverstream Railway, Forest and Bird and Save our Hills (page 17 of that PDF

bundle). Page 22 includes an email that refers to Helen and Guy meeting Forest and

Bird to discuss concerns and refers to actions that UHCC undertook to do in response

to that but does not say what the actions were.

6. GTC wishes to understand from Council the extent of that legal issue and any action

that has been threatened or agreed with those parties and Council because ofthat

dispute, or whetherit has undertaken actions that are ongoing. GTC wassurprised not

to have been informed of this by Council. GTC has a greaterinterest than the public in

ensuring that there are no legal constraints in relation to this land that would prevent

the use of the Spur for an access corridor and wishes to better understand whether

Council considers this is an issue. GTC would obviously be a party to any legal

proceedings should they eventuate.

7. As both Council and/or Forest and Bird and other parties involved have submitted
the material into a public forum andit is now up on the Council website, both parties

have waived any confidentiality/privilege that existed in that material that would prevent
the sharing of this information with GTC (as a party impacted byit).

Our team very much wish to continue the good faith and collaborative relationship that the

parties have enjoyed dating. We hope that these provide some background to GTC questions
that allows Council to investigate these further and get things back ontrack.

Craig Martell and Phernne Tancock
7(2)(a)



Appendix A. Recommended amendmentsto Variation 1

The provisionsin blue_are the notified provisions (Strikethrough for deletions and underlined for

additions) and coloured red and greenfor further amendments recommendedin this report.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

New RezoneSilverstream Spur as Natural Open Space Zone

Zoning

New Biodiversity Offset

Definition . . . . 4. oe
means the sameasin the National Policy Statement for Indigenous Biodiversity in

box below:

biodiversity offset means a measurable conservation outcome that meets the

requirements in Appendix 3 [of the NPS-IB] and results from actions that are

intended to:

(a) redress any more than minor residual adverse effects on indigenous

biodiversity afterall appropriate avoidance, minimisation, and remediation

measures have been sequentially applied: and

(b) achieve a net gain in type, amount, and condition of indigenous biodiversity

compared to thatlost.

Add an Accidental Discovery Protocol for earthworks on the Silverstream Spur

Earthwork —— . - : ; ;
s Appendix 2. In the event of an “accidental discovery” of archaeological matter including

1 human remains the following steps shall be taken:

j) Allwork within the vicinity of the site will cease immediately.

k) The site manager will shut down all activity, leave the site area and

unearthed archaeological material in-situ and advise the relevant person

(eg project manager, consultant, landowner).

1) The relevant person will take immediate steps to secure the area of the

site to ensure the archaeological matter remains undisturbed. Work may

continue outside of the site area.

m) The relevant person will ensure that the matter is reported to the Regional

Archaeologist_at Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga and to any

required statutory agencies or Mana Whenua authorities, if this has not

already occurred.

n) The relevant person will ensure that a qualified archaeologist is appointed

to ensure all archaeological matter is dealt with appropriately, and on the

advice of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Regional

Archaeologist.

0) Inthe event of the material being of Maori origin the relevant person will

ensure that Mana Whenua authorities are contacted in order that

appropriate cultural processes are implemented to remedy or mitigate any

to
p) Any and all visits to the project site must be cleared by the relevant person.

It_is advisable that_a list of authorised personnel to visit the site is

maintained.

q) The relevant person will ensure that the necessary people shall be

available to meet and guide representatives of Heritage New Zealand
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New

Policies

Pouhere Taonga and mana Whenua representatives, and any other party

with statutory responsibilities, to the site.

r) Works in the site area shall not recommence until authorised by the

relevant_person who will consult with Heritage New Zealand Pouhere

Taonga staff, mana Whenua authorities the NZ Police (and any other

authority with statutory responsibility) to ensure that all statutory and

cultural requirements have been met.

s) All parties will work towards operations recommencing in the shortest

possible timeframes while ensuring that any archaeological sites

discovered are protected until a decision regarding their appropriate

management is made, and as much information as possible is gained.

Appropriate management could include recording or removal of

archaeological material.

 

NOSZ-P6: Silverstream Spur Infrastructure

Enable infrastructure including a transport corridor within the Silverstream Spur

(Pt Sec 1 SO 34755, Parcel ID: 3875189) at_an appropriate scale, design, and

location to

1. Provide for a range of passive recreation and future development

opportunities where the effects of such developoment_are managed in

accordance with NOSZ-P7 and:

2.ofrestore and

enhancethe biodiversity of the Silverstream Spur.

 

NOSZ-P7: Silverstream Spur Significant Natural Area

fromdevelopmenten Protect the biodiversity values within the

identified Silverstream Spur-SignificantSignificant Natural Areas shallbe by

requiringadverse effects from development to be:

(a) avoided where practicable; and

(bo) where adverse effects cannot be demonstrably avoided, they are

mitigated where practicable; and

(c) where adverse effects cannot be demonstrably mitigated, they are

remedied where practicable; and

(d) where more than minor residual adverse effects cannot be demonstrably

avoided, minimised, or remedied, biodiversity offsetting is provided where

possible; and

(e) if biodiversity offsetting is not appropriate, the developmentitself is

avoided.

 

New Rule  NOSZ-R15: Road and associated network utility infrastructure, including storage

tanks or reservoirs on the Silverstream Spur Significant Natural Area (Pt Sec 1 SO

34755, Parcel ID: 3875189)

1. Activity Status: GON DIS

Where:

( i — wine
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Standards

New Rule
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Removal of indigenous vegetation on the Silverstream Spur Significant Natural

Area (Pt Sec 1 SO 34755, Parcel ID: 3875189) 1. 

Activity Status: RDIS

Council shall restrict its discretion to the following matters:

. Landscaping.

Earthworks and accidental discovery.

1

2)

3. Protection of any special amenity feature.

4. Effects on indigenous biodiversity in the identified Silverstream Spur

Significant Natural Area.

 

5. Tangata whenua values

6. Effects on ecological values.

7. Measures to avoid, remedy or mitigate potential adverse effects 
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Map

  

Silverstream Spur Significant Natural Area identified on the map as an overlay as

shown below

SILVERSTREAM SPUROPERATIVE DISTRICT PLAN ZONING SILVERSTREAM SPUR PROPOSED PC49 ZONING

(© Part Section 1 SO 34755

_ General Residential Zone

GeneralRural Zone ©) Part Section 1 $0. 34755
GeneralIndustrial Zone Silverstream SpurNatural Area

Open Space Zone Open Space Zone

Special Purpose Zone © Natural Open Space Zone

i PUTt edt ita ’ ;
a) eeel 5 UHCCSpatial Team 2023 
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Recommendedrevised extent of the Silverstream Spur Significant Natural Area following expert

ecological evidence. Area recommendedfor removalis shown in yellow and area recommended

for retention is shown in orange. (Map legend not updated to reflect name change).

 

 

PC49 VARIATION 1 NATURAL AREA - PROPOSED EXTENT
   

J PCAS-Variation 1 - Natural Area - Proposed

PC49-Variation 1 - Natural Area - Current

DD PC49 -Variation 1 - Zone - Natural OpenSpace 
| Uise ‘ies | oO 0 100 200 300 400 Metres Scale at A4; 1:5,000

Upper Hatt Cty Counelt UMCC Spatial Tram, March 2024
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Hon Chris Bishop

Minister of Housing

Minister for Infrastructure

Minister Responsible for RMA Reform

Minister for Sport and Recreation

Leader of the House

Associate Minister of Finance

 

30 April 2024

Téna koe,

| am writing to provide an update on the Government’s work to amend the Resource
Management Act 1991 (RMA).

| have previously announcedthat this Government is approaching resource management

reform in three phases. Phase oneof the reform concludedwith the repeal of the Natural

and Built Environment Act and Spatial Planning Act in late December 2023, while phase two

includesthe introduction of the fast-track approvals regime, and some targeted changesto

the existing RMA. Phasethree will involve developing a long-term solution to replace the

RMA.

Last week, Agriculture Minister Todd McClay, Associate Environment Minister Andrew

Hoggard and | announcedthefirst of two bills which will make some targeted changesto the

Resource ManagementAct. Thefirst bill will focus on amendments that need to be

progressed quickly in order to provide certainty to industry, councils and resource consent

applicants. The secondbill will be more substantive and is expected to be introduced to

Parliamentlater in 2024.

The proposed changesin the first RMA AmendmentBill will:

e Makeit clear that, while the National Policy Statement for Freshwater Management
(NPS-FM)is being reviewed and replaced, consent applicants no longer need to
demonstrate their proposedactivities follow the Te Mana 0 te Wai hierarchy of
obligations, as set out in the NPS-FM.

e amendstock exclusion regulations in relation to sloped land
e repeal intensive winter grazing regulations
e align the consenting pathwayfor coal mining with the pathway for other mining

activities in the National Policy Statement for Indigenous Biodiversity (NPS-IB), NPS-
FM, and the National Environmental Standards for Freshwater (NES-F)

e suspend the NPS-IB requirement for councils to identify new significant natural areas
for three years

e speed up the process to make or amend national direction, such as national policy
statements and national environmental standards.

Further detail on someof these proposals is set out below.

Farm regulations

Cabinet has agreed changesto stock exclusion, in certain circumstances, and winter grazing

regulations representing a move to a morerisk-based, catchment-focused approach.

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +6448176802 | c.bishop@ministers.govt.nz



Stock exclusion changes would remove the low slope map and allow regional-councils and

individual farmers to decide where stock need to be excluded, basedonrisk.

The Governmentis proposing to removeall national intensive winter grazing regulations in

order to reduce compliance costs for farmers. Regional councils would determine if and how

the activity should be managed.

It is our intention that freshwater farm plans will provide an effective way to manage the

impacts of farming activities on freshwater, including intensive winter grazing and stock

exclusion, in a risk-based and practical way.

The Governmenthasrecently announced that we will improve the freshwater farm plan

system to makeit more cost effective and practical for councils and farmers.In the areas

wherethe freshwater farm plan rollout has started, we may look at whethercurrent

requirements to complete a plan within 18 months could be paused while improvements are

developed.

Other proposed changes

Hon Shane Jones announcedlast week the Government's intention to align the consenting

pathway for coal mining with the pathway for other extractive activities. This will give the

industry certainty and confidence, and whenthebill is enacted a wider range of consent

applications for coal mineswill be able to be made.

Thefirst RMA AmendmentBill will also give effect to previously announced changesto

suspend the direction to councils to identify new significant natural areas in accordance with

the NPS-IB for a period of three years, to give enough time for a review of how they operate.

The bill will also speed up the process to make or amendnational direction, whichis

currently unnecessarily onerous, costly, and takestoo long.

Next steps

The Government expects to introduce the first RMA AmendmentBill to Parliament in late

May 2024.It will likely be enacted in late 2024.

Corkbef
Hon Chris Bishop
Minister Responsible for RMA Reform



Caroline Cheetham

From: Phernne Tancock

Sent: Friday, 10 May 2024 11:54 am

To: Caroline Cheetham

Subject: FW:discussion around paperroad

Attachments: J730 Driveway Concept 02 Nov 2023.pdf

Caroline -please print email and attachment to go with notes.

From:Brett Latimer <Brett.Latimer@uhcc.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, November30, 2023 8:52 AM

To: Michael Hall

Cc: Patrick Hanaray <patrick.hanaray@uhcc.govt.nz>; Tim Rillstone <

Subject: RE: discussion around paperroad

Thanks for that Micheal, | have referred this request to our General Council for guidance on how this could be

achieved. | do however foresee many problems around this proposal especially regarding public access. By the way

the land is actually reserve land not unformedroad, and you are probably right the land adjacentis probably

Defence land. They only found this out when wedid the road stopping process, | will try and find confirmation of

ownership.

Anywayafter General Council has replied to my request| will get back to you.

Brett Latimer

Parks and Reserves Manager

Te Kaunihera o
Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta
Upper Hutt City Council

Te Kaunihera o Te AwaKairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council

838 — 842 FergussonDrive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt, 5140, New Zealand

T: +64 4 5272124 | M: +64 27 4527451| E: Brett.Latimer@uhcc.govt.nz

W: upperhuttcity.com | F: fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil

\ : whiteribbon.org.nz
Co

 

From: MichaelHall <

Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 6:11 PM

To: Brett Latimer <Brett.Latimer@uhcc.govt.nz>

Cc: Patrick Hanaray <patrick.hanaray@uhcc.govt.nz>; Tim Rillstone

Subject: RE: discussion around paper road

Kia ora Brett

Sorry it has taken so long to get back to you.

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)
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We h en working through what we’re wanting to do to create accessfor forestry and then for the futureuse of

the se,

Wehave confirmed that we would wantto look at gaining accessto the site through the stopped paperroad for two

purposes.

1. Thefirst is in order to undertake the remaining forestry work for the site. It would be good to understand

whether we could use the stopped road to access our site to remove the trees on GTC property. We have

just submitted a forestry application and would like to understand whether you would accept us using your

stopped road to accessthesite. It would be the most direct route and would not require us to use the

corrections land. On this however, we have heard from Corrections property team they are notsureit is

theirs again and may be the Ministry of Defence. The plan is outlined below:

 
2. We would then like to have a conversation in the next few weeks about having a permanent easement to

support a resource consentapplication for developmentof the land because GTC are aiming toretire this

partofit’s site from its forestry portfolio and would like to consentresidential dwellings. We want to have a

draft scheme plan prepared top give you a definite proposal to you before we havethe discussion around

this though.



If youare able to let us know how weare able to progress item 1 that would be appreciated.

Cheers

Michael

From: Brett Latimer <Brett.Latimer@uhcc.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, September 14, 2023 5:22 PM

To: Michael Hall <

Cc: Patrick Hanaray <patrick.hanaray@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: Re: discussion around paperroad

Yes that land parcel is owned by corrections. So the proposal is a permanent easementwhichwill affect public

access?? If we receive a formal proposal from you | will need to get some guidance from our legal team on the

process and implications of the easement.

Get Outlook for iOS

Brett Latimer

Parks and Reserves Manager

Te Kaunihera o
Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta
Upper Hutt City Council

Te Kaunihera o Te AwaKairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council

HAPAIService Centre, 879 - 881 Fergusson Drive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt, 5140, New Zealand

T: +64 (4) 5272124 | M: +64274527451| E: Brett.Latimer@uhcc.govt.nz

W: upperhuttcity.com | F: fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil

We've MOVEElooe AE] Li

Council's customerservices are now based at the HAPAI Service Centre, 879 - 881 Fergusson Drive.

 

 

  

  

        
 

From: Michael Hall <michael.hall@awa.kiwi>

Sent: Thursday, September 14, 2023 5:07:29 PM

To: Brett Latimer <Brett.Latimer@uhcc.govt.nz>

Cc: Patrick Hanaray <patrick.hanaray@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: discussion around paperroad

Hi Brett

Thanksfor getting back. So are you saying that Part Section 936 is owned by Corrections?

Thereisn’t a certificate of title | can find that outlines ownership to Corrections.

7(2)(a)



“IN Mountains ices!

ESaMRE \oiseliconarn07)
4 2 aa

 
Regarding the rest of your points, these all look achievable to provide. The easement would befor providing

residential dwellings at 139-143 BMR.

Thank you

Michael

From:Brett Latimer <Brett.Latimer@uhcc.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, September 14, 2023 4:09 PM

To: Michael Hall <

Cc: Patrick Hanaray <patrick.hanaray@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: FW: discussion around paper road

Good afternoon, Michael, your request has been forward to meto reply.

This situation was raised a few years ago by The Guildford Timber companyandif | recall correctly Council that any

consideration of an easementacrossthis land would, in the first instance be subject to GTC obtaining approval for

access across the adjacent Correction Land and also 151 BMR.Initially Corrections was saying the land wasn’ttheirs,

but belonged to the Defence Department and Defence wassaying it wasn’t their land. In the end | think Corrections

did finally acknowledge that the land was owned by them.

| don’t rememberhowthis all panned out, but | haven’t pursued an easementin favour of GTC since that time.

7(2)(a)



The land is currently held in Council as a Recreation Reserve and granting an easementwill need to go through the

necessary approval processes.

| think what is neededis for you to make a formal application for an easementwith details of the purposeof the

easement,i.e., is it just for the removalof pinesoris it for a residential development ?? Also Council will need to

assured that access across the Corrections land and 151BMR has beensecured and that any easementwill not affect

public access across the reserve. You will also need to provide a detailed mapof the location and width etc of the

easement.

Once wehavethat information wewill be in position to advise whether an easement would be considered by

Council.

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

T: +64 (4) 5272124 | M: +64274527451 | E: Brett.Latimer@uhcc.govt.nz

W: upperhuttcity.com | F: fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil
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Council's customerservices are now based at the HAPAI Service Centre, 879 - 881 Fergusson Drive.

    

 

 

From: MichaelHall

Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 11:57 AM

To: Patrick Hanaray <patrick.hanaray@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: discussion around paper road

Kia ora Patrick

lam currently acting as the project managerfor the Guildford Timber Company. Awahas beentasked with revisiting

the previous two developmentplansacross the site and reviewing how bestto useit’s existing landholdings across

Pinehaven. Weareinterested in the paper road that was stopped in 2018. Should | be talking to you aboutthis

road?

It is still owned by UHCC and weare considering whetherit may be possible to secure an easementovera portion of

it so we can utilise it for access to 139-143 Blue Mountains Road. The existing access from BMRis tight and doesn’t

easily allow accessto the top of the site without undertaking major earthworks whichis not our client’s preference

for potentially using the land in the future.

If you can give me a call or email back that would be appreciated.

7(2)(a)
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The information contained in this email and any attachmentsis confidential and intended for the

namedrecipients only. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately

and delete this email.

The information containedin this email and any attachmentsis confidential and intended for the

named recipients only.If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately

and delete this email.

The information contained in this email and any attachments is confidential and intended for the

namedrecipients only.If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately

and delete this email.
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Meetings re Silverstream Spur

18 Aug 2021 — 29 June 2022

 

 

 

 

  

Date Regarding UHCCstaff GTCStaff Present

present

23 Aug 2021 Internal discussion re MOU Peter Kelly, Vibhuti None

report to Council Chopra, Geoff

Swainson, Guy Smith,

Kimberly Bingham

11 Nov 2021 IAF RFP discussion with Beca Peter Kelly, Geoff 7(2)(a)

& GTC & WW Swainson,Patrick |

Hanaray

13 Nov 2021 Metwith Forest & Bird re Peter Kelly, Helen

Silverstream Spur Hamilton, Guy Smith

14 Feb 2022 IAF applications discussion PeterKelly, Geoff 7(2\{a) | with Kainga Ora and

developers  Swainson, Patrick

Hanaray    



 

7(2)(a)

Thursday, 20 January 2022 12:41 pm

Peter Kelly; Geoff Swainson; Bridget Herries; Emily Thomson
7(2)(a)

Subject: 44 Kiln St subdivision

 

Kia ora Peter, Geoff, Bridget and Emily

Happy newyear and | hope youall enjoyed sometimeoff over the break.

I’m writing to let you know that GTC intends to subdivide off and sell part ofits site at 44 Kiln St that is not needed to provide

for a road and infrastructure corridor to enable Silverstream Forest, as per the IAF application. Envelope Engineering (likely

through Matt Aitchison) and our plannerswill engage with Council’s planning and engineering teams as wewill be looking to

apply for a two-lot subdivision in the coming months.

| wanted to inform youofthis as a key stakeholderin relation to Silverstream Forest. GTC will look to ensure that the proposed

subdivision of 44 Kiln St doesn’t compromise the ability to access and realise Silverstream Forest in the future.

Thanks,

7(2)(a)

The Guildford Timber Company / Silverstream Forest
7(2)(a) | | W: www.silverstreamforest.nz

Please note that | work part-time for 2 x days per week. Sometimesit may take me a few days to respond your message.



Michael Gibbons

From: Guy Smith

Sent: Friday, 22 April 2022 4:29 pm

To: 7(2)(a) ; Forest & Bird, Upper Hutt Branch; Pinehaven Hills

Subject: Buddle Findlay advice on Silverstream Spur

Attachments: Advice to Upper Hutt City Council(62247508.3).pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Goodafternoonall,

Hopeyouall got a good break in over Easter. Apologies that this has been delayedin delivery a couple of additional

days due to me taking some timeoff this week for the school hols.

Please find attached,strictly on a without prejudice, confidential and without waiverof privilege basis, the opinion

of Buddle Findlay on the questions we posed them abouttheSilverstream Spur.

| hope youfind it interesting and thorough,as | did. I’m happyto discussit further of course and look forward to any

comments your peer reviewer might have.

Regards,

Guy.

Guy Smith

General Counsel

Te Kaunihera o
Te Awa Kairangiki Uta
Upper Hutt City Council

Te Kaunihera o Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council

838 — 842 FergussonDrive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt 5140, New Zealand

DDI: +64 4 527 2147 | Mobile: +64 21 392 142

Iméra: guy.smith@uhce.govt.nz | Pae Tukutuku: www.upperhuttcity.com

The contents of this email is confidential to Upper Hutt City Council and may belegally privileged. Ifyou are not the intendedrecipient

please notify the sender immediately and do not send this email on to anyoneelse without the consentof the author.



BUDDLEFINDLAY

13 April 2022

To

Guy Smith
Kaitohutohu Matamua a-Ture — General Counsel
Te Kaunihera o Te AwaKairangi ki Uta —- Upper Hutt City Council

rom
7(2)(a)

By Email
guy.smith@uhcc.govt.nz

CONFIDENTIAL AND LEGALLY PRIVILEGED

Téna koe Guy

Silverstream Spur- legal implications of potential historical acts or omissions by Council

ue Thank you for seeking our advice on issuesrelating to land acquired in late 1989 / early 1990 by

Upper Hutt City Council (Council), within an area known asthe Silverstream Spur (the Spur).

2. As you know,while someof the past decisions and actions of the Council in relation to the land are

clearly documented, due to the passageof time someofthe historical detail may have beenlost.

3. You have asked whether, on the facts currently available, anything done (or omitted to be done) by

the Council in the past might continue to have legal consequences,today,for the status of the land

and the Council's powersin relationtoit.

4. In particular, you have asked whatlegal consequences,if any, might flow from:

(a) Council acts or omissionsrelating to the Spur during the past planning processesfor whichit

wasresponsible under the Resource Management Act 1991 (RMA) or predecessor

legislation. In particular:

(i) A notice was published on 10 March 1992 recording the Council's intention to "correct"

the status of the Spur, through a review of the Hutt County District Scheme (District

Scheme), to be “Rura/ B" with a ‘designation’ as "R7 (Scenic Reserve)". This apparent

intention did notflow throughto the finalised District Scheme or, subsequently, to the

current operative District Plan (District Plan), under which the land was zoned “Rural

B"(and since then “Rural Hill" and now "General Rural", reflecting the more recent

terminology) and "Residential Conservation", without any reserve status indicated.

(ii) In late 2001, the Council passed a resolution recording that “in the light of Council's

original rationale for purchasing the Spur, a Variation to the District Plan be undertaken

to rezone the land as "Open Space"andthat it be managedas a reserve, with public

access as ofright". Again, this variation appears not to have proceeded, and the

rezoning is not reflected in the current District Plan.

Auckland ° Wellington * Christchurch buddlefindlay.com
BF\62247508\3 | Page 1



BUDDLEFINDLAY

5.

(b) Past views expressed by the Council regarding the possible future use of the Spur, including

as a recreation or scenic reserve. For example, during a planning process led by Heretaunga

PinehavenDistrict Community Council between 1976 and 1984, after which the Spur was

zoned "Rural Town Belt", a predecessorentity of the Council opposed the Spur being zoned

for residential development because of the adverse amenity and other effects such

development would have had, and because of the Spur's potential as a reserve. Further, a

Council memorandum prior to its purchase of the Spur recordedthat:

"part of the land may havea potential for developmentas residential sections although

a change of zoning would be required before any such developmentcould proceed.

The bulk of the land is best suited for passive recreation purposes which would

complement[other existing reserves and the Silverstream Railway Societyfacility]".

(c) |The Council having purchased the Spur using funds that may have been earmarked for the

creation of reserves. In particular, the Council Memorandum recommending the purchase of

the Spur notes that "the purchase could be funded from Council's Reserve Fund account".

Below weset out a summary of our advice. Wethen analysein turn, by category, the potential

legal implications.

Summary of advice

6.

BF\62247508\3| Page 2

It appears from the documentary record that there is somebasis for a belief that the Council

intended the Spurto be held as public open space (and possibly as a legal reserve).

Equally, there are indications that the Council understood that the Spur could support a numberof

different activities (or a mix of them).

Giventhe gapsin the history,it is difficult at this distance from the relevant events to conclude with

certainty what the Council's intentions have beenat various points in time, whethercertain

outcomesare deliberate; if not, whether they were the result of errors or omissions; andif so, the

nature and legal effect of those omissions. However, even read together these documents do not,

in our view, evidence a clear and unambiguous commitmenton the part of the Council to rezone the

land or manageit as open space.

Notwithstanding the gapsin the record, in ourview it is clear that the various points at which the

Council may (or may not) have erred — suchasin failing to give effect to a resolution or otherwise

following through on an intended policy — were many years ago and in most cases,particularly in

the planning sphere, have been superseded by subsequentpublic processes. In particular, the

correct zoning of the Spuris directly at issue in Council's current Plan Change 49 — Open Spaces

(PC49). As such, evenif the Council did err, we have not identified any legal consequencesthat

might flow from those errors today, in terms of the status of the Spur today or the Council's powers

in relation to it.

buddlefindlay.com
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10. Although we haveconcluded that there is no legal entitlement or particular consequencethatarises

from the various statements made by the Council in the past regarding the Spur, evidence of a past

intention for the Spur to be held as public open space (or a reserve) could well be relevant to the

decision-makers on PC49, as could the indications that the Council understood that the Spur could

support some developmentor a mix of uses. In our view PC49is the appropriate forum for the

most appropriate zoning of the Spur to be determined.

The facts

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Council was formed throughthe local authority reorganisations in the late 1980s, with

responsibility for Upper Hutt and the former'ridings' of Rimutaka and Heretaunga-Pinehaven.

In 1987, the Council began discussions with the Land Corporation (Landcorp), as it was then

known, about the purchaseof the Spur (Part Sections 81 and 82, Hutt District; Certificates of Title

107/207 and 348/185) by the Council. Landcorp responded that the land wasfor sale and noted

that the Silverstream Railway Incorporated had a lease overpart of the Spur.

On 17 September 1987, the Council confirmed that the Policy and Resources Committee had

indicated an interest in the purchase, subject to valuation. Landcorp received a valuation of

$80,000 in October 1987. The valuation noted that the Spur was zoned "Rural — Town Belt", stating

that "the purpose ofthis zone is to secure the protection ofthe hills which form the green backdrop

to the adjoining urban areas. The predominant uses are parks, reserves, walkways etc and forestry

and plantation development".

In April 1989, the Council commissioned its own valuation of the Spur, which valued it at $36,000.

The valuation noted the zoning as Rural Town Belt. In July 1989, Landcorp received an updated

valuation of $70,000, which said "the land is however, in spite of its condition and town planning

restraints, strategically well located for reserve purposes".

On 20 November 1989, a report wasputto the Policy and Planning Committee, recommendingthat

the Spur (described as Sections 81 and 82), be purchased by the Council for $59,000. The Report

noted the zoning as "Rural Townbelt", stating that:

part of the land may have potential for development as residential sections although a

changein zoning would be require before such a developmentcould proceed. The bulk of

the land is best suited to passive reserves uses.

The memoalso stated that the “purchase could be funded from Council's Reserve Fund". The

Council's accounts for the year ended 31 March 1990 suggest that: (1) the Council recordedits

expenditure on reserves separately, but did not use separate trust funds for that purpose(the trust

funds held by the Council are listed in Note 4 to the accounts); and (2) the Spur was purchased as

an item of expenditure in the Housing and Property budget (page 10), rather than the Parks and

Reserves budget. Although the Silverstream Railway Society Incorporated's (Railway)

representative, Mr Durry, has suggested that there was a separate Reserves Fund,and although

BF\62247508\3| Page 3 buddlefindlay.com
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

BF\62247508\3 | Page 4

there is some referenceto specific reserves expenditure in the Local Government AmendmentAct

1978 (which is discussed below), the evidence suggests that the land was acquired from the

Council's general budget rather than from separate funds held on trust for any purpose.

It appears the Council purchased the Spur in 1989. Atthis time, it was zoned Rural Town Belt. On

19 March 1990, a newtitle to the Spur was issued to the Council. The land was then subdivided,

with someofthe land being transferred to the Railway andthetitle to the remainder being reissued

as Part Section 1 SO 34755.

At this time, the Upper Hutt District was governedby the District Scheme, developed under the

Town and Country Planning Act 1977 (TCPA). On 1 October 1991, when the RMA cameinto force,

the District Scheme was deemeda district plan and the ongoing reviews of the District Scheme that

had been notified before that date (including one known as Review No. 4) were deemed to be

proposed plan changes(undersection 373 of the RMA).

Review No.4 appears to have occurred at somepoint in 1992. We have reviewed correspondence

in February and March 1992 relating to submissions on and requestedalterations to the proposed

Plan:

(a) On 21 February 1992, a local resident objected to the re-zoning of land adjacent to their own

from "Town Belt" to “Residential Conservation". The land referred to appears to be the Spur

(or part ofit), although the correspondenceis not clear. On 25 February 1992, the City

aonPlanner respondedstating that the zoning “of the land to the north ofyour subdivision" "is

incorrect and will be altered".

(b) On 26 February 1992, the City Planner wrote to the Mayor, Chief Executive and City Solicitor,

noting three errors found in the zoning maps. Theseincluded that the "ex: Hutt County

Green Belt area bounded yellow on the attached map should be designated (R7) Scenic

Reserve and not Residential Conservation". The land referred to appears to be the Spur,

although again this is not entirely clear.

(c) On3 March 1992, the Council distributed a Summary of Requestfor Alterations to the Upper

Hutt City Council Proposed District Scheme (Review No.4), in accordancewith its obligations

under Regulation 27 of the Town and Country Planning Regulations 1978. The Summary set

out the changes sought by the Council to the Scheme. These included "Correct Map 2 as

follows: Change zoning on northern side of Kiln Street from Residential Conservation to Rural

B (restricted) and record its designation as R7 (Scenic Reserve)".

On 10 March 1992, the same Summary of Requestfor Alterations was published in the Upper Hutt

Leader, recording the Council's intention to "correct" the status of the land to be “Rural B" with a

designation as "R7 (Scenic Reserve)".

Thefinalised District Scheme and, subsequently, the current District Plan, show that the Spur has

two distinct parts: one is zoned “Rural B" (now "General Rural") and the other is zoned "Residential

buddlefindlay.com
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22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Conservation", without any reserve status indicated. It is not clear (owing to the uncertainty about

the identity of the land referred to in the communications set out above) whetherthis wasintentional

or in error.

There is then a gapin the record until 1994. At some point around 1994, the Council applied for a

resource consent application to undertake commercial forestry on the Spur (then legally registered

as Section 1, SO 34755). In a report from the City Planner to the Council, dated 8 March 1994, the

land is described as being zonedhalf as Rural B (Restricted) and half as Residential Conservation.

There is no suggestion in the City Planner's report that the wrong zoning had been applied. The

report notes that there were five submissions on the application, including one from the Railway.

The Railway raised concerns about the impact of forestry operations on erosion, but was ultimately

"neutral in regard to the development". The report from the City Planner, and a report to the

Judicial Committee of the Council, dated 18 March 1994, recommendedthat the consent be

granted.

Thereis then a further gap in the record until late 2001. On 5 December 2001, the Policy

Committee of Council resolved that the forestry operation be discontinued. The Policy Committee

considered several options for the Spur, including selling the Spur or changingits status via a

District Plan Variation “to ensure that all the land was zoned as "open space"or alternatively

"residential conservation" with a designation of reserve". The Committee ultimately resolved that "in

the light of the Council's original rationale for purchasing the Spur, a Variation to the District Plan be

undertaken to rezone the land as "Open Space"and that it be managedas a reserve, with public

accessasofright". Again, it is not clear what happenedafter this point. It does, however, seem

clear that the proposed variation to the District Plan was not made.

In 2004 the then District Plan was replaced by a new District Plan, which remains in force. The

District Plan retains similar zoning for the Spur: that is, General Rural and Residential

Conservation.

On 24 February 2016, the Council resolved to enter into a memorandum of understanding (MOU)

with Guildford Timber Company (GTC). The purpose of the MOU wasto enable a land swap

between GTC and the Council, with GTC acquiring the Spur. The Spur would provide accessto

GTCto other land owned by GTC,for housing development. A report accompanying the MOU,

dated 24 February 2016, records that the Council had not consulted on the MOU,but that feedback

on the Urban Growth Strategy indicated that some of the community “have concerns about the

impact of development on the proposed land". The Report also notes that the swap “provides

access to a key development required to provide for housing growth in the city over the next 30

years". The Council and GTC signed the MOU on 4 March 2016. Negotiations then continued until

2021, when the Council sent a letter to GTC formally bringing the MOUto an end.

In 2018, the Council adopted the Open Space Strategy, which set out the overarching strategy for

Upper Hutt. The Council then undertook a review of the provisions of the District Plan relating to
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Open Space and consulted with membersof the community. This culminated in PC49, which

proposes to change the managementof open spaces underthe District Plan. In particular, PC49

proposesto divide the current "Open Space" zoneinto three new zones, being:

(a) Natural Open Space;

(b) Open Space; and

(c) Sport and Active Recreation.

27. The Spuris not included in any of these zones under the Proposed Open Space and Recreation

Zoning. Several parties, including the Railway, Royal New Zealand Forest and Bird Society

Incorporated and Save Our Hills (Upper Hutt) Incorporated, submitted on PC49 requesting that the

Spurbe included in the proposed "Natural Open Space" zone.

The issues

Introduction

28. There are three points at which an error might be said to have been made by the Council. All are

over 20 years ago. The evidencefor a mistakeis, in each case,inferential.

(a) Thefirst possible mistake is at the point that the land was purchased. Arguably, the

possibility that it was purchased from the Reserve Fund might support a view that the Council

should have declared the land to be a reserve (under section 14 of the Reserves Act 1977)

and/or zonedit accordingly underplanning legislation at that stage. However, there is no

evidence of such a declaration, and little other evidence about any proposed zoning of the

land (or its ‘designation’ as a reserve or open space)at that time. Any planning error was

then overtaken by the 1992 District Scheme process.

(b) |The second possible mistake is in 1992, when there wasa clearintention to rezoneat least

someof the Spur (and perhaps the whole of the Spur) and apply a reserve ‘designation’. The

Spur wasat least in part rezoned, which may have beentheintention at the time. The re-

zoning wasthen carried through into the 2004 District Plan.

(c) The third possible mistake is in 2001, when the Policy Committee resolved to vary what was

at that time the proposed District Plan to rezone it as "Open Space" and manageit as a

reserve. It seemsclear that such rezoning did not occur separately or as part of the overall

plan review processculminating in the 2004 District Plan. However, issues regarding the

appropriate zoning of the Spur were then overtaken by the current PC49 process.

Implications of terms ofpurchase

29. Wedo notthink that there is any actionable consequencearising from the purchase ofthis land in

1989/90. To explain:

BF\62247508\3 | Page 6 buddlefindlay.com
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(a) It is not clear what cause of action would be said to lie. Presumably, any claim would be

broughteither as a judicial review, or (as in Royal Forest & Bird Protection Society v Nelson

City Council [1984] NZLR 480) on the basis of an allegedtrust.

(b) As to a judicial review:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

A claim in judicial review is not time-barred. Judicial review is outside the scope of the

Limitation Act 2010.

There is no reviewable error (eg, an errorof law,a failure to take into account a

relevant consideration, or taking accountof an irrelevant consideration) established on

the facts. It seems unlikely that there is any additional evidence available at this late

stage that would establish that such an error occurred.

Although the claim would not be time-barred, the lapse of time meansthat the zoning

of the land has been considered a numberof times since the purchase. Evenif a

reviewable error could be shown, wethinkit is unlikely that a court would orderrelief

cutting across those processes.

There is also a strong argumentthat judicial review is not available, in the light of the

provisions of the RMA discussed below.

(c) As toaclaim in equity:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BF\62247508\3| Page 7

The only basis for a claim in equity appears to be the use of the 'Reserve Fund’. As

discussed above,it is not clear what terms applied to that fund, and it may well be that

the purchase waswithin the scopeof the fund.

Mr Durry, on behalf of the Railway, has carried out extensive and helpful research into

the history of the Spur. He has suggested that section 288 of the Local Government

Amendment Act 1978 specified how reserve contributions collected by the Council

would be used, although he saysthat he does not have a complete copyof the

Council's reserve fund policy from the time. Even assuming (as seemslikely) the fund

referred to in the Council's documents is the fund described in ss 284 to 292 of the

1978 Act, we observethat (1) the Act does not require that the fund, or any land

purchased withit, are held on trust; and (2) the fund may be used in a numberof ways,

one of whichis to purchase landthatwill be used to create a reserve within the

meaning of the ReservesAct(see ss 288(2)(a) and 288(3)(a) for the creation of

reserves, and ss 288(3)(b) — (g) for other purposes).

Noris it clear how equity would be engaged here. A trust requires certainty of

intention, subject matter, and object. In our view, as in Royal Forest & Bird, there is no

clear evidenceof an intention to hold the relevant land on a trust. The only

contemporaneous documentsrefer to the land being purchased from the Reserve

Fund but, as above,the nature of that fund is unclear. Noris it clear that a purchase

buddlefindlay.com
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30.

from the Reserve Fund would be intended to be held in trust: that is not required by

the Act, clearly evident from the surrounding documents,or a necessary part of placing

land within the ReservesAct.

(iv) |The passage oftime is also relevant to a claim in trust. Although a claim in equity is

not time-barred, the doctrine of laches (that is, the equitable doctrine that delaywill

militate against equitable remedies being ordered) probably applies here, and would

make any equitable remedylesslikely at this late stage. If the land wasin trust, the

trust would remain: but, for the reasons set out above,wethink that is unlikely

Wenotethat it may be,that if the land was purchased from moneysetaside for reserves, the

proceeds of any subsequentsale of the land should be paid back into a fund for reserve land

(assuming that such a fund still exists). That question is outside the scope of this opinion, but we

can adviseonit if that would assist.

Potential RMA-related implications of the Council proposing to change the zoning

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

The next issues are the implication of the Council notifying its intention to "correct" the planning

status of the land in 1992 (to include its designation as "R7 — Scenic Reserve"), and of the Council

resolving to change the zoning in 2001, and neither change then comingto pass.

A changeto the Zoning of the Spur requires a changeto the District Plan. The RMAsets out a

specific processto dothis, including notification of the change, the opportunity for public

submissions, hearings, and public notification of the decision. As such, notification of the Council's

intention to changethe plan, or a resolution to that effect, are not sufficient to initiate a plan change.

The current situation is somewhat complicated by gapsin the historical record (which, in our

experience, are not unusualfor planning processes undertaken aroundthetransition from the

TCPAto the RMA,or evenfor ‘first generation’ plans developed under the RMA). Given the

uncertainty,it is difficult to identify any actionable mistake.

It is possible that the outcomeof the Review No. 4 processin relation to the Silverstream Spur was

deliberate, and no error was made. For example:

(a) the Council may have decided against declaring the land to be a scenic reserve, and

accordingly not proceeded with the proposed'correction' in the Review No.4 process; or

(b) the zoning ‘correction’ may havefallen to be determined by the decision-makers on Review

No. 4, who decided, for some other reason, notto give effectto it (in favour of retaining the

"Rural B (Restricted)" and "Residential Conservation" zoning, with no reserve ‘designation’

noted).

That is consistent with the fact that, as explained above, the Council's officers did not mention any

planning error at or around the relevanttimes.
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36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

Anotherpossibility is that the Council's intended correction was somehowoverlooked in the Review

No. 4 process,resulting in the outcome confirming the zoning of the land that was proposed when

Review No. 4 wasoriginally notified, with no reserve ‘designation’ being noted. This omission could

then have been perpetuated through the subsequent planning processes under the RMA,as

reflected in the current status of the Silverstream Spurin the District Plan.

It is equally possible that the Council may have deliberately not followed through with the 2001

resolution to rezonethe land.

If no error was madein the planning process, there would of course be no planning / RMA

implications for the Council or community today. In any application under either the RMAorin

judicial review,it would be for the plaintiff or applicant to show that an error had occurred.

Evenif an error was made, section 83 of the RMA conclusively presumesthe current District Plan to

have been prepared lawfully, in a procedural sense: "A (...) plan that is held out by a local authority

as being operative shall be deemedto have been prepared and approvedin accordance with

Schedule 1 [of the RMA] andshall not be challenged except by an application for an enforcement

order under section 316(3)".

As section 83 indicates, it is possible to apply (under section 316(3)) to the Environment Court for

an enforcementorder challenging a plan on the basis that proper process has not been followed.

Section 314(1)(f) allows the Court to grant various relief in such a case,including a dispensation

from the need to comply with any requirement not met, or to direct compliance.

In this case, for argument's sake, a procedural error within the ambit of section 83 (and so unable to

be challenged other than through section 316) could have arisen if the Council decision-maker

overlooked the proposed'correction' in the Review No. 4 process and therebyfailed to "give a

decision on the provisions [of a proposed plan] and matters raised in submissions"(in terms of

clause 10 of Schedule 1).

However, membersof the public and other non-council entities can only make such a challenge

within three months of the relevant plan becoming operative. In this case, any proceduralerror

would likely have been made manyyearsbefore that, either during the Review No.4 processin the

early 1990sorthe plan processesin the early 2000s (eg the proposed variation to the draft plan

apparently contemplated in 2001 or the other processes culminating in the 2004 District Plan).

There is no such time bar on the Council applying for an enforcementorder under section 316(3),if

it forms the view that some proceduralerror was made. In our view, however,it would be difficult

for the Council to justify the costs associated with making such an application, given that there is no

clear evidence of such anerror, the zoning of the Silverstream Spur(including the reserve

‘designation’) is already at issue in PC49, andif the Council wishes to create a scenic reserveit can

do so through other processes (as discussed below).
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44,

45.

46.

47.

The Environment Court may also refuse to entertain an application for an enforcement order

becausethere arelikely to be a numberof people (both within and outside UpperHutt) with an

interest in the status of the Silverstream Spur, and enforcement proceedingsare not well suited to

notifying a large numberof people and factoring in their views. Instead, Schedule 1 processes

(such as PC49) are the usual wayof allowing the public to participate in decisions about the zoning

andstatus of land (including council-ownedland).

As well as proceduralflaws, the Environment Court can also correct substantive mistakes in plans,

under section 292 of the RMA. However, that power has been held to apply only to obvious or

inadvertent errors, where these can be corrected in a straightforward way by the Court without the

needto involve otherparties. In this case, if an error could be proven, in our view the Court would

be unlikely to exercise its powers under section 292, again because:

(a) it would bedifficult for the Court to conduct a processin which all people who might have an

interest in the status of the Silverstream Spur have an opportunity to take part (because the

Court prefers to determine matters brought before it by parties, and does nottypically seek

input from other potentially interested people by, for example, giving public notice andinviting

people to join a legal process); and

(b) there is already an RMAprocessin train where the status of that landis in issue.

Section 293 likewise allows the Court to order a council to change a plan, but only “after hearing an

appealagainst, or an inquiry into, the provisions of any proposed(...) plan", and in this case thereis

no such appealthat could give a pretext for the Court to exercise its powers under section 293

(because any appeals relating to the proposedDistrict Plan in the early 2000s, for example, are

long since determined, and any new appealrelating to that instrument would be well out of time).

As such, evenif an error could be proven to have been madein historical planning processes,there

is no obvious process or powerunder the RMAforrevisiting or correcting such an error. Rather,in

our view current planning processes, such as PC49,or future processeswill provide a more

appropriate avenue for the zoning and associated status of the Silverstream Spur to be determined.

Implications of past positions taken or views expressed by the Council

Council's ability to make and change decisions and policies

48.

49.

BF\62247508\3 | Page 10

You haveprovided us with a number of documents showing that the Council and its predecessors

recognised, at various times, the potential for some of the Spur to be used as a reserveorfor other

“passive recreation purposes", and even advocatedfor the land to be usedin that way. The

documents also evidence some other Council views, including that some of the land may have

potential for residential development.

Since the Council acquired the Spur, the land has not been declared to be a scenic orother type of

reserve, and the land has not otherwise beensetaside for recreation purposes.

buddlefindlay.com
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50.

51.

52.

53.

54,

As discussed further below, the legal process of creating a reserve relevantly involves a council

making a resolution to declare land vestedin it to be a reserve, that resolution being notified to the

public, the public having an opportunity to make objections, and the Minister of Conservation then

considering the resolution and any objections and deciding whetheror not to publish the resolution

in the Gazette. We have not seen any evidence of the Council having followed that process;

although the resolution made in December 2001 (that the land be “managedas a reserve, with

public accessas ofright") indicates that the Council may have contemplated formally creating a

reserve at that time, there is no evidence of a resolution to "declare" a reserve, let alone any

evidence of objections being made,any processinvolving the Minister, or any relevant Gazette

notice.

One possible interpretation of the records is that the Council simply considered making the land a

reserve at various points in time, but then did not decide to follow through with that process.

Anotherpossibility is that the Council did in fact make a formal decision to create a reserve, but

then took no further steps to complete the legal process for doing so.

In either case, in general terms we do not consider that those scenarios bind the Council to any

particular outcometoday, or have any other implications for the way the land can be used. Thatis

because the Local GovernmentAct 2002(like its predecessorlegislation) provides the Council with

the full rights, powers andprivileges required to perform its role.1 A council's role is a broad one?

and, as such, the Council has wide powers to make decisions and act on behalf of the community,

including in respect of land, and in particular to promote the social, economic and environmental

well-being of the community.

The Council's powers include to make policy and decisions, which incorporate powers to change

policy and make different decisions;* the law reflects the principle that policy can and does evolve

overtime, and "a decision-maker's liberty to make changesis ‘inherent’ in Westminster

parliamentary government".> As a general proposition, then, we consider that assertions made

historically by the Council or its predecessors do not bind the Council today, and evenif decisions

weretakenin the past they can berevisited by this Council. Even if past resolutions did require the

Council now to declare the Spur a reserve, that outcome would not be assured given that the power

to create a reserve ultimately rests with the Minister.

 

' Local Government Act 2002, section 12.

2 Local GovernmentAct 2002, sections 10 and 11.

3 See for example Gallagher v Attomey-General HC Wellington CP402/88, 28 July 1988 at 21, and Mackenzie District Council v

Electricity Corp of New Zealand [1992] 3 NZLR 41 (CA)at 47.
4 PP and G Basra Ltd v Rangitoto College Board of Trustees [2010] NZAR 372 (HC)at[62]
5 Administrative Law — A to Z of New Zealand Law, Chapter 2.25.6 — Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation citing Hughes v Department
of Health and Social Services [1985] AC 776 (HL) at 788. See also New Zealand Assocfor Migration and Investments Inc v
Attorney-General [2006] NZAR 45 (HC)at [140]; and Lalli v Attorney-General[2009] NZAR 720 (HC)at [20].
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Judicial review

General points

55.

56.

As discussed above,if it could be shown that an error had been committed by the Council, that

might be reviewable. If the Council had, for example, overlookedits decision to 'designate’ the Spur

as reserveland,orfailed to take into account the fact that the Spur was purchased using funds set

aside for the purchase of the reserve, those would arguably be reviewable errors.

However, we doubtthatthere is anyreallikelinood of a judicial review succeeding in the present

case. This is for essentially two reasons. First, as explained above, the relevant actions took place

along time ago. This makesitdifficult to demonstrate conclusively that an error has occurred. It

also meansthat the Court would be reluctant to intervene given the period for which the relevant

decisions have stood. Secondly, the status of the Spur is currently being considered as part of

PC49. Anydecision about its future, at least in planning terms, is best made through that process,

rather than through a judicial review. In the circumstanceswethinkit is unlikely that the Court

would orderrelief, even if the elements of a successful review were madeout.

Judicial review foundedin a legitimate expectation

57.

58.

59.

A ‘legitimate expectation’ can arise where a public body such as the Council commits to act in a

certain way, either through a statement, promise orsettled practice.® In such a case, a council may

be obligated to fulfil its commitment, unless there is a satisfactory reason not to do so.’ This reflects

the need to balancethe desire for public bodies to actfairly and reasonably, while also allowing

appropriate shifts in governmentpolicy.®

Again, we considera judicial review based on anasserted legitimate expectation to be highly

unlikely to succeed, including becauseof the passageoftime and the fact that zoning of the landis

at issue in PC49.

Further, based onthe information we have reviewed, the Council is unlikely to have created a

legitimate expectation — ie that the Silverstream Spur would have been rezonedor declared a

reserve — that is capable of being reasonably relied upon by any person today. To explain:

(a) Although there are various indications of the Council's intention to manage the land as open

space, a numberof other historical documents indicate that the Council saw the land has

having potential for other uses, including residential development. Theseinclude the 1989

memoto the Policy and Planning Committee immediately prior to the purchaseofthe land,

which referred to the "potential for developmentas residential sections", and subsequent

documents. Read together, these documents donot, in our view, evidence a clear and

 

5 Comptroller of Customs v Terminals (NZ) Limited [2012] NZCA 598, [2014] 2 NZLR 137 at[125].
” NZ Maori Council v Attorney-General [1994] 1 NZLR 513 (PC) at 525 cited in Comptroller of Customs v Terminals (NZ) Limited
[2012] NZCA 598, [2014] 2 NZLR 137 at [122].
8 New Zealand Assocfor Migration and Investments Inc v Attorney-General [2006] NZAR 45 (HC)at [140].
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(b)

(d)

(e)

Conclusion

unambiguous commitment on the part of the Council to rezone the land or manageit as open

space.

The legal processesto rezone land (under the RMA)or declare a reserve (under the

Reserves Act 1977) are contestable, in that people can object or otherwise put forward their

viewsfor consideration.

While the Council has the powerto initiate those processes,it does not have the powerto

create a reserve; the Minister of Conservation is the decision-maker under the Reserves Act

1977, for example, and Council decisions as to zoning are appealable and are often revisited

by the Environment Court. In our view these factors makeit less reasonable for any person

to have relied on any intention expressed by the Council to achieve those outcomes.

Weare unawareof any assertion by any person orentity that they haverelied, to their

detriment, on any commitment by the Council to zone the land. Put another way,it is not

clear to us what harm (if any) has arisen from any failure by the Council to follow through on

any such commitment.

Considerable time has passed since the Council recordedits intention to "correct" the status

of the land (on 10 March 1992) and resolved to rezone it as “Open Space"(in December

2001). Numerous public planning processes have taken place since those dates, without

those outcomes eventuating. Evenif the Council had made commitments that could have

reasonably beenrelied uponat the relevant times (which we doubt, for the reasons set out

above), the reasonablenessof relying on the commitment would havesignificantly lessened

with time.

60. Wetrust that this advice assists, and would be happyto discussit with you.

Nga mihi
7(2)(a) 7(2)(a)

7(2)(a) 7(2)(a)
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Michael Gibbons

From: Guy Smith

Sent: Wednesday, 13 April 2022 6:40 pm

To: Peter Kelly; Helen Hamilton

Subject: Buddle Findlay opinion on Silverstream Spur

Attachments: Advice to Upper Hutt City Council(62247508.3).pdf

Follow UpFlag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Categories: [SharePoint] This message wassaved in ‘Legal Matters > Open Matters >

Silverstream Spur - Southern Growth Area’

Hi both,

See attached for your comments,if any.

If none, next step is for me to releaseit to Silverstream Railway and F&B and SOH.

Enjoy!

Guy.

Guy Smith

General Counsel

Te Kaunihera o
Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta
Upper Hutt City Council

Te Kaunihera 0 Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council

838 - 842 Fergusson Drive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt 5140, New Zealand

DDI: +64 4 527 2147 | Mobile: +64 21 392 142

Iméra: guy.smith@uhcc.govt.nz | Pae Tukutuku: www.upperhuttcity.com

The contents of this email is confidential to Upper Hutt City Council and may belegally privileged. Ifyou are not the intended recipient

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

The Guildford Timber CompanyLimited (GTC) October 2021

c/o Kendons Chartered Accountants

69 Rutherford Street

LowerHutt

DELIVERED BY EMAIL TO: 7(2)(a)

CONCLUSION OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND RELATED MATTERS

As youwill be aware, Council voted at its Extraordinary Meeting on 22 September 2021 to formalise the

conclusion of the non-binding Memorandum of Understanding executed between Council and GTC in March

2016.

As you know,this step is largely housekeeping. The MoU was not a formal, binding, agreement and there

has never been any such formal legal relationship between GTC and the Council.

With that in mind from our perspective while we put a line under our previous understandings with this

letter, the underlying intention to work constructively together to explore developmentin the Southern

Growth Area for the benefit of the City is unchanged.

Welookforward to continuing to work with you.

| would appreciateit if you could acknowledgereceipt of this letter on behalf of GTC by return email.

Peter Kelly

Te Tumu Whakarae

Upper Hutt City Council

Upper Hutt City Council | 838 - 842 Fergusson Drive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt 5140

T: (04) 527 2169 | &: askus@uhcc.govt.nz | w: upperhuttcity.com



Michael Gibbons

From: Guy Smith

Sent: Friday, 10 September 2021 8:49 am

To: Peter Kelly; Vibhuti Chopra

Subject: GTC MoU Decision Paperv3

Attachments: Decision Paper - 09092021 DRAFTv3 - Guildford Timber Company MoU conclusion

and further steps.docx

Categories: [SharePoint] This message wassaved in 'Legal Matters > Open Matters > Guildford

Timber Company Limited (1-1, 853) - Land Swap MOU > Council Paper - Decision

on MoU conclusion and further steps’

Hi both,

Attachedis a revised version of the paper taking into account your feedback, and Richard’s on one section.

Rather than go to town on mark ups | have mentioned in comments where | have made changesthat weren’t just

accepting yours.

Let me know if you’ve got further feedback on this version, otherwise if everyone’s happyit could go forward with

the comments removed.

Guy.

Guy Smith
Kaitohutohu Matamua a-Ture | General Counsel

Te Kaunihera o
To Awa Kairangi ki Uta
Upper Hutt City Council

Te Kaunihera o Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council

838 - 842 Fergusson Drive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt 5140, New Zealand

Tau Waea: +64 4 527 2147 | Waea: +64 4 527 2169 | Waea Pikoro: +64 21 392 142

Iméra: guy.smith@uhcc.govt.nz | Pae Tukutuku: www.upperhuttcity.com

Pukamata: www.fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil

The contents of this email is confidential to Upper Hutt City Council and maybelegally privileged. If you are not the intendedrecipient

please notify the sender immediately. Please do not further forward this email without the consentof the author.



 

Michael Gibbons

From: Peter Kelly

Sent: Friday, 17 June 2022 11:55 am

To: 29 See SRS: eee
Cc: Executive Leadership Team

Subject: Kainga Ora Specified DevelopmentProject

Kia ora SNZA)G) es | ,

| hopethis finds youall well. | recently attended a local government CE gathering and PWC hosted us and one of the

topics discussed wasthe Specified DevelopmentProject that Kainga Ora run. The PWCpresenterwaspretty positive

aboutthis and that KO are actively seeking development proposals to push through the SDPprocess with willing

partners be they councils, developers or others. Like anything the governmentis keen on implementing, there is a

process but there are advantagesto be gained with this one.

| have attachedthelink to the KO website andif there was any interest we could organise a joint brief from either

PWC or someotherorganisation familiar with the processto seeif it stacks up for the Silverstream Forest

development.

Obviously, we arestill smarting over the IAF process, but it may be worth considering.

Kainga Ora Specified DevelopmentProject

Nga mihi

Peter

PeterKelly

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

Tau Waea: +64 4 527 2110 | Waea Pikoro: +64 27 208 8000 | Iméra: peter.kelly@uhcc.govt.nz

Pae Tukutuku: www.upperhuttcity.com | Pukamata: www.fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil



Michael Gibbons

From: Forest & Bird, Upper Hutt Branch <UpperHutt.Branch@forestandbird.org.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 21 December 2021 10:44 am

To: Peter Kelly

Subject: Meeting re Silverstream Spur

Attachments: Notes for UHC Mtg 13.12.21.docx

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Categories: Red Category

Peter,

Thank you very muchto you, Helen and Guy for meeting with our group.

Please find attached a note of our understanding of the actions that UHCC undertook to do as a result of

our discussions.

Regards, 7(2)(a)



F&B UH - Questions for UHCC re Silverstream Spur

1. Silverstream Spur is a Natural Open Space and needsto be recognised as such. Whywasit

not acceptedaspart of the public submissions for Plan Change 48 (Significant Natural Areas

& Landscapes) and also from Plan Change 49 (Open Spaces)? A large numberof the

community submitted on this issue but they were excluded from the process.

2. There is documentation showing that the Council acknowledged that the Residential

Conservation zoning on the Spur was an error and that it would be corrected. This was noted

in a memofrom theCity Planner, on 25 February 92, to the Mayor, Chief Executive and City

Solicitor and stated that it would be corrected to show the Spurzoning as “(R7) Scenic

Reserve”. On 3 March 92 theCity Solicitor wrote to a numberof organisations pointing out

the error and advising that the Council would correct it to show the Spur land as “Rural B

Restricted” with a designation as “Scenic Reserve” and record its designation as ”R7 Scenic

Reserve”. This notification was published in the Upper Hutt Leader on 10 March 92.This

error still exists. Why has the council not honoured its own recommendation and agreement

in 1991/2 to correct the zoningof the Silversteam Spur as Residential Conservation to Scenic

Reserve?

3. Alarge portion of the residents in Silversteam / Pinehaven do not want the spur to be used

for anything other than a reserve. Why doesthe council notlisten to the ratepayers of the

area?

4. Whatis the current status of the Memorandum Of Understanding and any other agreements

between UHCC & GTC regarding the Spur?

5. Why is UHCC so determined to provide access for GTC development across the spur?

6. The spur is ideal land for a Natural Open Space Reserveto be provided for the southern end

of UpperHutt. Part of it is already defined by a SNA to be worthyof saving. Why would

UHCC not decide to protect the rest and proved a public reserve with native planning

replacing the current pine trees?

7. If. aroad is built across the spur this will take up a substantial portion of the ridge (1 km long

and 20m wide) and divide the remaining bush providing a barrier to native birds, lizards, etc

to migrate across the spur.



Michael Gibbons

From: Toni Neale

Sent: Monday, 4 October 2021 10:40 a
To: 7(2)(a)

Cc: Guy Smith

Subject: Memorandum of Understanding

Attachments: 20211004104324902.pdf

Good morning 7(2)(a)

Please find attached correspondencefrom Peter regarding the MOU.

Kind regards

Toni

Toni Neale

Executive Assistant to the Chief Executive

Te Kaunihera o Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council

838 — 842 Fergusson Drive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt 5140, New Zealand

D: +64 4 527 2110| M: +64 27 479 3866 | E: toni.neale@uhcc.govt.nz

W: www.upperhuttcity.com | F: www.fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil
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Michael Gibbons

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:

Follow UpFlag:

Flag Status:

Categories:

Kia ora Peter

7(2)(a)

Tuesday, 31 August 2021 9:46 am

Peter Kelly
7(2)(a)

OIA request for Silverstream Forest infrastructure EOI

Follow up

Flagged

[SharePoint] This message wassavedin ‘Official Information Provision > 2021 >

H2)(a) info, minutes Silverstream Spur - 16 Aug 2021 > LGOIMA

emails’

| hope you’re well. We’ve given consideration to the request for the EOI for Silverstream Forest infrastructure underthe IAF.

We'reinclined to say thatall financial information is commercially sensitive at this stage. It’s a key factor in defining the

developability and value of the land. Once / if funding is confirmed, we would expect that updated estimates and more accurate

designs are then made public. For the same reasons,the yield table that was included in the application also informs

developability and should be withheld.

The layout of the road through the Council land at the Spur could also be seen as commercially sensitive as this is still subject to

discussion/negotiation with the Council. It may be more appropriate for this to be publicised once more detail is available.

Onthat basis, our view is that the application could be withheld on the basis of commercial sensitivity and ongoing negotiations

between UHCC/GTC.

Whatposition has the Council reached?

Thanks,

7(2)(a)

The Guildford Timber Company/ Silverstream Forest
7(2)(a) W: www.silverstreamforest.nz



Michael Gibbons

From: Peter Kelly

Sent: Thursday, 28 April 2022 10:46 am

To: Helen Hamilton; Guy Smith

Subject: RE: Buddle Findlay advice on Silverstream Spur

Yeah we have metto discuss this earlier this year just cant remember when and our thoughts had moved on a bit.

Peter Kelly

Te Tumu Whakarae | Chief Executive

Te Kaunihera a
To Awa Kairangi ki Uta
Upper Hutt City Council

Te Kaunihera o Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council

838 - 842 FergussonDrive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt 5140, New Zealand

Tau Waea: +64 4 527 2110 | Waea Pikoro: +64 27 208 8000 | Iméra: peter.kelly@uhcc.govt.nz

Pae Tukutuku: www.upperhuttcity.com | Pukamata: www.fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil

From: Helen Hamilton <helen.hamilton@uhcc.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 28 April 2022 10:42 am

To: Peter Kelly <Peter.Kelly@uhcc.govt.nz>; Guy Smith <guy.smith@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: Buddle Findlay advice on Silverstream Spur

Hi

Jinx on emails.

Yep, just tbc on the ins and outs of her reporting on responseto subsin prep for hearing...I’ll get myself in a pickle if

| start guessing details ©

Thanks

HH

Helen Hamilton (she/her)

Kaihautt Ratonga Whakamahere MeTe Whakariterite | Director - Planning and Regulatory Services

Te Kaunihera o
To Awa Kairangi ki Uta
Upper Hutt City Council

Te Kaunihera o Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council

838 - 842 FergussonDrive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt 5140, New Zealand

Waea Pikoro: +64 21 989 504 | Iméra: helen.hamilton@uhcc.govt.nz

Pae Tukutuku: www.upperhuttcity.com | Pukamata: www.fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil

From: Peter Kelly <Peter.Kelly@uhcc.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 28 April 2022 10:39 am



To: Guy Smith <guy.smith@uhcc.govt.nz>; Helen Hamilton <helen.hamilton@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: Buddle Findlay advice on Silverstream Spur

Heis right in that it wasn’t in scope when PC49 wasproposedoriginally because the land in question was subject to

the MoUand land swap. That matter has now beensettled.

If | recall correctly and from the recent council workshop and as a result of the consultation and submissions

received it is now in scope and can be weavedin whichis all part of the RMA process. So what | am expecting now is

that PC49 will include about 32ha of spur land in the open space PC and makeprovision for enabling an

infrastructure corridor/road to be built on around 2.5-3ha of land. These actions would reflect the submissions

received albeit only one wanted the guaranteeof the road provision being GTC.

| thought this was an excellent compromise. Emily would knowall the ins and outs.

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

From: Guy Smith <guy.smith@uhcc.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 28 April 2022 9:23 am

To: Peter Kelly <Peter.Kelly@uhcc.govt.nz>; Helen Hamilton <helen.hamilton@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: Fwd: Buddle Findlay advice on Silverstream Spur

Morning,

See below feedback from Jason. It’s news to me that the Spuris “out of scope” of PC49. | was of the understanding

that in fact one outcomeof PC49 waslikely to be a rezoning of the spur to Open Space?

Can either of you shed anylight?

Guy.

From: 7(2)(a) |
Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2022 7:44:46 AM

To: Guy Smith <guy.smith@uhcc.govt.nz>; Forest & Bird, Upper Hutt Branch

<UpperHutt.Branch@forestandbird.org.nz>; Pinehaven Hills <helpsaveourhills@gmail.com>

Subject: Re: Buddle Findlay advice on Silverstream Spur
 

Hello Guy

Thank you for sending that through.



Interestingly it states repeatedly in the contents that PC49 is the correct vehicle for deciding the zoning of

the Spur, we assumefrom this that BF were not provided the brief which deemed the Spur was “out of

scope” of PC49? Obviously with the number of submissions and petition signatures submitted on the issue

it seemslikely that there will be some scopein the plan change to make somedecisions? Anotheraction

that came from our meeting in Decemberwasfor the question of why the Spur was deemed outof scope

of PC49 whichto beinvestigated and reported back more thoroughly to the group. We were wondering

howthis was progressing?

Asit looks like | provided most of the background informationforthis legal opinion, it would be

appreciated if you could forward on any information that UHCCdirectly contributed towardsit, in

particular the documentsreferred to in Paragraph 16 and the 48 and 59(a)in particular the “numberof

otherhistorical documents which indicate the council saw potential for other uses, including residential

development”.

Many thanks
72ya)

From: Guy Smith
Sent: Friday, April 22, 2022 4:28 PM
To: 7@)@)_| ; Forest & Bird, Upper Hutt Branch ; Pinehaven Hills
Subject: Buddle Findlay advice on Silverstream Spur

Goodafternoonall,

Hopeyouall got a good breakin over Easter. Apologies that this has been delayed in delivery a couple of additional

days due to me taking sometimeoff this week for the schoolhols.

Please find attached, strictly on a without prejudice, confidential and without waiverof privilege basis, the opinion

of Buddle Findlay on the questions we posed them abouttheSilverstream Spur.

| hope youfindit interesting and thorough,as | did. I’m happyto discussit further of course and look forward to any

comments yourpeer reviewer might have.

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

DDI: +64 4 527 2147| Mobile: +64 21 392 142

Iméra: guy.smith@uhce.govt.nz | Pae Tukutuku: www.upperhuttcity.com

The contents of this email is confidential to Upper Hutt City Council and maybe legally privileged. Ifyou are not the intended recipient
please notify the sender immediately and do not sendthis email on to anyoneelse without the consentofthe author.



The information contained in this email and any attachments is confidential and intended for the named recipients

only. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and delete this email. Upper Hutt

City Council accepts no responsibility for changes madeto this email or to any attachmentsafterit has been sent.



 
Michael Gibbons
  

From: Peter Kelly

Sent: Tuesday, 14 September 2021 3:43 pm

To: eaevena
Cc: — 72)a)__; Toni Neale
Subject: RE: GTC's feedback to PC 50

Thanks /7(2)(@)| and yes wewill of course give this further consideration.

Now on anothercouple of matters we have received two LGOMIA requests from a memberof the public on two

matters; one being the joint IAF EOI application and the second being; email correspondence between UHCC CE and

GTC representatives and includes meetings and discussions between Nov20 and 18 Aug 21.

With regardsto the first LGOMIA wehaverefusedit in full, as has Kainga Ora.

With regards the second wehave agreedto releaseall the information, but are now in the processof redacting for

privacy, commercial-in-confidence and legal privilege reasons. Once we havethis process completed| will send you

a PDFfile of whatwill be released.

Finally, we have the re-scheduled Council meeting occurring on Wed 22 Sep at 3pm here in Council Chambers and

the UHCC-GTC paperwill go up in public. | will be able to share this paper with youlater this week. The meetingwill

be opento the Public and include a Public Form either via zoom if at AL2, or in person if at AL1 for your awareness

should you or others wish to attend.

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

From: 7(2)(a)
Sent: Tuesday, 14 September 2021 3:27 pm

To: Peter Kelly <Peter.Kelly@uhcc.govt.nz>

Cc: eS — 7(2)(a) RES: ¢

Subject: GTC's feedback to PC 50

Kia ora Peter

| hope you’ve been keeping well.



Yesterday | submitted GTC’s feedback to PC 50, but wanted to send you a copy as well. | appreciate there has been a highlevel

of public interest in the draft proposal and the team will be working througha lot of feedback.

Our primary concern is the proposed exclusion of the Southern Growth Area from the scope of PC 50.

While we appreciate Council’s intention to run a separate plan change, it seems that a Future Urban Zonecould be proposed for

the SGA through PC 50, in the same way being proposed forthe Gillespies Block — with residential development enabled once a

range of conditions are met(e.g. access and transport, servicing, development plans and zoning). The advice we’ve received

suggests that a ‘live-zone’ is another option that could also be applied to the SGA.

As we'veset out in the attached feedback, we disagree with the extentof the ‘legalistic’ reasons for excluding the SGA from the

scope of PC 50 and are strongly encouraging the Council to reconsiderits view on this.

| wanted to make you aware of GTC’s feedback as we’re also mindful that having a clear planning pathway to enable the SGA

will be essential for the viability of the IAF application.

Nga mihi nui

7(2)(a)

The Guildford Timber Company/ Silverstream Forest
7(2)(a) | |W: www.silverstreamforest.nz



Michael Gibbons
 

From: 72\a) |
Sent: Wednesday, 23 February 2022 10:52 pm

To: Guy Smith

Cc: 7(2)(@) | Peter Kelly
Subject: Re: Silver Stream Railway Incorporated Plan Change 49 Submission

Hello All

Thanks for the response and update. | have someadditional points below and in red on your email.

Werecently discoveredpart of our railway land has been incorrectly given a zoning overlay, whichis only

applicable to a neighbouring property. This shows that mistakes like what has happenedto the Spurare

still happening. We can only hopefor everyone’s sake this example is brought to a speedy resolution and

the overlay removed from ourland. These errors are seemingly left to others to point out, and while going

beyond whatis being talked about here,it certainly shows that unlessit is pointed out as being an error,

there seemsto belittle in the way of cross checking to ensure that such inaccuracy's do not comeinto

being, and cause a great dealof hassle in the future to untangle,like this situation could be, and like what

has occurred with the Spur.

The points that you have asked to be considered appearto be correct (see notes in red below) although

being a UHCCinitiated exercise using ratepayers money, we would expectthecriticism of council will not

be too harshif it is found to be wanting. The groupis seeking its own opinion on the matters, soit will be

interesting to comparein the fullness of time.

1. Ihave already gathered and am continuing to find documentsrelating to the Spur. There are quite

a numberthat may beusefulto this exercise, which | am happyto shareif required.

3. Likewise if you require any further information or background to anyof the points | have made

either in this email, or the submissions which were forwardedearlier and go into more

detail please feel free to contact me, either by email or phone 0221560874.

A,

5. Regards

6. 72)@))
i

From: Guy Smith
Sent: Tuesday, February 22, 2022 10:20 AM
To: 7@2)(@) —
Cc: (2a) | ; Peter Kelly
Subject: RE: Silver Stream Railway Incorporated Plan Change 49 Submission

Hi 7(2)(a)!

Happy New Yearetc etc.

Thanksfor the follow up. | have been progressing this, and should have been keeping you in the loop more. My

apologies.

I've copiedin 7(2)(a) _at Buddle Findlay whois leading their advice to usonthis.

Broadly I’ve asked gO) _ to consider three areas and what they meanfor Council today:

1



(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Council acts or omissions relating to the land during the past planning processes for which it was

responsible under the Resource ManagementAct 1991 (RMA)or predecessor legislation (including

giving attention to the notice published on 10 March 1992 recording the Council's intention to "correct"

the zoning of the land as "R7 (Scenic Reserve)").

The statement madebytheCity Solicitor as part of the Public Notification of District Review #4 actually

read : “change zoning on northern side of Kiln Streetfrom Residential Conservation to Rural B

(Restricted) and recordits designation as R7 Scenic Reserve”. This change was brought aboutafter the

City Planner agreed with a neighbouring land ownerthat the mapreleased as part of this scheme

review was “incorrect”, which wasfollowed up in a memoto the Mayorand Chief Executive calling it an

error and advised that it should be designated as Scenic Reserve. The release of the statement in the

Public Notification appears (so far) to be the only record of public consultation about any zoning

alterations on the Spurin its time in Council ownership. The public notification about the designation as

Scenic Reserve was, we believe, notified as part of the process required under section 14 of the

ReservesAct 1977.

Past views expressed by the Council regarding the possible future use of the land, including as a

recreation or scenic reserve. For example, a Council memorandum priorto its purchase of the land

recorded that: "part of the land may have a potentialfor developmentas residential sections although a

change of zoning would be required before any such developmentcould proceed. The bulk of the landis

best suitedfor passive recreation purposes which would complement [other existing reserves and the

Silverstream RailwaySociety facility]".

There are a large numberof letters, memos and submissions made by councilcalling for the Spur to

becomea reserveprior to its ownership. The above mentioned memowasthelast before it was

purchased, others after purchase including the public notification shown in point A, continueto call for

the land to become a reserve.

The Council having apparently purchased the land using Council funds earmarkedfor the creation of

reserves.

This fact is probably the most important, the Local Government Amendment Act 1978 wasvery specific

about how Reserve Fund Contributions wereto be used, with section 288 specifying exactly what the

reserve contributions collected by UHCC must be used for. The purchase of the Spureasily meeting this

criteria. While | do not have a complete copy of the UHCCreserves fundpolicy, | have partsofit

discussed in meeting minutes from the period of the Spurs purchase andthe pointsraised align with

the legislation. The favoured memoreferred to abovealso clearly states that the purchaseprice was to

be metusing this fund.



If you've got any thoughts about those generalareas or think I’ve missed something thenfeel free to reply-all to this

andlet us know.Nowis also a good timeto raise any specific bits of evidence that you think have particular weight.

Just FYI, over the Christmas break | worked my way through a dozen morearchive boxes from the period and didn’t

find anything else new oruseful. I did find a bunch of judicial committee minutes from the period, considering plan

changerequests, but none of them on the Spur. If you wanted to come andtake a lookat this material | could make

it available downstairs.

7) | and his team are working awayat the opinion.It’s fairly complex and covers several areas ofthe law,so I’d

imagineit’s still a couple of weeks away.

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

The contents of this email is confidential to Upper Hutt City Council and may be legally privileged. Ifyou are not the intended recipient

please notify the sender immediately and do not sendthis email on to anyoneelse without the consent of the author.

From: 7(2)(a)

Sent: Monday, 21 February 2022 9:48 pm

To: Guy Smith <guy.smith@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: Re: Silver Stream Railway Incorporated Plan Change 49 Submission

Hello Guy

Just following up to see how yougot on with the information | forwarded through to you before Xmasin

regards to the undertaking that you would seek advise on the standing of the errors which we have

uncovered with the zoning of the Spurland.If there is no outcomea simple form of updatewill suffice.

Regards
nya)

From: 7(2)(@)
Sent: Thursday, December 16, 2021 10:11 PM

To: Smith
Subject: Fw:Silver Stream Railway Incorporated Plan Change 49 Submission

Hello Guy

As per Mondaysdiscussion, please find attached the Submission to Plan Change 49 which includesthe

supporting information referred to outlining what we believe to be the intention for the Spur.



The Further Submission which includes the recently uncovered documentation| will forward in a separate

email.

Any questions please ask.

Regards
Heya)

From: 7(2)(@)
Sent: Friday, September 17, 2021 5:01 PM
To: planning@uhcc.govt.nz
Subject: Fw:Silver Stream Railway Incorporated Plan Change 49 Submission

Completed submission with required form attached.

Many thanks
Taya)

Hi 7(2)(a))

| am willing to receive a late submission after taking into account the matters under 37A of the RMA, but | would ask

if you could provide yourfull submission by 5pm on Monday 20" September2021.

Kind regards,

OwenJeffreys
Intermediate Planner(Policy)

 

[x]

   
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
Sent: Friday, 17 September 2021 1:56 PM

To: OwenJeffreys <Owen.Jeffreys@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: Re: Silver Stream Railway Incorporated Plan Change 49 Submission

Hi Owen

I might not be able to get back in front of a computer to send this before Spm will that be ok?

Regards
7(2\(a)

Sent from my iPhone



 

On 17/09/2021, at 1:37 PM, Owen Jeffreys <OQwen.Jeffreys@uhcc.govt.nz> wrote:

 

Thank you for your email.

With regards to your submission, you will need to complete the Submission Form 5 (which | have

attached) as there are several questions within that submission form which are not answered within

the documents you have sent through. The documents you sent through can be appendedto that

Submission Form as your main submission, simply referencing the documentsin the submission

form will suffice.

With regardsto the petition, this can be included in the other supporting documents of your

submission.

You can send your completed submission to planning@uhcc.govt.nz

Kind regards,

OwenJeffreys
Intermediate Planner(Policy)

<image001.gif>

Te Kaunihera o Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council

838 - 842 FergussonDrive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt 5140, New Zealand

W: www.upperhuttcity.com | F: www.fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil

 

Sent: pay,cepemibce 17, 2021 1:03 PM
Tagaskus@uhcc.govt.nzaS

 

Suiject Silver Stream RayPeeeee49 Sobiseon o

Hi

Please find attached Silver Stream Railways Submission on Plan Change 49,including a numberof

attachmentcontaining material referenced in the submission.

Can you please confirm that this submission is received.

We would like to present a petition as part of this submission, can you please advise me on thecorrect

wayto go aboutthis.

Many thanks

Silver Stream RailwayInc.

 



The information contained in this email and any attachmentsis confidential and intended for the namedrecipients

only.If you are not the intendedrecipient, please notify the sender immediately and delete this email. Upper Hutt

City Council accepts no responsibility for changes madeto this email or to any attachmentsafter it has been sent.



Michael Gibbons

From: 7(2)(a)

Sent: Tuesday, 21 September 2021 1:11 pm

To: Peter Kelly
Cc: 7(2)(a)

Subject: Re: UHCC - GTC Paper for Council meeting 22 Sep 21

Kia ora Peter

Thanks for your email and the link to the Council paper.

Weappreciate the clear intent signalled in the paper that UHCC/GTC will continue to work collaboratively toward a

shared goalof realising the potential of the Southern Growth Area.

While GTCfeels its position on the swap andsale options are presented somewhatinaccurately (i.e. that we’re not

interested in either), we accept the point that’s been reached and remain very committed to the process.

Onthat basis, GTC won’t be speaking in the public forum tomorrow as wefeel the paperclearly sets out a shared

intent to work together and a practical pathway forward via the IAF (and/or subsequent funding options to be

explored) and RMAplanning processes. | plan to watch the meeting via the livestream.

We look forward to continuing our work with the Council to make the Silverstream Forestvision a reality, and hope

for a promising response from Kainga Ora in the coming weeks.

Nga mihi
7(2)(a))

From: Peter Kelly <Peter.Kelly@uhcc.govt.nz>

Date: Friday, 17 September 2021 at 10:21 AM
To: 7(2)(a)

Subject: UHCC - GTC Paper for Council meeting 22 Sep 21

Kia ora 7(2)(a)

here is a copy of the final paper going up next week.This will be available online now andit is mostlikely that Public

forum will be run over zoom with a link posted shortly.

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

Tau Waea: +64 4 527 2110 | Waea Pukoro: +64 27 208 8000 | Iméra: peter.kelly@uhcc.govt.nz
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

Sent: Monday, 27 September 2021 5:51 pm

To: Peter Kelly; 7(@)(@)_—
Cc: Toni Neale

Subject: Re: Update SGA and Spur

Kia ora Peter

Thanks for your message and the update.| watched the Council meeting last week via the Facebook link, which

worked well.

It’s great to hear that Council and officers are committed to advancing the SGA and GTCcertainly shares that same

commitment. Welook forward to hearing from you / Kainga Ora in the next few weeks about whetherthe EO!

application has madeit throughthefirst round.

Thanksalso for the link to the updated UHCC website. Ours has a couple more tweaks to be made,butis also

updated to reflect the outcome of last week’s meeting re the MOU.

Nga mihi

7(2)(a).

From: Peter Kelly <Peter.Kelly@uhcc.govt.nz>

Date: Monday, 27 September 2021 at 4:45 PM
To: 7(2)(a)

Cc: Toni Neale <Toni.Neale@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: Update SGA and Spur

Kia ora 7(2)(a)

Not sure if you were watching the meeting last week, but it went well and there were noissues with item 6. We are

in the processof drafting a letter to you and we have updated our SGAsite to reflect the changes which can be

viewed hereat the link below.

Wehave added “Council officers will continue to meet with GTC to continue planning

for the future development of the Southern Growth Area and developmentof a road/infrastructure

corridor across the Silverstream Spuras part of Council’s responsibility to plan for growth”. This reaffirms Councils

commitment to the SGA.

Again, this was further reinforced at the previous Council meeting in August when the IAF EOI was tabled where a

large majority of Councillors supported the motion. Regardless of what happens when Kainga Ora announce the

next stage of the EOI process, we are committed under the current leadership at Council and staff to work

collaboratively with GTC in advancing the planned development of the SGA.

Nga mihi

Peter

https://www.upperhuttcity.com/SGA
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Michael Gibbons

From: : 7(2)(a) |

Sent: Thursday, 30 September 2021 5:24 pm

To: Peter Kelly

Subject: RE: Update SGA and Spur

Thank you Peterfor the confirmation

Appears the media article was more balanced and goodinput from yourself and Mark

Let’s see what the EOI brings

Regards

gey@)

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a) |

Level 14, ANZ Centre, 171 Featherston Street, Wellington, PO Box 3394
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From: PeterKelly <Peter.Kelly@uhcc.govt.nz>

Sent: Monday, 27 September 2021 4:45 pm
To: 7(2)(a)

Cc: Toni Neale <Toni.Neale@uhcc.govt.nz>

Subject: Update SGA and Spur

Kia ora 7(2)(a) ,

Not sure if you were watching the meeting last week, but it went well and there were no issues with item 6. We are

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

corridoracross the Silverstream Spuras part of Council’s responsibility to plan for growth”. This reaffirms Councils

commitment to the SGA.

Again, this was furtherreinforced at the previous Council meeting in August when the IAF EOI was tabled where a

large majority of Councillors supported the motion. Regardless of what happens when Kainga Ora announce the



next stage of the EOI process, we are committed underthe current leadership at Council and staff to work

collaboratively with GTC in advancing the planned developmentof the SGA.

Nga mihi

Peter

https://www.upperhuttcity.com/SGA
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Craig Martell 
Sent: Friday, 10 May 2024 3:13 pm
To: Wayne Guppy; Geoff Swainson
Cc: Phernne Tancock
Subject: Letter of Support

Wayne and GeoƯ, apologies for being away over the last 10 days but I just wanted to tank you formally for your 
letter of support for GTC.  Our fast track submission was looking really good by the time it went in and this 
support will be key for us going forward.  There are a number of things on our mind now going forward and it will 
be good to retain a cadence of communication to ensure we give this Fast Track opportunity the best chance 
of success. 
 
Thanks and regards 
 

 
C R A I G  M A R T E L L  
MANAGING DIRECTOR 
a:  1 Ghuznee St, Wellington 6011 
m:    e:    w: www.awa.kiwi 
 

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Christine Robinson
Sent: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 1:39 pm
To:
Subject: Long Term Plan Hearing information

Dear Craig Martell / Michael Hall 
 
Feedback from the public is an important and essenƟal part of our democraƟc process. We encourage public aƩendance at 
meeƟngs and want you to feel welcome and comfortable when sharing your views. 
Your input can help shape the decision-making process, providing local knowledge and helping to build an inclusive community. 
 
The Long Term Plan Hearing MeeƟngs will be held in Council Chambers which is on Level 2 of the Civic Building, 838-842 
Fergusson Drive, Upper HuƩ.  
 
AŌer signing in at recepƟon you will be either directed to Level 2 Council Chambers or taken to the Council Chambers by a 
member of staff. Please ensure you arrive at least 30 minutes before your appointed Ɵme, check that your mobile phone and 
devices are switched off or turned to silent.  
 
The Council meeƟng schedule has the latest informaƟon about our meeƟngs. Council meeƟngs are also livestreamed on 
our Facebook and YouTube channels.   
 
If you have any accessibility needs, you can phone us on 04 527 2169 or email Governance@uhcc.govt.nz. We can book 
translators and interpreters if required, we will endeavour to help in any way we can depending on the availability. 
 
You will have been allocated 5 minutes to speak followed by 5 minutes for quesƟons from the Mayor and Councillors if they 
have any quesƟons for you. 
 
If you have indicated that you would like to include a Power Point presentaƟon please ensure that it is with Council by midday 
this Friday 10 May.  
 
Please note, anything presented to the meeƟng will become part of the public record of the meeƟng and aƩached to the 
minutes. The minutes of the meeƟng are the official public record and may contain your name, the item you spoke to, and any 
informaƟon presented. 
 
When it is your Ɵme to speak, the Mayor will call you up to a space at the end of the table for you to address the meeƟng. A bell 
will sound aŌer four minutes and again at five minutes to indicate that your Ɵme has expired. Members, with permission of the 
Chair, may ask quesƟons of speakers. QuesƟons are to be confined to obtaining informaƟon or clarificaƟon on maƩers raised by 
a speaker. It is important not to interrupt the Chair or members when they are speaking. You are welcome to leave at any Ɵme. 
 
It is important to note that your name, the item that you spoke to and any informaƟon that you present will be included in the 
official record of the meeƟng, referred to as the Minutes. You cannot ask elected members to keep the informaƟon you present 
confidenƟal. 
 
There is limited seaƟng in the Council Chambers but we have another room available to watch the livestream.  Please advise if 
you will be bringing more than 1 person with you when you speak so we can ensure there is sufficient seaƟng during your 
presentaƟon Ɵme. 
 
Regards  
ChrisƟne Robinson 

7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: UHCC Planning <UHCC.Planning@uhcc.govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, 4 October 2024 12:15 pm
Cc: UHCC Planning
Subject: PC49 / Variation 1 - Formal Notification of Notice of Decision
Attachments: PC49 -Notice of Decision Public Notice.pdf

Tēnā koe,  
 
We are writing to notify you that decisions on Plan Change 49 (including Variation 1) were formally notified 
today in The Post, following the resolution made by Council at the 25 September meeting. The plan change 
now enters a 30 working day appeals period.  Please see the attached public notice for more information about 
this process. 
 
You can view the resolution and decisions on our website. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us. 
 
Regards 
Hayley 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Notification of Decisions on Plan Change 49 (PC49) - Open Spaces and Variation 1 to the Upper 
Hutt City Council District Plan (2004)  
 
Notice is given, as required by Clauses 10 and 11 of the First Schedule of the Resource 
Management Act (RMA, 1991), that Upper Hutt City Council has made decisions on Plan Change 
49 (PC49) – Open Spaces and Variation 1 to the Upper Hutt City Council District Plan (2004), 
following a resolution at the Council Meeting on 25 September 2024.  
 
PC49 / Variation 1 seeks to: 
 
• Make changes to the management of open spaces within the District Plan that enable activities 

which are suitable within open spaces whilst managing those activities which could affect the 
amenity and use of our open spaces. 

• Zoning regional parks which are not currently zoned as open space. 
• Splitting the existing open space zoning into three zones that reflect the different character of 

our open spaces and the different activities which occur within them: 
o Natural Open Space 
o Open Space 
o Sport and Active Recreation 

• Rezone the Silverstream Spur as Natural Open Space 
• Protect biodiversity values on the Silverstream Spur from development. 
 
Please note: The decision on PC49/Variation 1 can be viewed at any of the following locations:  
 
Online: www.upperhutt.govt.nz/PC49 
 
Council Service Centre  
Upper Hutt Civic Centre.  
838-842 Fergusson Drive, Upper Hutt. 
 
Upper Hutt Central Library  
844 Fergusson Drive, Upper Hutt.  
 
Pinehaven Library 
Corner of Pinehaven Road and Jocelyn Crescent, Pinehaven, Upper Hutt. 
 
Right of Appeal to the Environment Court  
 
In accordance with Clause 14 of the First Schedule of the RMA (1991), any person who made a 
submission on PC49 or Variation 1 has the right to appeal to the Environment Court in respect of 
the following:  

• a provision / matter included or excluded in PC49, or  
• a provision which the decisions of the Council proposed to include or exclude in PC49.  

 
Appeals may be made to the Environment Court within 30 working days of this notice by 5:00pm, 
15 November 2024. 
 
This is provided the person referred to that provision or matter in the person’s submission on the 
proposed PC49.  
 
 
 
 
 



You and the Environment Court  
 
Any person considering an appeal should refer directly to Clause 14 of the First Schedule to the 
RMA (1991), and if any doubt about the procedures to be followed should consult a lawyer. The 
appeal process is independent of the Council’s responsibilities.  
 
Information about the appeals process is available on the Ministry for the Environment (MfE) 
website at: environment.govt.nz/publications/you-and-the-environment-court/ 
 
Notice of appeal to the Environment Court  
 
Form 7 of the RMA (Forms, Fees and Procedure) Regulations (2003) outlines the information 
required, and process which should be followed when lodging an appeal with the Environment 
Court. 
 
A copy of the form is available on the Environment Court of New Zealand or Legislation 
Government New Zealand website at: environmentcourt.govt.nz/forms-fees/ or 
legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2003/0153/latest/DLM195868.html  
 
Contact details for the Environment Court  
 
The contact details for the Environment Court are:  

• Webpage: environmentcourt.govt.nz/contact-us/ 
• Street address: District Court Building, Level 5, 49 Ballance Street, Wellington, 6011,  
• Postal address: The Deputy Registrar, Wellington Registry, SX10044, Wellington,  
• Phone: (04) 918 8300, or  
• Email: EnvironmentCourt@justice.govt.nz 

 
Serve a copy of the Notice of Appeal  
 
A copy of the Notice of Appeal to the Environment Court must also be served to Upper Hutt City 
Council within 30 working days of service of this notice to the following:  
• Address to: Attn: Emily Thomson, Planning (Policy) Manager, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt, 

5140.  
 
You must also serve a copy of the Notice of Appeal on every person who made a submission on 
the matter to which the appeal relates to within 5 working days, after the Notice of Appeal is 
lodged with the Environment Court.  
 
An address list of the submitters can be provided on request. 
 
If you have any questions, or would like further information about Plan Change 49 (PC49) or 
Variation 1, please call us on (04) 527 2169 and we will arrange a call back from one of our 
Planners or email us at planning@uhcc.govt.nz  
 
Emily Thomson 
Planning (Policy) Manager  
Upper Hutt City Council  
 
Post: Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt 5140  
Email: planning@uhcc.govt.nz  
Telephone: (04) 527 2169  
 
 

https://environment.govt.nz/publications/you-and-the-environment-court/
https://environmentcourt.govt.nz/forms-fees/
https://legislation.govt.nz/regulation/public/2003/0153/latest/DLM195868.html?search=sw_096be8ed81a1bd3b_Notice+of+appeal+to+Environment+Court_25_se&p=1#DLM195868
https://environmentcourt.govt.nz/contact-us/
mailto:xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx@xxxxxxx.xxxx.xx?subject=General%20enquiry
mailto:xxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
mailto:xxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
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Siobhan Simpson

From: UHCC Planning <UHCC.Planning@uhcc.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 29 May 2024 2:16 pm
Cc: UHCC Planning
Subject: Plan Change 49 / Variation 1 - Council Right of Reply (additional appendices)

Good afternoon,  
 
Please follow the link to our PC49 webpage - https://www.upperhuttcity.com/Services/District-Plan/PC49 to 
see the final versions of the table of recommendations in relation to submissions on PC49 (appendices 11 and 
12).  These should have been uploaded as part of the PC49 right of reply that was sent to you on 23 May. 
 
Regards 
Hayley 
 
 

From: UHCC Planning  
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2024 11:13 AM 
Cc: UHCC Planning <UHCC.Planning@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Subject: Plan Change 49 / Variation 1 - Council Right of Reply 
 
Kia ora,  
 
As per the request from the Panel in Minute 11, the Council’s right of reply has now been uploaded to the Plan 
Change 49 website.  This can be found in the table under the “Council Right of Reply” tab. 
 
Ngā mihi 
Hayley 
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Siobhan Simpson

From: UHCC Planning <UHCC.Planning@uhcc.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 23 May 2024 11:13 am
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
Sent: Thursday, 6 June 2024 4:09 pm
Cc: UHCC Planning
Subject: Plan Change 49 / Variation 1 - Minute #12 - Closing of Hearing
Attachments: Minute 12.pdf

Good afternoon,  
 
Please find attached Minute #12 from the Panel to close the hearing. 
 
Regards 
Hayley 
 



1 | M i  n u  t e  12    P C  4 9 / V 1  U H  C  C  2 0 2 4

IN THE MATTER OF:  the Resource Management Act 1991 
AND IN THE MATTER OF: Proposed Plan Change 49 - Open 

Spaces (PC49) to the Operative Upper Hutt 
District Plan; and Variation 1 to PC49 

MINUTE 12 OF  THE INDEPENDENT HEARING PANEL APPOINTED BY UPPER HUTT CITY COUNCIL 

Introduction 

1. You have received this Minute because you have either made a submission, have been
involved in the preparation of, or are an expert witness in the matter of Plan Change 49 and
Variation 1 to the Operative Upper Hutt District Plan (PC49 and Variation 1).

Decision to close the hearing 

2. The purpose of this Minute is to advise that the Panel has reviewed all the information,
including that in the Right of Reply. The Panel does not require any more information.
Therefore it determined that at 5pm June 5 2024 the Hearing was closed.

3. The Panel now moves into its deliberative phase. This will conclude with the Panel providing
written recommendations to Council for its consideration.

4. The Panel would to thank all participants for their involvement in this process

Communication and questions 

5. Noting that the hearing is now closed, any enquiries regarding these directions or related
matters should be directed to the Hearing Administrator, Hayley Boyd
(Hayley.Boyd@uhcc.govt.nz). No party is to directly contact any member of the Hearings
Panel.

Sue Wells 

Chairperson, on behalf of the Independent Hearings Panel 

Thursday 6 June 2024 

mailto:xxxxxx.xxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx
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Siobhan Simpson

From: UHCC Planning <UHCC.Planning@uhcc.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 31 July 2024 1:01 pm
Cc: UHCC Planning
Subject: Plan Change 49 - Extension of time for making a decision
Attachments: Public Notice - Extension of timeframe granted .pdf

Good afternoon,  
 
Under the Resource Management Act, there is a two year time limit for Councils to process proposed plan 
changes from notification to making a decision.   
 
Plan Change 49 (Open Spaces) was notified on 11 August 2021 and Council requested an extension from the 
Minister for the Environment to extend the deadline for making a decision on Plan Change 49. The Minister for 
the Environment has now granted Council this extension, and UHCC is required to give its decision on the Plan 
Change 49 and Variation 1 to Plan Change 49 (Silverstream Spur) by 5 October 2024. 
 
The reasons for the Minister’s Decisions are: 
1. UHCC has met the statutory requirements for an application under clause 10A, schedule 1 of the RMA. 
2. UHCC will be able to complete the plan change process for Plan Change 49 and Variation 1 and release an 
integrated decision. 
 
Please find attached the public notice that was published in The Post today (on 31 July 2024). 
 
If you have any questions, please let us know at planning@uhcc.govt.nz 
 
Regards 
Hayley 
 



EXTENSION TO DECISION  
TIMEFRAME FOR PLAN CHANGE 49  

(OPEN SPACES)

Pursuant to Clause 10A of the First Schedule of 
the Resource Management Act 1991 (RMA), Upper 
Hutt City Council gives notice of an extension 
of time to make its decisions on proposed Plan 
Change 49 (Open Spaces) to the Upper Hutt City 
District Plan. 

The Minister for the Environment has granted 
Upper Hutt City Council an extension of time to 
make decisions on Plan Change 49, which was 
notified in August 2021. 

The reasons for the Minister’s Decisions are:

1. UHCC has met the statutory requirements for 
an application under clause 10A, schedule 1 of 
the RMA. 

2. UHCC will be able to complete the plan change 
process for Plan Change 49 and Variation 1 and 
release an integrated decision.

The decisions for both Plan Change 49 and 
Variation 1 (Silverstream Spur) must be made on or 
before 5 OCTOBER 2024.

Further information on Plan Change 49 and 
Variation 1 to Plan Change 49, is available at: 
upperhuttcity.com/Services/District-Plan/PC49

If you have any questions or would like further 
information about PC49, please contact  
planning@uhcc.govt.nz

Suzanne Rushmere 
Acting Planning Policy Manager 
31 July 2024
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Siobhan Simpson

From: UHCC Planning
Sent: Friday, 7 June 2024 3:47 pm
Cc: UHCC Planning
Subject: Plan Change 50 - Further submission period extended

Good afternoon,  
 
We have been made aware of a submission that wasn’t included in the summary of submissions or published 
in full due to an IT error.  This submission relates to provisions across Plan Change 50 and is Submission 257: 
Transpower New Zealand Limited.    
 
Due to this, the extent of Plan Change 50 and the number of submissions received, Council is taking this 
opportunity pursuant to Clause 37(1) of the RMA to extend the timeframe for making any further submissions 
on Plan Change 50 to the Upper Hutt City District Plan 2004 to 5pm on 26 June 2024.    We will notify this 
formally in the Leader on Wednesday 12 June, but wanted to give you (as a submitter) a heads up that you will 
have more time if you wish to make a further submission. 
 
We will send an email on Wednesday 12 June with a link to the updated summary of submissions including 
submission #257. 
 
Regards 
Hayley 
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Siobhan Simpson

From: UHCC Planning
Sent: Wednesday, 12 June 2024 10:18 am
Cc: UHCC Planning
Subject: Plan Change 50 - Notification of further submission period extended
Attachments: PC50 - Public Notice - Extension.pdf

Mōrena,  
 
As per the email sent last Friday 7 June, the further submission period has been extended to 5pm, 26 June 
2024 and was notified in the Leader today. Please see the attached public notice. 
 
Submission #257 has now been added to the full submissions and summary of submissions on our webpage. 
 
If you would like to make a further submission please head to our consultation page which also has the 
summary of submissions and copies of the full original submissions. 
 
Regards 
Hayley  
 
 

From: UHCC Planning  
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 3:47 PM 
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

Upper Hutt City Council gives NOTICE as required by clause 7 of 
the First Schedule of the Resource Management Act 1991, of an 
addition to the Summary of Decisions Requested (Summary of 
Submissions) and one amendment on the rezoning request map 
on Plan Change 50. 

On Wednesday 29 May 2024 Upper Hutt City Council publicly 
notified the Summary of Submissions on Proposed Plan Change 
50 to the Upper Hutt City Council District Plan 2004. During the 
further submission period, the Council was made aware of a 
submission that was not received due to a transmission issue. 
This submission is Submission 257: Transpower. 

Because of the broad-reaching scope of Submission 257, and 
taking into account the number of primary submissions and 
complexity and extent of Plan Change, Council is extending 
the timeframe, pursuant to Clause 37(1) of the RMA for making 
further submissions on Plan Change 50 to the Upper Hutt City 
District Plan 2004 to 5pm on 26 June 2024.  

All further Submissions that have already been lodged with 
Council will be reviewed and fully considered as part of the 
hearing process. These earlier further submissions do not need 
to be re-lodged. If any person wishes to amend an earlier further 
submission; or file an additional further submission in relation 
to any submission in the summary of decisions requested; this 
is now possible. All further submissions on the summary of 
decisions requested can now be lodged, in the prescribed form, 
as provided in Clauses 7 and 8 of Schedule 1 of the Resource 
Management Act 1991 (RMA). 

The Summary of Decisions Requested can be viewed on the 
Council website at letskorero.upperhuttcity.com/pc50-rural-
chapter-review, and can also be inspected at any of the  
following locations: 

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
received by 5pm, Wednesday, 26 June 2024.

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
Wednesday 12 June

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF AN ADDITION AND AMENDMENT TO THE SUMMARY OF DECISIONS REQUESTED 
AND EXTENSION OF TIME TO FURTHER SUBMISSION PERIOD ON PROPOSED PLAN CHANGE 50  

– RURAL REVIEW TO THE UPPER HUTT CITY COUNCIL DISTRICT PLAN (2004) 
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Kerrie Falconer
Sent: Tuesday, 16 April 2024 12:46 pm
To: Diana Goodall
Cc: Phernne Tancock
Subject: RE: Catch Up

Great. I’ll send a diary invite shortly. 
 

From: Diana Goodall   
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 12:45 PM 
To: Kerrie Falconer <Kerrie.Falconer@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Cc: Phernne Tancock  
Subject: RE: Catch Up 
 
That was supposed to be 24th April at 2:30pm is ok for Craig. 
 

From: Kerrie Falconer <Kerrie.Falconer@uhcc.govt.nz>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 12:43 PM 
To: Diana Goodall  
Cc: Phernne Tancock  
Subject: RE: Catch Up 
 
Unfortunately I can’t get our CE for Thursday. I can get both Wayne and Geoff for 24 April at 2.30pm. 
 
Would that work? 
 
Kerrie Falconer 
 

Executive Assistant to Mayor
 

  

 

Te Kaunihera o Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council 
 

838 - 842 Fergusson Drive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt, 5140, New Zealand
  

T: +64 4 5272189 |  M: +64 27 8391424 | E: Kerrie.Falconer@uhcc.govt.nz
  

W: upperhuttcity.com | F: fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil 
 

 

From: Diana Goodall  On Behalf Of Craig Martell 
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 8:04 AM 
To: Kerrie Falconer <Kerrie.Falconer@uhcc.govt.nz>; Craig Martell  
Cc: Phernne Tancock  
Subject: RE: Catch Up 
 

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)
7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)
7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)
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Craig is ok for noon on Thursday. 
 

From: Kerrie Falconer <Kerrie.Falconer@uhcc.govt.nz>  
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2024 3:26 PM 
To: Craig Martell  
Cc: Phernne Tancock  
Subject: RE: Catch Up 
 

Hi Craig and Phernne 
 
Wayne is available on Thursday at 12noon. I’d also include our CE Geoff Swainson at the meeƟng. 
 
Let me know if that works for you both and I can send a diary invite. 
 
 
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
Sent: Friday, April 12, 2024 5:58 PM 
To: Wayne Guppy <Wayne.Guppy@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Cc: Phernne Tancock  
Subject: Catch Up 
 
Wayne as discussed on the phone we would like to catch up next week to discuss the planning processes for 
the Southern Growth Area and understand how the Council are going to meaningfully support these going 
forward. 
 
We are flexible in timing so why don’t you identify what days this may work for you and give me some available 
time slots. 
 
Kind Regards 
 

 
C R A I G  M A R T E L L  

 You don't often get email from kerrie.falconer@uhcc.govt.nz. Learn why this is important  

7(2)(a)
7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)
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MANAGING DIRECTOR 
a:  1 Ghuznee St, Wellington 6011 
m:    e: w: www.awa.kiwi 
 

  

The information contained in this email and any attachments is confidential and intended for the 
named recipients only. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately 
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
Sent: Monday, 27 May 2024 12:41 pm
To: Geoff Swainson; Craig Martell 
Cc: Geoff Swainson
Subject: Re: Amendment to Fast Track Approval Application for Silverstream Forest 

Development

Thanks for letting us know Geoff.  
 

From: Geoff Swainson <Geoff.Swainson@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Date: Monday, 27 May 2024 at 12:14 PM 
To: Phernne Tancock  Craig Martell 

 
Cc: Geoff Swainson <Geoff.Swainson@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Subject: FW: Amendment to Fast Track Approval Application for Silverstream Forest Development 

Good afternoon Phernne and Craig 
  
The attached have been sent to the Ministers to amend the letter of support, at the request of Councillors. 
  
Regards 
  
  
Geoff Swainson
 

Chief Executive Officer | Kaihautū Taiao
  

 

Te Kaunihera o Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council 
 

838 - 842 Fergusson Drive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt, 5140, New Zealand
  

T: +64 4 5272136 |  M: +64 27 8030195 | E: Geoff.Swainson@uhcc.govt.nz
  

W: upperhuttcity.com | F: fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil 
 

From: Geoff Swainson  
Sent: Monday, May 27, 2024 12:10 PM 
To: 'C.Bishop@ministers.govt.nz' <C.Bishop@ministers.govt.nz>; 'Simeon Brown (MIN)' 
<S.Brown@ministers.govt.nz>; 'S.Jones@ministers.govt.nz' <S.Jones@ministers.govt.nz> 
Subject: Amendment to Fast Track Approval Application for Silverstream Forest Development 
  
Dear Ministers 
  
Please find attached cover letter and amendment to our letter of support for Silverstream Forest Development 
  

From: Geoff Swainson  
Sent: Thursday, May 2, 2024 1:38 PM 
To: C.Bishop@ministers.govt.nz; Simeon Brown (MIN) <S.Brown@ministers.govt.nz>; S.Jones@ministers.govt.nz 
Cc: Phernne.Tancock@legalchambers.co.nz; craig.martell@awa.kiwi; Geoff Swainson 

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)
7(2)(a)
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<Geoff.Swainson@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Subject: Fast Track Approval Application for Silverstream Forest Development 
  
Dear Ministers 
  
Please find attached support letter regarding the Fast Track application for the Silverstream Forest Development. 
  
  

  

The information contained in this email and any attachments is confidential and intended for the named recipients 
only. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and delete this email.  
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Phernne Tancock 
Sent: Thursday, 2 May 2024 1:44 pm
To: Geoff Swainson; C.Bishop@ministers.govt.nz; Simeon Brown (MIN); 

S.Jones@ministers.govt.nz
Cc: ; Geoff Swainson
Subject: Re: Fast Track Approval Application for Silverstream Forest Development

Thanks Geoff,  
Upper Hutt City Councils support for Guildford Timber Companies Fastrack application is greatly appreciated.  
Kind regards, 
Phernne.  
 

From: Geoff Swainson <Geoff.Swainson@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Date: Thursday, 2 May 2024 at 1:38 PM 
To: C.Bishop@ministers.govt.nz <C.Bishop@ministers.govt.nz>, Simeon Brown (MIN) 
<S.Brown@ministers.govt.nz>, S.Jones@ministers.govt.nz <S.Jones@ministers.govt.nz> 
Cc: Phernne Tancock , craig.martell  

 Geoff Swainson <Geoff.Swainson@uhcc.govt.nz> 
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
Sent: Thursday, 13 June 2024 9:31 am
To: Deborah Ryan; UHCC Planning
Cc: submissions@awa.kiwi
Subject: RE: further submission PC50

Hi Deborah,  
 
Thank you for your submission, please accept this as confirmation this has been received. 
 
Thanks 
Hayley 
 
 

From: Deborah Ryan   
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 3:39 PM 
To: UHCC Planning <UHCC.Planning@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Cc: submissions@awa.kiwi 
Subject: further submission PC50 
 
to the planning policy team, UHCC 
please find attached my further submission to the proposed plan change 50- Rural review. 
Deborah Ryan 
 

7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Suzanne Rushmere
Sent: Friday, 3 May 2024 6:06 pm
To: Michael Hall
Subject: RE: GTC

Hi Micheal 
 
I have not forgoƩen you. 
 
I have caught up with Patrick and will get back to you Monday morning.  
 
Suze 
 

From: Michael Hall   
Sent: Tuesday, April 23, 2024 5:48 PM 
To: Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Subject: RE: GTC 
 
Hi Suzanne 
 
I got into the same rush. Is tomorrow morning possible to talk aŌer 10.30am? 
 
Regards 
 
Michael  
 

From: Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 2:21 PM 
To: Michael Hall  
Subject: RE: GTC 
 
Hi Michael 
 
Apologies but I was off on Friday and on leave yesterday. 
 
I am available tomorrow between 9 and 11. 
 
The next two weeks are a bit hecƟc with school holidays. 
 
Suze 
 
Suzanne Rushmere
 

Senior Planner (Policy)  | Kaiwhakamahere Matua
  

 

Te Kaunihera o Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council 
 

838 - 842 Fergusson Drive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt, 5140, New Zealand
  

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)
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T: +64 4 8855706 |  E: suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz
  

W: upperhuttcity.com | F: fb.com/UpperHuttCityCouncil 
 

 

From: Michael Hall   
Sent: Friday, April 12, 2024 3:47 PM 
To: Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Subject: RE: GTC 
 
HI Suzanne 
 
With PC49 taking up so much of our headspace I’ve left asking this question to now. We have 
completed a review of the previously modelling for the southern areas of Upper Hutt and believe 
there should be some updates undertaken.  

Could you let me know when you’re free for a call to discuss? I can do this afternoon or Monday 
morning if that works with you?  

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
Sent: Wednesday, 31 July 2024 5:03 pm
To: Phernne Tancock
Subject: RE: GTC
Attachments: Sales Invoice INV32699.pdf

Hi Phernne 
 
Sincere apologies, things have been so busy and this fell oƯ my radar. 
 
Please see attached. 
 
I would be grateful if you could arrange reimbursement for Council. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Suzanne 
 
 
 

From: Phernne Tancock   
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 11:10 AM 
To: Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Cc: Michael Hall  
Subject: GTC 
 
Hi Suzanne 
Further to our discussion on Thursday, GTC are prepared to meet the cost of Nick Goldwater which you have 
indicated is max $1800 (daily rate). 
 
Vaughan can meet Nick on Thursday he has suggested meeting at Council (if you can make a room available) 
for he and Nick to have an initial chat then they can identify areas which they may want a further look at onsite 
before heading out to GTC.  
 
The weather for Thursday is looking horrendous so if that precludes the amount of time spent onsite, I assume 
Nick would not charge for the whole day and would only charge for time spent? 
 
Let me know if this would work.  
Phernne.  

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)7(2)(a)



Upper Hutt City Council Wildland Consultants Limited
Private Bag 907 PO Box 7137, Te Ngae, Rotorua 3042
Upper Hutt
5140
New Zealand

Client PO Number EPO208748 Project Manager Nick Goldwater
Client No. (Internal) C10267 Email xxxxxxxx@xxxxxxxxx.xx.xx
Contact Suzanne Rushmere Website www.wildlands.co.nz
Email xxxxxxxx@xxxx.xxxx.xx Phone No. +64 7 343-9017
Tax Invoice No. INV32699 NZBN 9429039428714
Additional Client Ref. GST Number 052-454-697
Invoice Date 30/04/2024 Westpac 03-1552 0098792-000
Due Date 20/05/2024 SWIFT Code WPACNZ2W
Payment Terms 20th of the month following invoice date
Project No. (Internal) 11378

Subtotal 1,512.50
GST Amount 226.88
Total $ Incl. GST 1,739.38

Plan Change 50 SNA Site Visit

Description Quantity UOM Unit Price Amount Excl
Professional Services: April 2024
Project management and client liaison 150.00
Information review and map updates 200.00
GIS 62.50
Site visit 1,050.00

1,462.50
Disbursments
Overnight allowance 50.00

Page 1 / 1

Tax Invoice
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Christine Robinson
Sent: Friday, 10 May 2024 1:56 pm
To: Michael Hall
Subject: RE: Long Term Plan Hearing information

Yes I’ll make sure it is ready to go 
Chris 
 

From: Michael Hall   
Sent: Friday, May 10, 2024 1:49 PM 
To: Christine Robinson <Christine.Robinson@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Cc: Craig Martell  
Subject: RE: Long Term Plan Hearing information 
 
Hi ChrisƟne 
 
Can we use this updated file?  
 
Regards 
 
Michael  
 

From: Michael Hall   
Sent: Friday, May 10, 2024 1:32 PM 
To: Christine Robinson <Christine.Robinson@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Cc: Craig Martell  
Subject: RE: Long Term Plan Hearing information 
 
Hi ChrisƟne  
 
AƩached are our slides. 
 

From: Christine Robinson <Christine.Robinson@uhcc.govt.nz>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 8, 2024 1:39 PM 
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
 

 You don't often get email from christine.robinson@uhcc.govt.nz. Learn why this is important  

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
Christine Robinson
 

LTP project coordinator 
 

  

 

Te Kaunihera o Te Awa Kairangi ki Uta | Upper Hutt City Council 
 

838 - 842 Fergusson Drive, Private Bag 907, Upper Hutt, 5140, New Zealand
  

T: +64 4 5272176 |  E: Christine.Robinson@uhcc.govt.nz 
  

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
Sent: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 4:25 pm
To: Christine Robinson
Cc: Craig Martell
Subject: RE: Long Term Plan Hearing information

Hi ChrisƟne 
 
Craig Martell will be presenƟng at the hearing in person.  
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, 25 June 2024 1:44 pm
To: Duncan Stuart
Cc: UHCC Planning
Subject: Re: PC50 Further Submission

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Hi Duncan 
 
There was no document attached to your email.  Could you please try resending the attachment. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Chris 
 
Chris Hansen 
RMA Planning Consultant/Company Director 
Chris Hansen Consultants Ltd 
220 Ross Road, RD7 
Whakamarama,Tauranga 3179 

 
  

 

 
 
 
 
On 24/06/2024, at 8:41 PM, Duncan Stuart  wrote: 
 
Hi there 
 
Here is my further submission. Please let me know if there are any issues with it. 
 
Thanks 
Duncan 
 

7(2)(a)

7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Suzanne Rushmere
Sent: Tuesday, 4 June 2024 10:34 am
To: Chris Hansen
Cc: Phernne Tancock; Michael Hall
Subject: RE: Plans Change 50 - request for further submissions

Hi Chris 
 
Thank you for your email. 
 
Once you click on the parcel of interest on the viewer, the right hand side of the screen in the viewer will show 
all relevant submissions relating to that parcel, and these are cross referenced to the submission sub points in 
the summary of submissions: 
 

 
 
 
Clicking on the relevant submission on the left hand side of the viewer shows a summary of the request on the 
top left hand side of the screen, as well as providing a link to the submission for full details. In respect to GTC 
land, we also included where in the submission the rezoning request map can be found: 
 



2

                                                                  
 
The rezoning requests are also shown in the summary of submissions.  
 
With regards to the zoning of the land, the land is shown as general rural. Turning the ‘submissions area of 
interest’ mask off will show this (see left hand side below). Turning the mask on will grey out all parts of district 
that are not subject to a rezoning request in PC50 (see right hand side below). 
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All of the information above is also shown in the map viewers help function. 
 
Therefore, I cannot see a reason to renotify the summary of submissions at this stage. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Suzanne 
 

From: Chris Hansen <chris@rmaexpert.co.nz>  
Sent: Friday, May 31, 2024 12:49 PM 
To: Emily Thomson <Emily.Thomson@uhcc.govt.nz>; Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Cc: Phernne Tancock <phernne.tancock@legalchambers.co.nz>; Michael Hall <michael.hall@awa.kiwi> 
Subject: Plans Change 50 - request for further submissions 
 
Hi Emily (and Suzanne) 
  
Further to the voice messages I have left on your mobile (Emily), I am writing in response to UHCC’s publicly 
notified request for further submissions for Plan Change 50, how it has treated advice regarding rezoning by 
submission requests, and to point out an error in how the Council has identified the zoning of GTC's land in 
the submission web-viewer which will need to be corrected. 
The approach that the Notice takes to rezoning requests may lead to some confusion as: it says that there 
are areas that a change of zoning has been requested, and says these requests have been mapped, but the 
submission web-viewer only identifies the area the request relates to, and not what the actual change of 
zoning requested is (i.e. from General Rural to General Residential).  
To get that information and the identity of the submitter you must hunt through the submissions themselves.

GTC had expected, based on earlier discussions, that UHCC intended to take a similar approach to KCDC, 
which included clear notification as to the rezoning submissions received, the location impacted by those 
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submissions and the zoning sought. A copy of the Map included in notification of KCDC PC2 can be 
found at https://www.kapiticoast.govt.nz/media/5uefat34/pc2-rezone-requests-map.pdf by way of an 
example where this information is clearly provided, along with the area of land, submitter name, submitter 
number and change in zoning sought via submission. 
It is important that people reading the public notification can clearly understand the extent of rezoning 
requests to allow them to determine whether to make a further submission (or not). Council needs to ensure 
this is communicated in a clear way in its public notification. 
It is also noted that the submission web-viewer wrongly identifies large areas of land owned by GTC as rural 
production zoned land (when it is general rural). This is a significant error that should be corrected.  
In the circumstances it is requested that UHCC fix these errors and re-notify the summary of submissions 
and request for further submissions. 
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
Sent: Tuesday, 4 June 2024 1:32 pm
To: Suzanne Rushmere; Emily Thomson
Cc: Phernne Tancock; Michael Hall
Subject: Re: Plans Change 50 - request for further submissions

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Hi Suzanne 
 
Thank you for your email and for confirming how the right-hand side bar of the submission web-
viewer works - while I had found the reference to the property details and submission numbers 
relevant to the area highlighted when clicked on, I had missed the next level that describes the 
summary of the submission requested, and the imp[acted addresses.  This was most helpful when 
you pointed this out. 
 
Thank you for also confirming the zoning of the Guildford land and turning off the ’submissions area 
of interest’ mask off. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Chris 
 
Chris Hansen 
RMA Planning Consultant/Company Director 
Chris Hansen Consultants Ltd 
220 Ross Road, RD7 
Whakamarama,Tauranga 3179 

 
  

 
 

On 4/06/2024, at 10:34 AM, Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz> 
wrote: 
 
Hi Chris 
  
Thank you for your email. 
  
Once you click on the parcel of interest on the viewer, the right hand side of the screen in the 
viewer will show all relevant submissions relating to that parcel, and these are cross 
referenced to the submission sub points in the summary of submissions: 
  
<image001.png><image004.png> 
  
  
Clicking on the relevant submission on the left hand side of the viewer shows a summary of the 
request on the top left hand side of the screen, as well as providing a link to the submission for 
full details. In respect to GTC land, we also included where in the submission the rezoning 
request map can be found: 
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<image003.png>           <image006.png>                                                       
  
The rezoning requests are also shown in the summary of submissions. 
  
With regards to the zoning of the land, the land is shown as general rural. Turning the 
‘submissions area of interest’ mask off will show this (see left hand side below). Turning the 
mask on will grey out all parts of district that are not subject to a rezoning request in PC50 (see 
right hand side below). 
  
<image007.png> 
  
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
  

<image 046460.gif>  

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
To: Emily Thomson <Emily.Thomson@uhcc.govt.nz>; Suzanne Rushmere 
<suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Cc: Phernne Tancock <phernne.tancock@legalchambers.co.nz>; Michael Hall 
<michael.hall@awa.kiwi> 
Subject: Plans Change 50 - request for further submissions 
  
Hi Emily (and Suzanne) 
  
Further to the voice messages I have left on your mobile (Emily), I am writing in 
response to UHCC’s publicly notified request for further submissions for Plan Change 50, 
how it has treated advice regarding rezoning by submission requests, and to point out 
an error in how the Council has identified the zoning of GTC's land in the submission web-
viewer which will need to be corrected. 
The approach that the Notice takes to rezoning requests may lead to some confusion as: it 
says that there are areas that a change of zoning has been requested, and says these 
requests have been mapped, but the submission web-viewer only identifies the area the 
request relates to, and not what the actual change of zoning requested is (i.e. from General 
Rural to General Residential).  
To get that information and the identity of the submitter you must hunt through the submissions 
themselves. 
GTC had expected, based on earlier discussions, that UHCC intended to take a similar 
approach to KCDC, which included clear notification as to the rezoning submissions received, 
the location impacted by those submissions and the zoning sought. A copy of the Map 
included in notification of KCDC PC2 can be 
found at https://www.kapiticoast.govt.nz/media/5uefat34/pc2-rezone-requests-map.pdf by 
way of an example where this information is clearly provided, along with the area of land, 
submitter name, submitter number and change in zoning sought via submission. 
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It is important that people reading the public notification can clearly understand the extent of 
rezoning requests to allow them to determine whether to make a further submission (or not). 
Council needs to ensure this is communicated in a clear way in its public notification. 
It is also noted that the submission web-viewer wrongly identifies large areas of land owned 
by GTC as rural production zoned land (when it is general rural). This is a significant error that 
should be corrected.  
In the circumstances it is requested that UHCC fix these errors and re-notify the summary of 
submissions and request for further submissions. 
Kind regards 

  
Chris 

  
Chris Hansen 
RMA Planning Consultant/Company Director 
Chris Hansen Consultants Ltd 
220 Ross Road, RD7 
Whakamarama,Tauranga 3179 

 
  
 
<image002.jpg> 
  

 

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

From: Wayne Guppy
Sent: Thursday, 4 July 2024 8:20 pm
To: Craig Martell
Subject: Re: Presentation to Council

Thanks Craig and the comments.I will phone you tomorrow.Wayne  
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Craig Martell  
Sent: Thursday, July 4, 2024 9:42:54 AM 
To: Wayne Guppy <Wayne.Guppy@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Subject: Presentation to Council  
  
Wayne we had discussed the Guildford Timber Company coming and presenting the vision for the 
development of its land to the Councillors.  Is this something the Council would like to take up the offer 
on?  My message would be; 
  

 The Company has been taken over by independent directors with a clear remit; 
 The development has a number of clear benefits for UHCC; 
 The concerns raised are without basis and we can provide clear answers to all of these; 
 We welcome questions from the Councillors to test these answers; 

  
As you know Guildford Timber Company has engaged in this growth area over a long time and invested 
significantly to work with the Council on this zone.  We would like the Council to respect this investment by 
providing the time for us to present a clear picture for its future. 
  
Kind Regards 
  

 

C R A I G  M A R T E L L  
MANAGING DIRECTOR 
a:  1 Ghuznee St, Wellington 6011 
m:    w: www.awa.kiwi 
  

7(2)(a)
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Siobhan Simpson

From: Chris Hansen <chris@rmaexpert.co.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 9 July 2024 11:45 am
To: Suzanne Rushmere
Cc: Michael Hall
Subject: Re: Submission195

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Thanks for the update Suzanne. 
 
 
Chris Hansen 
RMA Planning Consultant/Company Director 
Chris Hansen Consultants Ltd 
220 Ross Road, RD7 
Whakamarama,Tauranga 3179 

 
  

 
 

On 9/07/2024, at 10:26 AM, Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz> 
wrote: 
 
Hi Chris 
  
We have no date for the publication of further submissions at the moment. 
  
We are currently working our way through them all. 
  
Kind regards 
  
Suzanne 
  
Suzanne Rushmere
 

Senior Planner (Policy)  | Kaiwhakamahere Matua
  

<image 196910.gif>  
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From: Chris Hansen <chris@rmaexpert.co.nz>  
Sent: Monday, July 8, 2024 4:55 PM 
To: Hayley Boyd <hayley.boyd@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Cc: Michael Hall <michael.hall@awa.kiwi> 
Subject: Re: Submission195 
  
Thanks Hayley 
  
Can you also advise me when the further submissions are likely to be available on the 
PC50 website - we have received 143.further submissions to the GTC submission, but 
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would like to check the other further submissions to make sure there aren’t any that 
have not been sent to us within the 5 working days. 
  
Kind regards 
  
Chris 
  
Chris Hansen 
RMA Planning Consultant/Company Director 
Chris Hansen Consultants Ltd 
220 Ross Road, RD7 
Whakamarama,Tauranga 3179 

 
  
  

On 8/07/2024, at 12:26 PM, Hayley Boyd <hayley.boyd@uhcc.govt.nz> 
wrote: 
  
Hi Chris, 
  
Apologies for the lateness of this email, unfortunately the request had been emailed 
to someone who was on sick leave. 
  
The email address for submitter 195 is  
  
Regards 
Hayley 
  
  
  
  
  
Hayley Boyd | she/her
 

Planning Support Officer  | Pou Hāpai Whakamahere
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The information contained in this email and any attachments is confidential and 
intended for the named recipients only. If you are not the intended recipient, please 
notify the sender immediately and delete this email.  
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
Sent: Friday, 10 May 2024 1:09 pm
To: Suzanne Rushmere
Subject: RE: Traffic Model

Hi 
 
I went into the teams call. I’m free until 1.30pm then free again from 4 
 

From: Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 8, 2024 1:10 PM 
To: Phernne Tancock  Michael Hall  
Subject: RE: Traffic Model 
 

 
 
Suzanne Rushmere
 

Senior Planner (Policy)  | Kaiwhakamahere Matua
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From: Phernne Tancock   
Sent: Wednesday, May 8, 2024 12:54 PM 
To: Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz>; Michael Hall  
Subject: Re: Traffic Model 
 
Hi both 

 go on without me.  
Apologies 
Phernne. 
 

From: Michael Hall  on behalf of Suzanne Rushmere 
<suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Date: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 at 12:33 PM 
To: Phernne Tancock  Michael Hall 

 
Subject: FW: Traffic Model 
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Hi Phernne 
  
Sorry I was travelling and then in meetings and have just opened my computer now.  
  
-----Original Appointment----- 
From: Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz>  
Sent: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 4:20 PM 
To: Suzanne Rushmere; Michael Hall 
Subject: Traffic Model 
When: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 3:15 pm-3:45 pm (UTC+12:00) Auckland, Wellington. 
Where:  
  
  
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Microsoft Teams Need help?  

Join the meeting now  

Meeting ID: 417 614 026 770  

Passcode: Fnwy3h  

For organizers: Meeting options | Reset dial-in PIN  
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
Sent: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 1:23 pm
To: Suzanne Rushmere
Subject: Re: Traffic Model

Me too - thanks 
 

From: Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Date: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 at 1:10 PM 
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
I am unwell, but go on without me.  
Apologies 
Phernne. 
  

From: Michael Hall  on behalf of Suzanne Rushmere 
<suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz> 
Date: Wednesday, 8 May 2024 at 12:33 PM 
To: Phernne Tancock Michael Hall 

 
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
Sent: Friday, 10 May 2024 1:14 pm
To: Michael Hall
Subject: RE: Traffic Model

Apologies, I am online now 
 

From: Michael Hall   
Sent: Friday, May 10, 2024 1:09 PM 
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
 

. 
 
Suzanne Rushmere
 

Senior Planner (Policy)  | Kaiwhakamahere Matua
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From: Phernne Tancock   
Sent: Wednesday, May 8, 2024 12:54 PM 
To: Suzanne Rushmere <suzanne.rushmere@uhcc.govt.nz>; Michael Hall <  
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
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